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201612
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201612
2020 30
2020 2019
(2b),(4) 35,752,186 2,630,646 37,281,105 2,743,144
(897) (66) 58,236 4,285
2f)
®
719,688 52,955 732,424 53,892
i) 55,533 4,086 5,792 426
36,526,510 2,687,621 38,077,557 2,801,747
(11)
) 32,160 2,366 40,036 2,946
2f)
(10)
470,537 34,622 360,313 26,512
502,697 36,988 400,349 29,458
36,023,813 2,650,632 37,677,208 2,772,289

2020 12 18

J.P.
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11

12

10

201612
2020 30
2020 30 2019 30
(42,169) (3,103) 1,101,442 81,044
223,603 16,453 229,648 16,897
181,434 13,350 1,331,090 97,942
141,688 10,425 145,369 10,696
110,762 8,150 113,960 8,385
84,063 6,185 86,714 6,380
336,513 24,761 346,043 25,462
(155,079) (11,411) 985,047 72,480

(155,079) (11,411) 985,047 72,480
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201612
30
2020
37,677,208 2,772,289
(155,079) (11,411)
(1,498,316) (110, 246)
14
36,023,813 2,650,632
2019
38,359,581 2,822,498
985,047 72,480
(1,667,420) (122,689)
14

37,677,208 2,772,289
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201612
2020 30

2020 30 2019 30
(155,079) (11,411) 985,047 72,480
(223,603) (16,453) (229,648) (16,897)
(378,682) (27,863) 755,399 55,582
1,528,919 112,498 545,743 40,156
(7.876) (580) 921 68
12,736 937 21,615 1,590
110,224 8,110 111,884 8,232
282,736 20,804 232,497 17,107
1,548,057 113,906 1,668,059 122,736
(1,498,316) (110,246) _ (1,667,420) (122,689)
(1,498,316) (110,246) __ (1,667,420) (122,689)
49,741 3,660 639 47
5,792 426 5,153 379
55,533 4,086 5,792 426
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IFRS 16
2019
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IFRS
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FVTPL

J.P. N.A.
FDI

FDI FDI
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2020 30 2019 30
201609 2020 2019
118,851,840 122,290,853
118,851,840 122,290,853
201612 2020 2019
35,752,186 37,281,105
35,752,186 37,281,105
2020 30 2019 30
201609
2020 2019

118,851,840 99.27 122,290,853 98.95

115/329



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

201612
2020 2019
35,752,186 99.25 37,281,105 98.95
J.P. N.A.
2019 30
2019 30
2020 2020 2019 2019
30 30 30 30
1,188,518 123,513,762
201609 (1,188,518) (123,513,762)
357,522 37,653,916
201612 (357,522) (37,653,916)
201609 201612
2020 30 2019 30
201609 2019
30 1,170,173.36 2019 30 0.95
201612 2019 30 382,635.40
2019 30 1.02
201609

2020 30
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118,851,840 118,851,840

(566) (566)
19,490 19,490

229,698 229,698
2,618,710 2,618,710

229,132 118,851,840 2,638,200 121,719,172
19,444 19,444

1,971,850 1,971,850
1,991,294 1,991,294

2019 30

122,290,853 122,290,853

230,300 230,300
35,767 35,767

75,143 75,143
2,651,414 2,651,414

305,443 122,290,853 2,687,181 125,283,477
216,723 216,723

35,686 35,686

1,436,876 1,436,876
1,689,285 1,689,285
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201612

2020 30
35,752,186 35,752,186
(897) (897)
55,533 55,533
719,688 719,688
54,636 35,752,186 719,688 36,526,510
502,697 502,697
502,697 502,697

2019 30
37,281,105 37,281,105
58,236 58,236
5,792 5,792
732,424 732,424
64,028 37,281,105 732,424 38,077,557
40,036 40,036
360,313 360,313
400,349 400,349
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201609
2020 30
99.27
2019 30
98.95
201612
2020 30
99.25
2019 30
98.95
2020 30 2019 30 J.P. N.A.
BNP
J.P. N.A. A2 2019 30 A2

BNP
Aa3 2019 30 Aa3
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2020 30 2019 30 J.P. N.A.
12
201609 2020 2019
146,778 216,723
19,444 35,686
1,825,072 1,436,876
1,991,294 1,689,285
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201612 2020 2019
32,160 40,036
470,537 360,313
502,697 400,349
201609
12
121,719,172 121,719,172
12
125,283,477 125,283,477
201612
12
36,526,510 36,526,510
12

38,077,557 38,077,557
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201609
2020 30
118,851,840 118,851,840
118,851,840 118,851,840
2019 30
122,290,853 122,290,853
122,290,853 122,290,853
201612
2020 30
35,752,186 35,752,186
35,752,186 35,752,186
2019 30
37,281,105 37,281,105
37,281,105 37,281,105
2020 30 2019 30
2020 30 2019 30
201609
2020 30
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(566) (566)
19,490 19,490
229,698 229,698
2,618,710 2,618,710
229,698 2,637,634 2,867,332
19,444 19,444
1,971,850 1,971,850
1,991,294 1,991,294

2019 30
230,300 230,300
35,767 35,767
75,143 75,143
2,651,414 2,651,414
75,143 2,917,481 2,992,624
35,686 35,686
1,653,599 1,653,599

1,689,285 1,689,285
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201612

2020 30
(897) (897)
55,533 55,533
719,688 719,688
55,533 718,791 774,324
502,697 502,697
502,697 502,697

2019 30
58,236 58,236
5,792 5,792
732,424 732,424
5,792 790,660 796,452
400,349 400,349

400,349 400,349
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oTC
oTC
ISDA
2020 30 2019 30
201609 2020 30 2019 30
204,736 6,298
62,527 4,389,307
267,263 4,395,605
201612 2020 30 2019 30
193,150 135,045
(235,319) 966,397

(42,169) 1,101,442
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IFRS
201609 2020 2019
119,727,878 123,594,192
119,727,878 123,594,192
201612 2020 2019
36,023,813 37,677,208

36,023,813 37,677,208
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30
201609

201609 2020 2019
1,194,130 1,270,730
(35,730) (76,600)
1,158,400 1,194,130
119,727,878 123,594,192
103.36 103.50

201612 2020 2019
337,630 353,060
(13,200) (15,430)
324,430 337,630
36,023,813 37,677,208
111.04 111.59

201609

201612

2020 30
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201609 2020 30 2019 30
596,175 615,845
146,778 216,723

201612 2020 30 2019 30
141,688 145,369
32,160 40,036

2016 26 2,500
201609

201612

2020 30 2019 30
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PassiM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 Jume 2020
BRL 2x Bull Fund BRL 2x Bear Fund
3 June 2020 3 June 2020
{date of {date of
Motes  termination) 30 June 2019 termination) 30 June 2019
JPY000 JPYTO00 SJPYTO00 JPY 000

Assets
Current assets
Fimancial assets a far value through prafit o

loes (20 14) - 296,071 . 31,032
Intesest racenvable . 47 . 4
Armount Sue from brokers (2 124 796 . 122110
Cuie fresm umitholders - 1,820 - -
Management fas rebate receivable (9} 2125 1,775 2389 1,923
Other recaivable and pre-payment - 254 - 258
Cash and cash equivalents (&) 2318 75 811 17147 i 716
Total assets 129,228 375,783 201 B4E 33,933
Liabilities
Currert liabilities
Financial habihties & fanr value throwgh profit o

lass (2t 14) - . - 400
Adminastration fee payable {11 1,045 3170 1,045 3170
Audn fee payvable 354 81 194 L
Managemant fee payable (9% 417 . 2 .
Arnount Sue 1o brokers (20 - 22 62,762
Cue to unitholders 126,199 . 136,805 -
Crthar paryables 724 1,619 237 437
Total liabilities (excluding net assets

attributable to holders of redeemable

units) 128 238 5 382 201 45 4 658
Equityfnet assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units - 270,291 - 29,245

The fmancid staternents wasa approsed and authonsed for 1ssus by Trustes and the Directors of the Managar on 18
Deceamibear 20200

P Prima,

Intenst Corporate Sezf}(es {Caymean) Limited a5 Trustes JP. Morgan Mansan Management Limited as Mananger

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial statements
17
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL FOSITION
As al 30 Juns 2020
BAL Zx Bull Fund BRL Zx Bear Fund
3 Juns 2020 3 June 2020
{date of {dute of
Moles terminatlon) 30 Jond 2015 termination) 30 June 2013
JPYCO00 JPY'000 JPY000 JPW000

Aggets
Currant asEets
Flnancial azsels st fair valua through prof or

loss (2,40 - 26071 - 21,0282
Interest receivable - 47 B 4
Amaunl dee from okers {20 124,795 . 12110 .
Due from unitholders - 1,620 . .
Managemant fee rebate recalvable ) 2,125 1,775 2,388 1,823
Olner receivable and pre-payment . 258 . 258
Cash and cash aquivalents (2} 2318 TE B w147 10,718
Total assots 126,234 76, TR 201 548 23,533
Ligkilitios
Current llabllitles
Fenancial lineitees al fair value lhiowgh profit or

loss {2h)04) . . - 499
Adminslralion fee payable {11} 1,045 3,170 1,045 3170
Audil les payable &54 581 194 JE
Managaman! fea payable ] 417 = 2 -
Amound gue to brokers {27 - 2 B2, 7a3 -
Duee 1o uniheis ars 126,189 - 135,603 -
Cthar payabiss fril 1,619 537 227
Total llabllities {pxcluding nel assels

attributable o holders of redeemabla

unlta) 120,228 5.382 201,548 £.538
Equlty'nel assets attribulable to holders of

redecmable unils - 31"0!:]-91 - 29 245

Tha financlal statemaris were approved and authorized lor issue by Trusiee and
Dpcormber 2000

Intesitrust Corporats Services (Cayman) Limited Ba Trustee L, Morgan Mansan Management Limiled as Mananger

The sccompanying nolas form an infagral part of thesa financial slaterments
17
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ax at 30 June 2020
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Motes 2020 2018 2020 2019
JPYI000 JPYT000 JPY000 JPY000

Asselts
Currernt assets
Fimancial assets &t fair value through profit o

loss (20 44 177,143 343 428 105,236 203,152
Intesast raconvable 2 102 17 43
Amount cue from brokers (213 - . 283 648
Cue from unitholders 441 18,774 - 6,979
Management fee rebate receivable {9 633 1,538 367 1,718
Other recenvable and pre-payment 718 - 1,342 -
Cash and cash equivalents {20 30047 125 014 67 455 154 287
Total assets 209914 603 B56 174,701 386,827
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial hatites & far value through profit o

loss (20} 44 11112 : . 32,4938
Adrimstraton fes payable {11y 1,083 2767 1,063 2,767
Audt fee payable 1,287 813 724 373
Arnount due to brokers (21} - 4 356 - .
Cue to unitholders - . 14,022 .
Trustes fea payabla {10) - 263 - 363
Cthar payables 581 1,568 476 1,253
Total liabilities (excluding net assets

attributabie to holders of redeemable

wunits) 14,053 9867 16,315 37,704
Equityinet assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units 1405 851 S93 50 157 855 329,033

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
18
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Asx af 30 June 2020
Gold 2x Bull Furd Gold 2x Bear Fund
Motes 2020 2018 2020 2019
JPYO00 JPYO00 JPYO00 JPY000

Asselts
Currart assets
Fimancial assets &t fair value through profit o

loss {2ty f4) 201 858 93,568 M3W 6,506
Intefest recevable 43 20 5 1
Arnount due from brokers (21 1425 . 403 o
Cure from unitholders 9,804 53,709 4728 260
Management fee rebate receivable {9 - 1,760 434 1.815
Other recenvable and pre-payment 1.017 - 1,194 1.116
Cash and cash equivalants {2) 203,340 11,387 12818 4,300
Total assets 502 102 160,454 51,063 14,025
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial hatites & far value through profit o

loss {2ty f4) . : 4,345 1,224
Adrimstraton fes payable {11y 1,082 2 767 1,082 2,767
Audi lae payable 517 210 40 (49)
Managemant fae payable 1] 79 . - .
Arnount due to brokers (24) 755 4,757
Cue to unithalders 19,063 - - -
Trustes fea payable (10} - I3 - 362
Cithar payables 247 832 586 579
Total liabilities [excuding net assets

attributable to holders of redeemabls

units) 23,043 9,059 G053 ER==
Equityfnet assets attributable to holders of

redeesmable units 485,059 151,365 45,000 9,141

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
19
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PassiM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Asx af 30 June 2020
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Motes 2020 2018 2020 2019
JPY000 JPYO00 SJPYO00 JPY000

Asselts
Currart assets
Fimancial assets & fair value through profit o

loss (2b) 44 281,127 643,934 26922 132,673
Intefest recenvable T 124 5 40
Arnount due from brokers (21 73 478 119 -
Cure from unitholders 18,816 3343 332 -
Management fee rebate receivable {9y sy 1,259 918 1,768
Other recenvable and pre-payment GE5 - 1177 -
Cash and cash equivalants {2) 112902 390, T4 2987 41378
Total assets 413 854 1,053 852 42450 175,059
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial hatibes a far value through profil o

loss {2ty f4) . 3z 610 1,356 :
Adrinstraton fes payable {11y 1,083 2 76T 1,063 2,767
Audi lae payable 24493 1,996 233 132
Arnount due to brokers [26) GT6 . - -
Cue to unitholders 4120 . - -
Trustes fea payabla {10} - 22 - 33
Cithar payables 1178 1,865 701 82T
Total liabilities (excluding net assets

attributable to holders of redeemable

wunits) 9 556 39,160 3378 4003
Equityinet assets attributable to holders of

redesmable units 404 328 10159 6392 29072 172,020

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
20
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PassiM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A5 af 30 June 2020
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Resources Twin Alpha TRY
Fund Fund
11 May 2020 11 May 2000
{date of (date of
Motes  termination) 30 June 2019 termination) 30 June 2019
JPY000 JPYT000 JPY000 JPY000

Assels
Ciurent assets
Financial assats at fair value through prabt of

logs ) 44) - T2T 076 < 235517
Management fee rebate receivable 19) G&T . GET -
Other recenvable and pre-payment - 114 - 114
Cash and cash equivalents (2i) 61334 1065 068 3 4% 19.414
Total assets 62,021 B3z 258 32183 255,045
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial hatibes a far value through profil o

loss (2h) [4) . . "
Adrinstraton fes payable {11y BTG 30e7 876 3,105
Audt fee payable 1,02 65 310 54
Managemeant fae payable 1] 43 636 24 1658
Cue to unitholders 58185 . 23708 .
Other payables 1870 2040 1 664 1,060
Total liabilities (excluding net assets

attributable to holders of redeemable

units) 62,021 f 405 32183 4,908
Equityinet assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units ] 525,850 . 250,137

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
21
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PassiM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A5 af 30 June 2020
Resources Twin Alpha USD AUD Target Maturity Bond
Fund Fund 201608
11 May 2020
{date of
Motes  termination) 30 June 2019 2020 2018
JPY000 JPYT000 AUD ALID

Assets
Ciurent assets
Financial assats at fair value through prabt of

loss (20 f4) - 833,140 118851840 122290852
Interast recanvable - - {566 230,300
Armount due from brokers (2f) - - 19.450 35767
Management fee rebate receivable [9) 6E7 - - -
Cther recervable and pre-payment - 114 2818710 2E51.414
Cash and cash equivalents (2) 142 119 146, 752 220 698 75,143
Total assets 142 506 Q20,006 121,719.172 125,283 477
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial hakhities & fanr value through profit of

loes (b0 14) - 42 167
Adminictration fee payable [11) 877 3103
A fee payable 1,053 bzl - -
Management fae payable [9) a1 07 146778 216723
Cue to unitholders 138973 - 19,444 35 635
Cithar payables 1812 i, 101 1825072 1,436 576
Total liabilities [excuding net assets

attributable to holders of redeemabls

units) 142,306 43 377 1,901 204 1,689 285
Equityfnet assets attributable to holders of

redeesmable units ] 931,629 119,727 878 123,594 192

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ax at 30 June 2020
s us
ALD Target Maturity Bond Technology 2x Technology 2x
Fund 201612 Bull Fund Bear Fund
HModes 2020 K018 2020 2020
AUD AUD JPYT000 JPY 000

Assets
Current assets
Financial assets at fair value through

profit orloss [ 2.0 35752186 37281105 55630 130,620
Interest receivable {887} 58238 105 19
Arnount due from brokers 1) - - 6577 32 007
Due from unitholders . - 34320 6,563
Management fee rebate receivable {9 - - 635 740
Other receivable and pre-payment T19688 T32424 - -
Cash and cash equivalents [2) 55,533 5,792 FHEN 103,175
Total assets 36 526510 JB 077557 1,102 649 FIERET]
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 2t fair value through

profit orloss - - . 3l
Administration fee payable (1) s . 470 4T
Audit fes payable . - 189 57
Management fee payable {9 32160 40,035 .
Amount due to brokers () : . 170371 1.618
Trustee fee payable (10) ; : 127 127
Dwe to unitholders . : . 123,722
Other payables 470,537 260313 4674 1,018
Total liabilities (excduding net assels

attributable to holders of redeemable

units) S0 6AT 400,349 175 831 135371
Equityinet assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units 36,023 813 3T ETT 08 oG 818 137 833

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
23
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PassiM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the fnancial year ended 30 Jure 2020

BRL 2x Bull Fund BRL 2x Bear Fund
For the pericd For the period
1 July 2019 1o 1 July 2019 to
3 June 2020 3 June 2020
{date of Year ended 30 {date of Year ended 30
Motes  termination] June 2018 termination) Juree 2015
JPYO00 JPY000 JPYO00 JPYT000

Income
Mat (lossiagan on inanceal assets and

habilties A fasr value through profit of loss T {189 359) 349 368 48 835 3437
Interest income indudng amortisation (E53) {855) {180] {168)
Total net incomel{loss) {190,052 28509 43 656 3269
Expenses
Administration fee 1 2.M7 2542 2.247 2542
Audt fee 32 =T 114 92
Custody fee 12 247 282 215 225
Management fes rebate 9 [3,186) [3,550) (2,425 {3.895)
Transachon costs 74 G TG a1
Trustes fea 10 3s 361 3 a1
Legal and professional fee 12 207 12 3
Ciher axpenses 1,433 1,291 1,029 920
Total operating expenses 2337 L] 1301 FET]
[Loss)profit before tax {192 379) 26,124 AT 277 2478
Withhoiding tax 124) (i) (5] {6}
Met {loss)profit attributable to

participating units {152 403) 16058 47272 2472

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
24
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FPassiM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 Jure 2020

China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Yearended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
Motes  June 2020 Jurne 2018 June 2020 June 2019
JPY000 JPYEO00 JPYO00 JPYT000

Income
Mt (loesigain on financeal assets and

labilities & far value through profit of loss T {117,857} (56,53 TE 456 {19.452)
Interast income incdudng amortisation (TT6) {624} (E25) (4T
Total net incomel{loss) {118,623} {57 016} 7584 {19.928)
Expenges
Administration fee " 2,251 2233 2249 2223
Audi fes 474 Eili ] 351 368
Custody fes 12 [ 135) 258 {548] 252
Management fes rebate 2 [2653) [3.047) 12.413) {3381
Transadtion costs 1 370 1,904 a2
Trustes fes 10 310 332 310 322
Legal and perofesaional foe 718 56 =1 Gid
Ciher axpénses 1,229 7493 1.020 575
Total operating expenses 255 2614 2741 1915
[Losslprofit before tax {120,858} (59,6300 73,080 (21.843)
Withholding tax {38} (47) (23] L 16]
Met {loss)profit attributable to

participating units 1120 §26) {59677} 73058 (21 854

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
25
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FPassiM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 Jure 2020

Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Yearended 3  Year ended 30 Year ended 30
botes  June 20020 June 2018 Jure 2020 Jurne 2015
JPYE000 JPYO00 JPYO00 JPYT000

Income
Mat aanffloss) on iinancial assels and

labihties & far value through profit of loss T 104,577 219585 (26,677 (1,299
Interast income incdudng amortisation (322) [265) (48] { 201
Total net incomel{loss) 0, 255 21 830 (26 T2E) {1233
Expenges
Administration fee " 2,232 2223 223 2,223
Audi fee 307 205 47 19
Custody fes 12 [ 146) 235 (180) 215
Management fee rebate 8 [2.853) [3.518) (3,987) (3 E16)
Transachion costs 906 492 330 112
Trustes fes 10 310 3 310 an
Legal and perofesaional foe 651 G5 547 542
Ciher axpénses BT SO0 431 351
Total operating expenses 2,74 1,073 37 167
Profitiloss) before tax 10,4971 20817 (37 262) {1.304)
Withholding tax (12} (T} {3 {3]
Met profit!{less) attributable to

participating units 01, 455 20610 (27 265) {1.402)

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
26
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FPassiM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 Jure 2020

India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Yearended 3  Year ended 30 Year ended 30
botes  June 20020 June 2018 Jure 2020 Jurne 2015
JPYE000 JPYO00 JPYO00 JPYT000

Income
Mt (lessigain on iinancial assels and

labilities & far value through profit of loss T {265,640} 118,058 Tia78 511
Interast income incdudng amortisation (1,359} (2977} {208) {175]
Total net incomel{loss) {266 939) 115 081 T3 BT 5 545
Expenges
Administration fee " 2,120 2223 2255 2,223
Audi fee an2 1,575 106 130
Custody fes 12 (91) ) (17E) 230
Management fes rebate 8 [ 2.065) [2.383) 12,154) {3.541)
Transachion costs 423 545 415 599
Trustes fes 10 310 3 310 an
Legal and perofesaional foe 589 1,147 570 SE4
Ciher axpénses 1,830 1,150 e} 463
Total operating expenses 4 350 ER =) 234 1 00
[Losslprofit before tax {271,387} 110,126 72736 4538
Withhoiding tax {F3) (127} {5) (12}
Met {loss)profit attributable to

participating units {27 1.450) 108,999 7213 4524

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
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PassiM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the fnancial year ended 30 Jure 2020

Resources Twin Alpha BRL Resources Twin Alpha TRY

Fund Fund
For the pericd For the period
1 July 2015 to 1 July 2013 to
11 May 2020 11 May 2020
{date of Year ended 30 (date of Year ended 30
Motes  termination) June 2019 termination e 2015
SPYO00 JPY000 JPYO00 JPYT000
Income
Mt loss on financial assets and habibliss at
fair vaipe through profit o loss T {523 035) {182 238) (137,103) (84,722}
Interest income including amortisation 406 2580 118 il
Total net incomef{loss) {522 129) (179658} {136,335] (53,953
Expenses
Administration fee 11 1861 2431 2046 243
Aud fee S0 S8 agT 533
Custody fee 12 (252) 916G 192 415
Managemant fae | 1,808 3914 STE Q35
Trustes fes 0 265 205 265 269
Legal and professonal fee 11 3 1" 16
Other expenses 2 163 1,125 2075 1,044
Total operating expenses [ 9 302 .55 5 6949
Loss before tax {528,293) {126,%60) (142,537) [39.653)
Withholding tax - 5 : 1
Met loss attributable to participating units {555 293} {128 960) [EEEEEN] {54 653

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
28
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PassiM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the fnancial year ended 30 Jure 2020

Resources Twin Alpha USD AUD Target Maturity Bond

Fund Fund 201609
For the period
1 July 2015 to
11 May 2020
{date of Year ended 30  Year anded 30 Year ended 30
Motes  termination June 2019 Jurne 2020 June 2013
SPYO00 JPY000 AUD AUD

Income
Mt (lossigain on financial assets and

Habilities & far value through profit or loss T {380 920} {221,120) 267 263 4,355 605
Interest income incudng amortisation £63 2055 586 B85 15414
Total net incomef{loss) {339,057} (219,025} 1.152.543 5311019
Expenses
Adminstration fee 11 1,832 2481
Aud fee 516 ]
Custody fee 12 {100} T35 . .
Managemant fee | 1,874 4380 596,175 615845
Preliminary expenses . . 352483 407 385
Trustes fes 10 265 268 . .
Legal and professional fee " 3 . .
Other expenses 222 1,158 296 053 08 330
Total operating expenses £ E00 0 514 1284 741 1.331 563
[Loss)profit before tax {395.65T) (228,639) (130,792) 3979456
Withiolding tax - - - :
Met {loss)profit attributable to

participating units 295 657} {228 629 {130, 792 3 970 456

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
29
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the fhancial year ended 30 Jure 2020
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us us
AUD Target Maturity Bond Technology Technology
Fund 201612 Zx Bull Fund 2x Bull Fund
For the period  For the period
10 March 2020 10 March 2020
(date of (date of
incorporation)  incorporation)
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 to 30 June to 30 June
Metes  June 2000 Jure 219 2020 2020
AUD AUD
Income
Met llossigain on financial assets and
habilities & far value through profit of loss T {42,169} 1,101,242 24554 {51.238)
Interast income includng amortisation 223 803 220 643 £5 23
Total net incomel{loss) 181,424 1,331,090 245 B9 151.215)
Expenses
Admirnstration fee 1 . - AT0 470
Audt fae - . 189 57
Custody fee 12 . . 83 k|
Management feedrebate) q 141,688 145,369 (GE5) (T30)
Pralivenary axpancaes 110,762 113,950 3,640 541
Transacion costs . . 774 234
Trustes: fos 10 . - 127 127
Legal and professional fee - - 4 4
Other expenses 4 (53 56,714 3 24T
Total operating expenses 336513 346 043 4 018 931
[Loss)iprofit before tax {155,079} 085047 240,691 (52.146)
Withhobding tax . - {100 (5]
Met {loss) profit attributable to
participating units {155 0749} 9851047 240681 152,151}

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these financial siatements
30
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2020

BRL 2x Bull Fund BRL 2x Bear Fund
For the period For the period
1 July 2019 to 3 1July 2019 te 3
June 2020 June 2020

[date of Year ended 30 {date of Year ended 30
termination) June 2019 termination) June 2019

JPY000 JPEY D00 JPY000 JPY000
Cash flows from operating activities
{Lossiprofit before fas (192.379) 36,124 47 277 2478
Adjustments for:
- Interest income mcludng amonisation B&3 555 150 168
Operating cash flow before working capital
changes (191 598 36,963 AT 45T 2,646

- Decrease in finandal assets at Far value through
profig of loss 206,071 354 150 21,032 47 157
- (Decregsalindreasa in financial liabiities at far

valus through proft or loss . {47 a48) {439) 439
- Increase in due from brokers [124,795) - (122,100 .
« (Decregsalinoresss mn adminieiraiion fee payabla [2125) 675 {2.125) 25493
- e easeidacr ease) in audit fes payabls 273 (391) 102 23
- Imcreass in managemant (e payable 417 - 2 .
- Imcrease in managemsant fes robate recenable {350y {1.065) {466} (482)
- (Decreasalinoresse in due to brokers {22 (2200 652763 [1.248)
- Deareasa in other recaivablas 258 TS 258 74
- (Decreasalinorease in othar payables (Ba5) 14 (90 638
= Income recened moudng amontisation [G:36) (83 {176} (149}
- Withholding tax pad {24} alsd] (5 (£}

Met cash (used Injifrom operating activities 123 524) 3432028 B,143 51,298
Cash flows from financing activities

Procesds from subscriptions of units 521726 533,320 245052 224 669

Payments of redemption of units (571 695) (998 GO5) (184 TE4) {300.195)
Met cash frem (used Imifrom financing activities {49 063 {465 2EE) 60,228 {70,529}
Met (decreasellincrease in cash and cash

equivalents {73 453) (123 257} B4 {19.230)

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the ywear 75811 193 (53 10,716 29 946

Cash and cash squivalent at end of the period 2,318 75,811 17,147 10,716

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial stafements
35
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2020
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Year ended30 Year ended30  Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2019 June 2020 June 2019
JPY'000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000

Cash flows from operating activities
{Lossiprofit before tax (120,853) {53 530) 73080 {21,843
Adjustments for:
« Interest income mcludng amamsaion 776 Gi24 G35 476
Operating cash flow before working capital

changes (120.112) {59 008) 73,715 {21,367}
- Decrease in finanaal assets atfar value through

profie or loss 221,285 193,153 a7 916 119,307
- Increased{dacraasa) in financial labilities at far

walue thransgh prof or loss 11112 [ 164 ,053) (32.934) 32,908
= Decreasa in due from brokess ! 8,274 365 2,929
. (Decraasalinaeass in administration fee payable (1,684 2323 {1,654) 2323
- Imcrease in audit fes payabis 474 587 351 17
- Dedreasaf(increasa) in managemant fea rebate

recavabla 305 [&14) 1.351 [S26)
- iDecreasalinoresse in due to brokers [4,356) 4,356 - -
- (Dacreasalinorecs in tnictse fee payablo {363) 320 {363) 320
- (Increase) in other receiables (718) - {1.343) -
- (Decreasalinorease in other payables {9ET) 632 (37T 124
- Income receted incliding amartisation (TOE) {B200 {609y (434)
- Withholding tax pad {35 (47) (22} {15)
Met cash fromi{uzed In) operating activities 104,512 {15 5 126,362 135 265
Cash flows from financing activities
Procesds from subscriptions of units 1,528,819 2291823 1,052 000 1079447
Fayments of redemption of units (1,727 B95) {2448 359) [1,375.154) {1.185.533
Met cash used in financing activities [ 198 879) (156,535 [223.194) 17086, 056)
Met (decrease)lincrease in cash and cash

squivalents (94 087) [171.541) {286.832) 29179
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 125014 X6 555 154 287 125 108
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year A0.947 125,014 [T 154, BT

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial stafements
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2020
Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
Year ended30 Year ended30  Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2019 June 2020 June 2019
JPY'000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profitiioss) bafore {2 101,871 0817 (27.262) [1,329)
Adjustments for:
« Interest income mcludng amamsaion 322 265 45 20
Operating cash flow before working capital

changes 102,293 20,862 (27.24) (1.379)
- {Increaseydecrease in financial assets o fair value

throwgh profit or loss [ 198 290} 56,665 (24 5200 3431
- (Decragsalingeass in financial liabilities at far

wvalus through proft or loss - {15,140 3121 1,224
. Increase in due from brokers (1435) . {381) (19}
. (Decraasainaeases in administration fee payable [1,685) 22323 {1.685) 2628
- Increaseldecrease) in audt fes payabls 307 (165 &4 19
- Increase in managemant fee payabla 779 - .
- Decreasanincreasa) in management fea rebate

recevabla 1,760 (373 1331 (581}
- (Dacreasalinoresa in due to brokers {4,002) 4757 . .
- {Decreaselinoreass in trustes fee payable {363} 323 {363) 3232
- Increase in other receivables {1.017) - (78) (458)
- (Decressalinoresse in other payables [145) 2038 7 264
- Income recened mcluding amomisation (340} [267) (52 {18}
- Withholding tax paid {12 7 (3 13}
Met cash (used Injifrom operating activities {102, 150) 62622 150, 048) 5,130
Cash flows from financing activities
Procesds from subscriphions of units 1,561,328 235,808 206,105 28620

Fayments of redemplion of units
Met cash fromi{used in) financing activities

Met increase/{decrease) in cash and cash

1,266 625 340 503 [ 147 433} {61,539}
734 703 10 5 EB 660 12,819)

equi valents 182,553 {36,073 BE18 2211
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 11 357 47 460 4 300 20349
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year 3,940 11, 12 918 4,300

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial stafements
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2020
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Year ended30 Year ended30  Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2019 June 2020 June 2019
JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 00D

Cash flows from operating activities
(Lessyprofit bafore Dax (271 387} 110,126 72,735 4536
Adjustments for:
- Interest income includhng amarsaion 1,359 2877 208 178
Operating cash flow before working capital

changes [ 270,02 113,103 72944 4714
- Deaeasafincrease) in financial assets at far value

throwgh profit or loss 362 867 GEGGTT 106,051 (25960
- (Decragsalingesss in financial liabilities at far

value through prof or loss (3260 (1,264 1,356
. Decreaseafincreass) in due from brokers 05 [A78) {119) .
. (Decraasainaeases in administration fee payable (1,684 2323 {1684) 2223
- Increaseldecrease) in audt fes payabls Q02 (=5) 106 4
- Decreacaiincreasa) in managemant fea rebate

recehvable 1,028 (%57 850 {BEG)
- Increasel{decr sasa) in dus 1o rokers G676 (233 - {1.047)
- (Dacreasalinorecs in tnistes fee payablo {322) 322 (313) 228
- (Increase) in other receivables {BES) - {1.177) -
- iDecreasalinorease in other payables (625) 296 {126) 44
- Imcome recesed nciuding amodtisation [1,305) (2699 {173} {181}
- Withholding tax pad {530 [127) ] (12}
Met cash fromi{uzed In) operating activities SE515 TET 405 EEE I ET] 120,822)
Cash flows from financing activities
Procesds from subscriptions of units 1,904 569 2478346 577218 T11.056
Fayments of redemption of units (2 240, 5585) (3. 266 603 {786.219) (ETT. 797}
Met cash (used in)from financing activities [336.317) [B0% 756 (200,001) #3250
Met (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash

equivalents (277 802y {40,851) [31.291) 12437
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year A0, 704 431 555 41378 28841
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year 1128902 380,704 T 41,278

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial stafements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2020

Resources Twin Alpha BRL Resources Twin Alpha TRY

Fund Fund
For the pariod For the period
1 July 2019 to 1 July 2018 to
11 May 2020 11 May 2020
(date of Year ended 30 {date of Year ended 30
termination) June 2019 termination) June 2019
JPY000 JPY000 JPYO00 JPY000

Cash lows from operating activities
Loss before tax (928 293) [ 185,900) (142,537) {59,653)
Adjustments for:
- Imterest income including amont sation (906} (2 5800 {118} [TE5)
Operating cash flow before working capital

changes [529,199) {191, 540) (142 655) {20421}
- Decreasa in finanaal assels at far value through

proft or loss T27.07T6 1,199 555 235517 168,353
- Decrease in financia liabilives & far valua through

prodi or loss - [303.774) - (53.519)
- (Decreass linoresse in administration fes payable (2210 523 {2.228) 627
- Increasei{decrease) in audit fes payabie 448 {15 6T {43}
- Decraasa in managanmeont faa payable {628) (1,192 {175) {200)
- Increase in management fes rebate recedvable {B5T) - {6aT) -
- Deoreasafincrease) in other receivables 114 40 114 {40y
- (Decressalinoresse in other payables {172) 489 G602 174
- Income recetved moluding amomisation Q06 2. 580 118 TEG
Met cash frem operating activities 195 638 TOT 400 0a7a 25,699
Cash flows from financing activities
Procesds from subscriptions of units 1512 27,353 - -
Fayments of redemption of units [198571) {992 0T 169,199 {118,559}
Distribution (48313 (136 468) (9.692) {24 807)
Met cash used in financing activities [239,372) 11,101, 212) (rg.891) {143 366}
Met (decrease)lincrease in cash and cash

equi valents (43,7343 (304 112) 12,082 {117 BET)
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 105 068 499 180 19414 137 051
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the period 1; 105, 31 456 19,414

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial stafements
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2020
Resowrces Twin Alpha USD AUD Target Maturity Bond
Fund Fund 201603
For the period
1 July 2019 to
11 May 2020
(date of Year ended 30  Year ended 30 Year ended 30
termination) June 2019 June 2020 June 2019
JPY000 JPY000 AUD AUD
Cash Mows from operating activities
[Lossyprofi before tax {345 657) (225 624) (120,792) 3979456
Adjustmernts for:
- Imterest income including amont sation (863} (2 05 (536 626) {915 414)
Operating cash flow before working capital
changes (396520 (230,734) (1,017 473} 3064042
= Decreasa in finanaal assets at far value through
profi or loss 523,140 1,189 520 3439013 3017 49
- (Decreasa) in financial habiites at far value
throwgh proft or loss (42 167) (42,043) . .
- Decreasafincreasa) in due from brokers - - 16,277 {35,76T)
- iDecreasalinoresse in adminisiration fee payable {2,2205) 627 - -
- Increasef{docraase) in audit fee payabla 454 (43 . -
- (Decrease)inoressa in management fes payable {716) {1.041) 169 945) 50,019
- Incresase in management fee rebate recevable [6ET) - - -
- Deoreasaffincreasa) in other receivables 114 40 32704 98 652
- Increase in offver payables 111 324 3BE96 400,531
- Income receved moluding amomisation g63 2095 1:117.552 931,146
Met cash from operating activities 302 366 19,065 3906 314 7626514
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of redemption of units (319,349 (1,005,302} (3,751,764 {7.563,T61)
Cistribution {77 650 (135 3300 _ . =
Met cash used in financing activities [ 396, Se) {1,143 632) (3,751, 764) {7.5689,751)
Met (decrease)lincrease in cash and cash
equi valents [4,633) (224 5ET) 154 555 56,753
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 146 752 371319 75,143 18,330
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the
periodiyear 142118 146,752 228658 75,143

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial stafements
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Cash flows from operating activities

(Lossiprofit before tax

Adjustments for:

- Interest income indudng amonisaton

Operating cash flow before working capital
changes

- Decreasalincrease) in inandial as5e1s at
fair value through prafit or loss

- Increase in financial labdities at fair valus
through profit or loss

- {Increase) in due from brokers

- Imerease i administraion fee payabla

- Imcrease in audit fea payable

- iDecreaselfincraasea in management fae
payable

- Imcrease in management fee rebate
receivable

- Increase in due to brokers

- Incresase m trustes fee payable

- Decreasal{incraass) in other receivables

- Increase in other payables

« Imcome receved iIncludng amontisaton

- Withhalding tas paid

Met cash fromi{used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from subscriptions of units
Payments of redemgtion of units

Met cash (used in)/from financing activities

Metincrease in cash and cash equivalerts
Cash and cash equivalent & begnning of the
year
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the
yeariperiod

us us
AUD Target Maturity Bond Technolegy Technolegy
Fund 201612 2x Bull Fund 2x Bear Fund
For the period For the period
10 March 2020 10 March 2020
Year ended Year ended (date of {date of
30 June 30 June incorporation) incorporation)
2020 2019 to 30 Jure 2020 1o 30 June 2020
ALD ALD JPYO00 JEY000
{155.0739) 985,047 240,881 {52 148)
{223 603} {223 648} {6:5] {23
{378 652) 755,339 240 26 (52,1659
1.528.014 545,743 1556,341) {130,620)
E 8,350
{6.577) (32 027)
470 470
185 57
{T.876) a1
(E535) -
170,371 1618
- . 127 127
12,736 21615 - (790}
110,224 111,584 4674 1,018
282,735 232 497 {40) 4
- . (10 {5}
18057 1,668,058 1147,1586) (2003,958)
. 2 1,305,550 69,104
{1,498 316} {1667 4200 {923 773 {331.971)
(1,498 316) {1,667 420 ITLET 307133
448 741 B 224 621 108,175
5 797 5 153
55 533 5 742 224 51 103,175

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial stafements
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General Information

PassIM Trust ("the Trusi®) is a unit trust established as an umbrella fund under the laws of the Cayman
Islands pursuant to the Trust Deed dated 2 December 2014, as amended by Supplemental Deeds
{collectively referred 1o as the "Deeds™).

The Trust has been established as an umbrela fund and accordingly the assefs of the Trust will be
separated into different sub-funds. As al 30 June 2020, the Trust has 14 sub-funds under #5 umbrella,
out of which 10 sub-funds, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Eear
Fund. India 2% Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, AUD Targe! Malurity Bond Fund 201609, ALUD Targel
Maturity Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2¢ Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund are
presented in his report. Cumently each sub-fund issues only one class of share,

As a 11 May 2020 (date of lermination). the unitholders fully redeemed all outstanding units on the
sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin
Alpha USD Fund, The sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund
and Resources Twin Alpha LUSD Fund had been lerminated with the approval of the Trustee and the
Manager on 11 May 2020 were presented in this report.

As al 3 June 2020 (date of termination), the unitholders fully redeemed all outslanding unils on the
sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2 Bear Fund. The sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x
Bear Fund had been terminated with the approval of the Trustee and the Manager on 3 June 2020 were
presentad in this rapor.

For Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Seres 2016 JPX — Nikkel 400 Fund and Series 2016 MNikkei 225 Fund the
fund administrator is Stalte Streel Fund Services (Ireland) Limited and fund custodian is State Streel
Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited. For Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund the fund administration is State
Street Cayman Trust Company, Lid and fund custodian is State Street Bank and Trust Company. A
separate Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements have been prepared for these 4 sub-funds.

The Manager |5 J.P. Morgan Mansar Management Limited (he *Manager”), a member of the J.P.
Morgan Group. The Manager was incorporated as a imited liabllity company under the laws of England
and Wales on 7 Movember 2007, The Manager is authorised by the Financial Conduct Autherty (FCAT
in the UK pursuant to the AIFMD Regulations. The principal activily of the Manager is to manage
collective invesiment schemes and special purpose wehicles. The Manager s an assel management
company regulated by the FCA and based within the Invesiment Bank of JP. Morgan Chase. The
Manager's focus is lo deliver, amongst olher iniliatives. inmovative Assel Management products fo
institutional clierts and inlermediaries globally (excluding the USA) on a customised basis.

The Trustee of the Trust is Intedrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited (the "Trustee").

For the purposes of AIFMD. the Trust will consliuted a Mon-European Economic Area ("NOMN-EEA™) AlF
with &8 European Economic Area (EEA") AIFM. The distribution of this trust is restricted lo Japanese
imsestor onty.

More than one class of units may be issued in respect of each sub-fund and the Manager may, in its
abzolute discretion. diferentiale betwean the rights attaching to the differant classes within a particular
sub-fund including. without limitation, the dividend policy, the currency in which the class is denominated,
the level of management fees, the subscription charge and/for the redemption charge payable in respect
of each class. In addition, a sub-fund may use Financial Derivative Instrumenis on behalf of specific
classes in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed. Subject lo the foregolng, a separale pool
of assets will not be maintained for each class.

The Manager may also classify units in series within each class for the purposes of calculating fees. Any
ouistanding series of units may, in the discretion of the Manager be redesignaled and converted (after
the payment or accrual of all applicable fees and expenses) inlo units of another series at the prevailing
net assel value per unit of such other serdes.

As at 11 May 2020 (date of termination), the sub-funds. Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources
Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund, issued 1 class of unils,

As al 3 June 2020 (dale of terminalion). the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and ERL 2x Bear Fund, issued
1 class of units.

The assets of each sub-fund will be invested in accordance with the imsestment objectives and policies
of that sub-fund as set oul in this Prospeclus or, as the case may be, he relevant Supplemeni Deed.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1.

General Information (continued)

BRL 2x Bull Fund
ERL 2x Bear Fund
China 2x Bull Fund
China 2x Bear Fund

Date of launch
11 December 2014
11 December 2014
11 December 2014
11 December 2014

Date of constitution

8 December 2014
& December 2014
8 December 2014
8 December 2014

Gold 2x Bull Fund 11 December 2014 8 December 2014
Gold 2x Bear Fund 11 December 2014 8 December 2014
India 2% Bull Fund 11 December 2014 8 December 2014
India 2x Bear Fund 11 December 2014 8 December 2014
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund 11 May 2015 8 May 2015
Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund 11 May 2015 8 May 2015
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund 11 May 2015 8 May 2015
ALD Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201603 20 Seplember 2016 12 August 2016
ALID Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201612 30 December 2016 9 November 2016
LIS Technology ¢ Bull Fund 10 March 2020 20 February 2020
LS Technology 2x Bear Fund 10 March 2020 20 February 2020

The investment objective for each of the 15 sub-fund are listed below,

The BRL 2 Bull Fund were sought to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-limes (2x) leveraged
exposura to the performance, whether positive or nagative, of the Braziian Real ("BRL") relative to the
Japanese Yen (the "BRLAJPY™), in the medium-term.

The BRL 2x Bear Fund were sought to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-times (2x)
leveraged exposure to the inverse (or opposite) performance, whether positive or negative, of the
Brazilian Real (BR") relative to the Japanese Yen (the "BRLAPY™), inthe medium-term.

The China 2x Bull Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a twodimes (2x) leveraged
exposure to the perfermance, whether postive or negative, of the Hang Seng China Enterprises Index
ithe “HECEI"), hedged In Japanese Yen, in the medium-term.

The China 2x Bear Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenzes. a two-limes (2 leveraged
exposure fo the inverse {or opposite) performance, whelher positive or negative, of the Hang Seng China
Enterprises Index (Ihe "HSCEI™). hedged in Japanase Yen, in lhe medium-tem.

The Gold 2x Bull Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-limes (2x) leveraged
exposure fo the performance, whether positive or negative, of the SPDR Gold Trust exchange traded
fund (the "ETF"), hedged in Japanese Yen, in the medium-lerm.

The Gold 2x Bear Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-limes (2x) leveraged
exposure to the inverse (or opposile) performance, whether posilive or negative, of the SPDR Gold Trust
exchange fraded fund (the “ETF"), hedged in Japanese Yen. in lhe medium-term.

The India 2x Bull Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-times (2x) leveraged
exposura lo the performance, whather positive or negalive, of the CNX Mifty Indax dhe "CMNX Nifty™),
hedged in Japanese Yen, inthe medium-lerm,

The India 2x Bear Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-times (2x) leveraged
exposure to the Inverse (or opposite) performance, whether posiiive or negative, of the CMX Mifty Index
{the “CMX Mifty™), hedged in Japanese Yen, inlhe medium-term.

The Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund were sought o provide, before any fees and expenses, income
and capital appreciation. in the medium-term, through an exposure 1o (i) @ basket of single comm odity
indices referencing crude oil and gold; (i} a syslemalic covered call option stralegy dhe “Overlay
Strategy™); and (iil) the peformance, whelher positive or negative, of the Brazilian Real ("'BRL) relathe
to the LS. Dallar ("LUISD7).

The Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund were soughl to provide, before any fees and expenses, income
and capital appreciation. in the medium-term, through an exposure to (i) a baskel of single comm odity
indices referencing crude oil and gold; (i) a systemalic covered call option strategy dhe “Cverlay
Strateqy”); and (i) the performance, whether positive or negative, of the Turkish Lira ("TRY"™) relative to
the LS. Dollar ("LISD").
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
1. General Information (continued)

The Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund were sought to provide, before any fees and expenses, income
and capital appreciation, in the medium-term, through an exposure to (i) a basket of single commodity
indices referencing crude oi and gold; and (ii) a systematic covered call option strategy (lhe "Chwverlay
Strategy”™).

The AUD Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201809 and the AUD Targel Malurity Bond Fund 201612 both
sub-funds seek to achieve medium to long term capiial appreciation while aiming to protect 100% of the
initial issue price per unit al the maturity date. Both the sub-funds will invest in AUD denominated linked
noles issued by a special purpose company and through exposure to the performance of the ETF
Efficiente Index hedged in AUD consisting of several exchange traded fund ("ETF"s). while aiming to
protect 100% of the issue price per unit in AUD at the maturity.

The AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201603 and the ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612 will both
mature on 30 Seplember 2022 and 30 December 2022 respactively,

The US Technology 2x Bull Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-limes (2x)
leveraged exposure to the performance, whether positive or negative, of the NASDAQ 100 Stock Index
the "MAZDAQ"Y, inthe medium term.

The LS Technology 2x Bear Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-limes (2x)
leveraged exposure o the parformance, whether positive or nagative, of the NASDAQ 100 Stock Index
{the "MASDAQ™, inthe medium term.

z Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are sel out
below, These policies have been consistently applied to the period presented, unless olherwize stated.

All references to net assel value ("MAV") throughout these financial statements refer to nel assets
aliibutable to unitholders (after amorisation of preliminary expenses adjustment) unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial stalements of the Sub-Funds have been prepared in accordance with Infemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS"). The financial stalements are prepared under the historical cost
comvention as modified by lhe fair valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) held at fair value through profit or loss.

The sub-funds. Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund, Resources Twin
Alpha LISD Fund, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2% Bear Fund, had been terminated and as a result, the
sub-funds” basis of accounting had been changed from the geing concern basis to the liquidation basis
which required the assels and liabilities o be staled al their eslimated realisable value and settlement
amounts. The adoplien of the liquidation basis of accounting did not have a material effect on the carrying
values of assels and liabilities and the presentation of the financial stalements as at 11 May 2020 and 3
June 2020,

The preparation of financial sialements in comformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates, Il also requires the directors to exercise its judgement in the process of apphying
the sub-fund's accounting policies. The principal accourting policies adopled in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below.

MNew Standards adopted as at 1 July 2019

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 ‘Leases” replaces |AS 17 ‘Leases’ along with three Inlerprelations. Leases will be recorded in
fhe statement of financial position in the form of a righl-of-use assel and a lease liability. There are two
imporiant reliefs provided by IFRS 16 for assets of low value and shord-term leases of less than 12

months. The Manager is assessing the impact of this standand and it is not expected to have a significant
impact on the financial staltemenis of the sub-funds.
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2
(a)

(&)

Surnmary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Easis of preparation (continued)

A number of new standards, amendments lo standards and Inlerpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 Juty 2019, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements.
Mone of these are expecled to have a significart effect on the financial stalements of the sub-funds,

« IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

+ Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)

« Defingion of Material (Amendments fo 1AS 1 .and 1AS 8)
+ Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(i} Classification and initial measurement of financial assets
Except for those rade receivables thal do not contain a significant financing component and are
measured al the transaction price in accordance with IFRS 15, all financlal assets are initially
measured at fair value adjusted for ransaclion cosls.

Financial assets, other than those designated and effeclive as hedging instruments, are classified
into the following categaries:

. amorlised cost;
. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);
. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

In the periods presented. the sub-funds do not have any financial assels categorised as FVOCI,
The classification is determined by beih:

. the business model for managing the financial asset
. the confractual cash fiow characlenstics of the financial assel.

Allincome and expenses relating to financial assets are recognised in stalemen! of comprehensive
income as income or expenses, except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented
within other expenses.

{iij Subsequent measurement of financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured al amorised cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and
are not designated as FWTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect
its contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assels give rise 1o cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount oulstanding

After initial recognition, these are measured al amorised cost using the effective interest mefhod,
Discounting is omitled where the effect of discounting is immalerial.

The sub-funds” cash and cash EHWHIHHS. interest receivable, amount due from brokers, due from
unitholders, management fee rebate and other receivables fall into this category.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)

2. Surnmary of significant accounting policies (continued)

() Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
(iii} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different business mode! other than ‘hold te collect” or ‘hold
to collect and sefl’ are categorsed al fair value |hrough fair value through profit and loss. The
coniractual cash flows of the sub-funds’ debt securilies are solety principal and interest, however,
these securities are naither held for the purpose of collacling confraciual cash flows nor held both
for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collection of contractual cash fiows is only
incidental to achieving the sub-funds’ business model’s objective. Consequently, all investments
are measured a fair value through profil or loss. All derivative financial Instruments fall into this
category.

The fair value of financial assets and liabililies traded in adive markets is based on their quoted
markel prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market prices used for
financial assets held by the sub-funds are the market closing price at reporting dale.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the "financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are included in the statement of comprehensive income within “net gains of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”in the period in which they arise.”

{iv] Impairment of financial assets
IFRS %'s impaiment requirements use more forward looking information to recognize expected
credit losses - the 'expected credit losses (ECL) model'. Instruments within the scope of the new
requirements included loans and other debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost and
FWOCO, frade recebvables, conlract assels recognised and measured under IFRS 15 and loan
commitments and some financial guarantee contracts (for the issuer) that are not measured at fair
value through profit or loss.
The Manager considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring
expecled credit losses, Including past events, currenl conditions, reasonable and supporable
forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the fulure cash flows of the instrument.
In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made belween:

- financial instruments lhal have nol deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial
recognifion or thal have low credit risk (Stage 17 and

- financial instruments that have deleriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognifion
and whose credil risk is not low (Stage 27).

“Slage 3" would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment a the reporting
date.

“12-month expected credit losses’ are recognised for the first category while ‘lifetime expected credil
lossas’ are recognised for the second category.

Measuremenl of the expected credit losses s delermined by a probability-weighted estimale of
credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument,

There are no expected credit losses for the sub-funds as at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019,
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)

2. Surnmary of significant accounting policies (continued)

L] Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
(v} Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The sub-funds’ financial liabilfies include frade, expenses and other payables and derivative
financial instruments.

Financial labilties are initially measured al far value, and, where applicable, adjusled for
fransaction costs unless the sub-funds’ designated a financial liability at fair value through profif or
loss.

Subsequently, financial liabilties are measured al amortised cosl using lhe effective inferest
method except for derivalives and financial liabiliies designated at FWVTPL, which are carried
subsequenily at fair value with gains or losses recognised in statemert of comprehensive income,

{vi) Valuation of investments

The sub-funds have ertered inle a Financial Derivative Inslruments ("FDI%) and in particular Swap
confracts with J.P. Margan Chase Bank M.A. under a Master Agreement. On any valuation date,
swaps are valued using the counterparty's iradable market price, and the counterparty is engaged
in providing a daily liquidity in such derivative with limiled bid-offer spreads.

The hanager has sel up a counter valualion process thal is performed by the porifolio managers.
The portfollo managers subject each FDI in each sub-fund to a dally valuation and have processes
and controls in place to challenge the counterparty's FDI valuation with the valuation. The sub-
funds also invest in LS Treasury Bills and Japanese Government Bonds which are valued on the
valuation day at the last fraded price guoted on a recognised markel.

The AUD denominated performance linked notes will be issued at a discount (38%) to their principal
amourt (the “Mole Principal Amount™ and have been designed lo redeem al a value af least to
100% of the Mote Principal Amount on maturity date,

The following reference assels of Ihe notes include:

(i) Japanese Government Bonds ("JGBs™);
(il) an AUDJIPY currency swap with JP. Morgan Securities PLC (lhe "Swap Counterparty™); and
{ili) a notional leveraged exposure to the ETF Efficiente Index hedged in ALD.

On any valuation date, the AUD denominated performance link notes are valued using the
counterparty’s tradable market price. and the counterpary is engaged in providing a daily liquidity
in such performance link notes with imiled bid-offer spreads.

Tolerance gaps are defined for each FDI prior to the launch of amy sub-fund. These gaps take into
account the characieristics of the FDI being employed by the sub-funds in meeting its imwestment
objectives and define the valuation variance above which valuations may be recalculaled or
disputed and escalated further should the dispule remaln unreselved.

Any valualion differences that exceed lhat predefined maximum tolerance gap are escalaled to the
Internal Risk Management and Conirel Funclion of the Manager, which reviews causes for the
discrepancy.

In the event that the Intemal Risk Management and Confrol funclion of the Manager are unable to
resolve the diference, they will escalale that dfference o the Manager's Valuation Committes
together with delail of the investigations performed, The Valuation Committee comprises the CEQ
of the Manager, the Head of Risk Management and Conirel and a representative from J P. Morgan's
Corporate Valuation Contral Group o provide exper valuation advice.

Where dispules are not resolved, they are escalaled to the Board of Direclors of the Manager.

During the life of the FDI, itz notional value will increase or decrease (as adjusted for subscriptions
and redemptions) as the reference assel increases or decreases in value.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)

2. Surnmary of significant accounting policies (continued)

L] Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
(vi] Valuation of investments (continued)

Realised gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent the
difference between disposal proceeds or valualion and hisloric cost and lake Inte account all
brokers' charges and commissions. Realised and unrealised gains or losses on financial aszels al
fair value through profit of loss is recorded In the statement of comprahensive Income.

[vii) Recognition/derecognition

Reqular-way purchases and sales of invesiments are recognised on trade date - the date on which
the sub-funds commit to purchase or sell the invesiments. Investments are derecognised when the
rights fo recelve cash flows from the investmenis have expired or the sub-funds have transfemred
substaniialty all risks and rewards of ownership.

() Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
iz entered Inlo and subsequently are re-measured at their fair value, Al derivalives are camed as assels
when their fair value is positive and as liablities when their fair value is negative. Changes in fair values
of derivatives are included in the statemenl of comprehensive income. The price is based on
counterparly tradable markel price.

(d) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities raded in active markels (such as publicy traded
derivatives and trading securities) is based on quoted markel prices al the date of the slatement of
financial position.

When the sub-funds hold derivatives with offsetting market risks. it uses mid-market prices as a basis
for establishing fair values for the offsetling risk posflions and applies this bid or asking price o the net
open position, as appropriate.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not iraded in an active market is delermined using
bid price of broker quotes. In particular, the fair value of debt securities is defermined by reference to the
broker quotes as oblained from independent pricing sources include Financial Times Evaluated and
Bloomberg for Japan Government Bonds. For U.S. Treasury Bills, the pricing sources incduding Financial
Times Interactive Dala and Financial Times Evaluated. The ALID denominaled performance linked notes
aims lo deliver a retumn linked to the performance of the ETF Efficiente Index hedged in ALD until 15
Seplember 2022, while protecting 100% of the Mote Principal Amount on the Mote Malurity. This level of
protection s achleved through the combination of the JGBs and the ALDJIPY currency swap. J.P.
Morgan Securities plc shall assume the responsibility for making certain calculations and determinations,
in respect of the ETF Efficlents Index.

(&) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offsel and fhe net amount is reported in the slatement of financial

position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounis and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the assel and seltle the liability simultaneowshy.

L] Amounts due fromfto broker

Amounis due fromfAo broker represent receivables for securlles sold and payables for securities
purchased that have been contracled for bul nol yet setiled or delivered on the vear end date
respactively,

48

167/329



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2 Surnmary of significant accounting policies (continued)

i) Amounts due fromfto broker (continued)

These amounts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequenily measured at amortised cost. Al
esach reporting date, the sub-funds shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at an
amouni equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since
initlal recognition. If, at the reporling dale, the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the sub-funds shall measure the loss allowance al an amount equal lo 12-month expected
credit losses, Significant financial difcultias of Ihe counterparties, probability that the counterparties wll
enter bankruptey or financial reorganization, and default in payments are all considered indicators that
aloss allowance may be required. If the credil risk increases (o 1he point that it is considered to be credi
impaired, interest Income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the loss
allowance.

1] income and expenses

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the efeclive interest method. It
includes interest income from cash and cash equivalents and on debt securilies at fair value through
profit orloss.

Expenses are accounied for on an accrual basis.
) Foreign currency translation
() Functional and presentation currency

Items included in each of the sub-fund's financial statemenis are measured using the currency of the
primary economic emvironment in which it operales (the unctional currency”). This is the Japanese
Yen (the “JPY™) for BRL 2x Bull Fund, BRL 2x Bear Fund, China 2« Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund,
Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, Resources Twin
Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund. Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund, US
Technelogy 2x Bull Fund and US Technelegy 2x Bear Fund and the Australian Dallar (the “ALID®) for
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, which reflacts
the primary capital raising market.

The financial stalements are presenied in the Japanese Yen ithe "JFY") for BRL 2x Bull Fund, BRL
2% Bear Fund, China 2x Bull Fund. China 2¢ Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold Zx Bear Fund, India
2% Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund. Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY
Fund, Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and LS Technology 2x Bear
Fund and the Australian Dollar (the "ALID") for ALD Target Maturity Eond Fund 201603 and AUD
Target Malurity Bend Fund 201612,

(ii} Transactions and balances

Foreign cumency transactions are lranslated into the funclional currency using the exchange rates
prevalling al the dates of the transactions. Forelgn currency assets and liabilities are transiated into
the funciional currency. using the exchange rate prevailing at the financial posilion date, Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting fram the sefllement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-endfperiod-end exchange rates of all assels and liabilitles denominated in forelgn currencles
are recognised inthe stalement of comprehensive Income.

The sub-funds do nol isolate that porion of gains or losses on frading securities and derivative
financial instrumenis which is due to changes in foreign exchange rates from that which is due to
changes in the markel price of securities. Such fluctuations are included in the net gains or losses
on financial assels and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income,

i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks. other shord-term highly liquid

imvestments with original maturities of three monihs or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafis, if any,
are shown as liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2
i

(k)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Redeemable participating units

Unitholders may request the sub-funds to redeem all or any of their units on any redemption dale at the
net asset value per unil on such redemplion dale, in accordance wilh the redemplion procedures,
provided that a propedy completed redemption request, accompanied by such evidence of ownership as
the Transfer Agent may reques, is received by the Transfer Agen! before the relevant dealing deadline,

The minimum redemption amount lhat applies to a sub-fund is contained in the Prospecius or, as the
case may be, the relevant Supplement. The Manager may, in its absolute discretion, walve the minimum
redemption amount for each class in general, or in respect of a specific redemption request in whole or
in part.

Unils are classified as financial §abilties when there are more than one seres of class of units
outstanding for a sub-fund as al the statement of financial position date as these unils are subject o
differert rates for management fee calculation and therefore do nol meet all the condilions under |AS 32
{Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and |AS 1 (Amendment) "Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation™ for classification as
equity, Linils are classified as equity when there is only one series of class of units outstanding for a sub-
fund as at the statement of financial posiion date and these unilts meet all the olher conditions of equity
classification under 1AS 32 (Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and IAS 1 {Amendment)
“Presentation of Finandal Statemenis — Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligalions Arising on
Liquidation”, including the condition that these units were the most subordinated units in issue in that
sub-fund.

Taxation

The sub-funds currenily Incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on Imestment income and
capital gains. Such Income or gains are recorded gross of withholding taxes in the slalement of
comprehensive income.

Withholding laxes are shown as a separale item in the slatement of comprehensive income.

Refer to Nole 15 for delads of laxalion,

Preliminary expenses

The preliminary expenses of lhe Trust and each sub-fund are bomed by the respeclive sub-fund. The
preliminary expenses incurred in the eslablishment of the Trust and the sub-funds are recognised as
axpenses of the sub-funds in the year in which they arise.

Distributions

The Manager has the absolute discrefion to determine whether a distribution is to be made. In such an
event, an appropriate amount will be transfemred to a distibution account to be paid on the distribution
date,
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
2 Surnmary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{m} Significant estimates and judgment

The preparation of the financial statemenis requires management to make judgements. eslimates and
assumplions lhat affect the reported amounts of assels and liabilities, andthe accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncerdainty about these assumptions and estimales could
result in outcomes thal require a matedal adjusiment lo the carrying amount of assels or liabilities
affected in fulure periods.

Taxes

Uncerainties exist with respect to the interprefation of complex lax regulations and changes in lax laws
on foreign withholding lax. Given the irvestments in FDI, the differences arising between the aclual
investment income and the assumptions made, or fulure changes to such assumptions, could
necessitate fulure adjusiments to tax expense already recorded, The sub-funds establish provisions,
based on reasonable estimales, for possible consequences of audils by the tax aulhorities of the
respective countries in which it invests. The amounts of such provisions are based on various factors,
such as experience of previous lax audits and differing interprelations of tax regulations by lhe taxable
entity and the responsible lax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective investment’s domicile. As the sub-funds
assess (he probability for litigation and subsequent cash outflow with resped o taxes as remole, no
cortingent liabilty has bean recognised.

Refer to Mole 15 for delails of taxalion.
(o) Ligquidation basis of accounting

As at 11 May 2020 (date of termination), the unitholders of the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL
Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund, had redeemed all the
redeemable paricipating units. The trustee in consultation with the Imvesiment Managers had agreed to
wind-down the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund and
Resources Twin Alpha LISD Fund, once the proceeds had been paid oul fo the unitholders.

As at 3 June 2020 (dale of termination). the unitholders of the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2
Bear Fund. had redeemed all the redeemable participating units. The trustee in consullalion with the
Investment Managers had agreed fo wind-down the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Eear
Fund, ence the proceeds had been paid out to the unitholders.

The sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BERL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund, Resources Twin
Alpha USD Fund, BRL Zx Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, basis of accounting had been changed
from the going concermn basis fo the liquidalion basis. The assels and liabilities of the sub-funds,
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund, Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund,
BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, are derecognized. Investments were derecognized on the
trade date of disposal. The resultant realized gains and losses on the sales of invesimenis were
computed on the basis of ihe difference between the weighted average cost and selling price gross of
transaction cosls, and are taken up inthe stalement of comprehensive income.

3 Financial risk manageamant

The sub-funds' aclivities expose them lo a variety of risks, including but not limiled to market price risk,
interest rate risk, cumency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments held.
The financial instruments are held In accordance with the published invesiment policies of the sub-funds
and managed accordinghy to achieve the investment objectives,

The risks and the respective sk management policies employed by the sub-funds o manage these risks
are discussed below:

(a) Market price risk

Market risk arises mainky from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents
fhe polential loss the sub-funds might suffer through holding markel positions in the face of price
movements. Market risk is managed by the Manager. In the case of these sub-funds, markel risk within
the Financial Derivative Instrument will be significant, but is enfirely in line with investor retums. Realised
and unrealised gains are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they
arise,
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
(a)

Financial risk management (corfinued)

Market price risk {confinued)

Az al 11 May 2020 (date of termination), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BERL Fund, Resources
Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund had no investment holdings.

As al 3 June 2020 (date of termination), the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, had

had no invesiment holdings.

As at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019 the overall market exposures are as follows:

BRL 2x Bull Fund
3 June 2020 (date
of termination) 2019
JPY000 JPY000
Listed debit secyrfias 291 25T
D atives
-Inde Swian tramsacion 4814
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss S 0T 1
BRL 2x Bear Fund
3 June 2020 (date
of termination) 2018
JPY 000 JPYO0D
Listed debil secunhas 21032
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 21032
Dadrvativies
-Inde swap tramsaction 409
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4949
China 2x Bull Fund
2020 2018
JFY 000 JBVO00
Listed debt securities 177,143 362201
Damvatives
-index swap transachon - 36227
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 177,143 0B 478
Denmvatives
Index swap transachion 11,112
Total financial llabliities at fair value through profit or loss 11,112
Chira 2x Bear Fund
2020 2019
JPY 000 JPYTO00
Ligted debt secunlias 100 054 203 152
Denvalives
Index swap transaction 5,152 .
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 105,235 23152
Demvalives
-indax swap transaction 32935
Total financial liabilities at fair value threugh profit or loss 32938
Gold 2x Bull Fund
2020 '_@919
JPY 000 JFT 000
Listed debt secunties 2125 77020
Demvatives
-Index sweap transaction A0 G600 16 545
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 231 858 93 568
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 Financial risk management (corfinued)

(a) Market price risk {confinued)

Geld 2x Bear Fund
2020 2019
JPY 000 JPYO00
Listed debl secunias 31,336 6 506
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 31325 6506
Damvatives
-Index swiap transaction 4345 1224
Total financial liabilities at fair value thraugh profit or loss 4 345 1224
India 2x Bull Fund
2020 20158
JPYO00 JEYTOO00
Listed debt securities s B £43 954
-index swiap transaction 7504 -
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BZ13 [FEEETT]
Denmvatives
-Index swap transachion 32610
Total financial llabilities at fair value through profit or loss 32610
India 2x Bear Fund
2020 2018
JPY 000 JPYTO00
Listed debit securhias 26933 128,361
index Swap transacion . 4612
Total financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss Joaxt 132973
Derrvatives
-Index sweap transaction 255
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 356
Re=zources Twin Alpha BRL Fund
11 May 2020
(date of
terminati on) 2018
JPY 000 JPYTO0
Listed debt securnities 12710
-Index sweap transaction 55
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 72T 078
Re=zources Twin Alpha TRY Fund
11 May 2020
{date of
terminati on) 2018
JPYO00 JPYI00
Listed debt securities 235,193
-Index swap transachon 10324
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2R 01T
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (conlinued)
(a) Market price risk {confinued)
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund
11 May 2020
{clate of
terminati on) 219
LJPY 000 SJPYD00
Listed debt secunties 233140
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 233140
Demvatives
-Index swiap transaction 42 167
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or logs a2 167
ALUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
2020 2018
AUD ALID
Performance bnked ndtes 118 851 840 122 200 853
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 118,851 840 122 280 853
ALUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
2020 2018
AUD AUD
Performance bnked notes 35 752 186 37 281 105
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 35,752,180 A7 ,281 105
US Technology 2x Bull Fund
2020
JPYO00
Listed debt secunties S1g8.a41
Dwanvatives
-Index swap transaction AT 400
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 556 341
LS Technology 2x Bear Fund
30
SPYO00
Listed debt securities 130,620
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 130620
Dervalives
Index swap transachon 8359
Total financial llabllities at falr value through profit or loss 8350

As at 11 May 2020 (date of termination). the sub-funds. Resources Twin Alpha BERL Fund, Resources
Twdn Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund had no investment holdings and it had no
exposure to amy market risk. Accordingly, no price risk disclosures were presented for the financial perod

ended11 May 2020,

As al 3 June 2020 (date of lermination), the sub-funds, ERL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, had
had ne invesiment holdings and it had no exposure to any market risk. Accordingly, no price risk
disclosures were presented for the financial period ended 3 June 2020,
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
(a) Market price risk {confinued)

The table below is a summary of the significant sector and geographic concentration within the sub-funds'
debt securities porifolio as at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019

BRL 2x Bull Fund 3 June 2020 [date of termination) 2ms
Fair value %o of MAV Fair value %o of MAN
JEY 000 SJPY000
Japan
Govemment 291,257 7584
BRL 2x Bear Fund 3 June 2020 (date of termination) 2019
Fair value Yo of NAY Fair value S0 of NAY
JPYH000 JEY000
Japan
Gowermiment - 21 032 71492
China 2x Bull Fund 2020 2019
Fair value Y of NAY Fair value Yo of NAY
JPYE000 JPY000
Japan
Govarnment 177,142 Q0 45 362 01 B0 98
China 2x Bear Fund 2020 2019
Fair value Yo of NAY Fair value Yo of NAY
JEY000 JEY'000
Japan
Govermnmant 100 054 633 203,152 61.74
Gold 2x Bull Fund 2020 2019
Falr value Yo of NAY Fair value Yo af MNAV
JPY000 JPY 000
Japan
Government 251,258 51 20 77.020 50 88
Gold 2x Bear Fund 2020 2018
Fair value %o of NAY Fair value o of NAY
JEY000 JPY'000
Japan
Govarnment 31,336 &4 &0 B 506 71.17
India 2x Bull Fund 2020 2018
Fair value 5% of Maw Fair value O of NAY
JPY000 JPY'000
Japan
Government 273333 67 & 3 Gro 6316
India 2x Bear Fund 2020 2018
Fair valuea o of NAWV Fair value o of MAW
JPY000 JPYD00
Japan
Gavarnmant 2% 922 6220 128 261 74.62
55
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
(a)

Financial risk management (corfinued)

Market price risk {confinued)

Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund
United States of America
Govammant

Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund

United States of America
Government

Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund

United States of America
Gavarmment

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund

201609

Jersey
Financiad

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund

201812

Jersey
Financial

US Technology 2x Bull Fund

Japan
Government

US Technelogy 2x Bear Fund

Japan
Gavarmment

11 Many 2020 {date of termination) 019
Fair value %o of NAY Fair value o of AW
JPY'000 JPY000
TIT 021 26.03
11 May 2020 {date of termination) 2019
Fair value o af MAY Fair value % of NAY
JEY' 000 JEY000
225 183 o0 03
11 May 2020 {date of termination) 18
Fair value o off MAV Fair value %o of MAN
JEYOD0 SJPY000
833,140 £3.43
2019
Fair value Yool NAY Fair value Yo of MAY
ALD ALD
118,851 840 095 27 122 200 853 g8 45
298
Fair value Yo of NAV Fair value Yoof NAY
ALD ALD
35752186 90 25 a7.281,105 93 95
2020
Fair value ¥ of NAN
JPY 000
518 941 5509
2020
Fair value o of NAW
JPYTO00D
130 620 .77

The sub-funds have open swap conlract positions with JP. Morgan Chase Bank MN.A under financial
seclor with geographical concentration of England.

Except for the following sub-funds:

1y Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha
USD Fund which had no open swap contract positions with J P. Morgan Chase Bank M.A as at 11
May 2020 (date of termination); and
2y BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, which had no open swap contract positions with J.P.

Morgan Chase Bank M_A as al 3 June 2020 (dale of lermination).
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Financial risk management {confinued)
(a) Market price risk {confinued)
Price risk sensitivity provided below is assessed by shifting the relevant underlying index by +1% (30

June 2019 : +1%) or -1% (30 June 2019 : -1%) The sensitivity is deducled from the change in the
derivative price due to the applied shift and is presenied in the currency, as follows:

Fund Underlying  Effect onnet Effect on net Effect on net Effect on net
ghiftin aggets % asgels aggets % aggets
percentage 30 June 2020 {(JPYIAUD) - 30 Jure 2019 {JPYFALID) -
_ 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
L 2x Eull Fund 1% 1% - 1 4 262467
1% 1% - -1 -4 B2 467
EHL 2x Bear Fund 1% 1% - 1 5035
- 1% 1% - -1 503,531
_hina 2x Bull Fund 1% 1% 111,14 1 %_@3_.4?5
-1% 1% 111,124 -1 -35 930 475
China 2x Bear Fund 1% 1% =4 187 ] =33 267 358
A% 1% -54 187 -1 33267 358
F=old 2 Bull Fund 1% 1% 402 187 1 16,512 94
-1% 1% 402 187 -1 - 16,712 840
fGald 2¢ Besr Fund 1% 1% 43 451 | 21235 873
1% 1% 432451 -4 1,235 823
nda 2 Bl Fund % 1% 1=, 045 1 -32 935, 354
-1% -1% -T8 D45 =1 32 036 324
ndia 2x Bear Fund 1% 1% -13.562 1 4 658 264
-1% A% 13 562 -1 -4,656 264
BE0UTCES | WiN 1% 1% - 1 =40
jalpha BRL Fund 1% 1% - -1 -540
Fesowrces Twin 1% 1%, - 1 98 TTH
Apha TRY Fund =1% 1% -1 06 T75
AS0UTCES Tvan 1% % 1 355,312
2 pha USD Fund 1% 1% - -1 295,212 |
[ALID Target Matunty 1% 1% 1,182 518 1 122513762
Eond Fund 201803 1% 1% 1,188,518 1 423513762
A0 T arget Matunty % % 351 522 1 ITH53916
Eond Fund 201612 1% 1% -357 522 -1 3T 653918
LIS Technology 2¢ % 1% 374 04 .
Eull Fund 1% 1% 374,004
> Technology 2x 1% 1% -5 e
Ezar Fund -1% 1% 83 5689

The following sub-funds had no investment holdings. hence il had no exposure 1o any market risk and a
sensitivity anatysis had not been presented:

1) Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha

USD Fund as at 11 May 2020 (date of lermination); and
2}  BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, a= at 3 June 2020 (date of termination).

fb) Interest rate risk

Inferesl rale risk arises from the effects of fluctuations in the prevalling levels of markel Interest rates on
the fair value of financial assels and liabilities and fulure cash flows.

The ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and ALD Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201612 are exposed
to interest rate risk through their imvestment in Aries Finance Limited. When interest rales decline, the
value of fixed rate securities, which may include performance linked notes, can be expected to rise,
Corversely, when Interest rates rise, the value of fixed rate porifolio securities can be expected fo
decline.

As al 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, an increase/decrease of interast rates, with all other variables
remaining constant, would result in a decrease/fincrease of Ihe net assets attribulable to unitholders of
The ALD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 by approximately ALD -, -% (30 Jume 2019: ALD
1,170,173.26, 0.95%) and ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612 by approximately AUD -, -% (30
June 2019: 38263540, 1.02%).
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
L] Interest rate risk (conlinued)

As at 11 May 2020 (date of termination), the financial assets and liabilties of the sub-funds, Resources
Twin Alpha BERL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund, were
non-interest bearng or carrying minimal interesl. Hence, the sub-funds were not subject to significant
risk of fluctuations lo the prevailing levels of market interest rate. The sub-funds’ cash and cash
equivalents was exposed to interest risk which was considered fo be minimal by the Manager as they
were short lerm instruments with maturities of less than one month. As the sub-funds had inskignificant
interest bearing assels and liabilities, interest rate risk is deemed minimal and therefore no sensitivity
analysis had been disclosed,

As at 30 June 2019, Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund. Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources
Twin Alpha USD Fund are exposed o interest rate risk lhrough their investment in LIS Treasuries. When
interest rales decline, the value of fixed rale securties, which may Include US Treasuries, can be
expected to rise. Conversely, when interest rates rise, the value of fixed rate portfolio securities can be
expected to decine.

As al 30 June 2019, an increasefdecrease of interest rates, with all other variables remaining constant,
wiould result in a decreasefincrease of the nel assets atiributable lo unithokders of Twin Alpha BRL by
approximately JPY 2.986,810.21, 0.36%, Twin Alpha TRY by approximalely JPY 304,723 49, 0.36% and
Twin Alpha USD funds by approximately JPY 3,369,355.37, 0.36%.

As at 3 June 2020 (date of lermination). the financial assels and liabillies of the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull
Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, were non-interesl bearing or carrying minimal interest. Hence, the sub-
funds were not subject to significant risk of fluctuations to the prevailing levels of market interest rate.
The sub-funds” cash and cash equivalenl was exposed lo inferest risk which was considered to be
minimal by Manager as they were shor term Instruments with maturities of less than one month. As the
sub-funds had insignificant inferest bearing assels and liabities, inleres! rate risk is deemed minimal
and therefore no sensitivity analysis had been disclosed.

As at 20 June 2019, BRL 2¢ Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund were exposed to their invesiment in
Japanese Govemment Bands. When interast rates declined, the value of fixed rale securities, which may
inciude Japan Government Bonds, can be expected lo rise, Conversely, when interest rates rose, the
value of ficed rate perifolio securifies ¢an be expacted to decline.

As al 30 June 2019, an increase/decrease of interest rales, with all other variables remaining constant,
wiould resull in a decreasesfincrease of the nel assels attributable to unitholders of ERL 2 Bull Fund by
approximatehy JPY 77801148, 0.21%.

Ag al 30 June 2019, an increase/decrease of interest rates, with all other variables remaining constant,
would result in a decreasedncrease of the net assels atiributable to unitholders of BRL 2x Bear Fund by
approximately JPY 13861993, 047%.

China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Eear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2 Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund,
India 2x Bear Fund, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US Tachnology 2¢ Baar Fund are exposed to their
invesiment in Japanese Governmen! Bonds. When inlerest rates decline, the value of fixed rate
securities, which may include Japan Government Bonds, can be axpacad to rise. Conversely, when
interest rates rise, the value of fixed rate porifolio securities can be expected lo declne.

As al 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, an increase/decrease of interest rates, with all other variables
remaining constant, would result in a decrease/increase of the net assets alirdbutable to unitholders of
China 2x Bull Fund by approximately JPY 569,867.32, 0,29% (30 June 2019: JPY 1.502,154.09, 0.26%).

As al 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, an increase/decrease of interas! rales, wilth all other variables
remaining constant, would result in a decreasedincrease of Ihe net assets altibutable to unitholders of
China 2« Bear Fund by approximately JPY 333.511.28, 0.20% (20 June 2019: JPY 908.250.03, 0.28%).

As al 20 June 2020 and 20 June 2019, an increase/decrease of interest rales, wilh all olher varables
remaining constant, would result in a decreasedincrease of the net assets aftributable to unitholders of
Gold 2x Bull Fund by approximately JPY 1.000493.70, 0.21% (30 June 2015: JPY 62.206.72, 0.04%).

As at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, an increase/decrease of interest rales, with all other variables
remaining conslant, would result in a decreasefncrease of lhe net assets attibulable to unitholders of
Gold 2x Bear Fund by approximately JPY 103 964 24, 0.23% (30 June 2019: JPY 16,247 .27, 0.19%).
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
L] Interest rate risk (conlinued)

As al 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, an increasefdecrease of interest rales, wilh all other variables
remaining consiant, would result in a decreasedncrease of lhe net assets attribulable to unitholders of
india 2x Bull Fund by approximately JPY 1,226,031.22, 0.30% (30 June 201%9: JPY 2.626,094.53,
0.26%).

Az al 30 June 2020 and 20 June 2019, an increase/decrease of interast rales, wilh all olher variables
remaining consiant, would result in a decreasedncrease of Ihe net assets altibulable to unitholders of
India 2x Bear Fund by approximately JPY 88,143.93, 0.23% (30 June 2019: JPY 732.879.00, 0.43%).

As al 30 June 2020, an increase/decrease of interest rales, with all olher variables remaining constant,
wiould result in a decreasefincrease of lhe nel assets aliributable to unitholders of US Technology 2x Bull
Fund by approximately JPY 3,115,528.70, 0.33%,

As al 30 June 2020, an increase/decrease of interest rates, with all other variables remaining constant,
would result in a decreasesfincrease of the nel assets atinbutable to unitholders of US Technology 2x
Bear Fund by approximately JPY 515.797.17. 0.37%

BRL 2x Bull Fund
Ag at 3 June 020 (date of Mon-interest
termination) bearing Total
Uptolyear 1&years OverSyears
JEY000 JPY000 JEYO00 JPY000 JEYO00
Assels
Amount due rorm brokers . . . 124,796 124,796
Managemant fee rebate recaivable . . . 2125 2125
Cash and cash equivaents 238 - . - 2218
Total assets 2313 5 - 1260921 120,239
Liabilities
Due to unithol ders - - - 126199 126,129
Accrued expenses - - - 2.040 2040
Tatal liabilities . - - 128,738 124,239
As at 30 June 2019 Mon-interest
bearing Total
Uptolyear 15years Over5years
JPY 000 JPY000 JEY00 JPY000 JEY0D

Assels
Financial assets st far valse through

profit of loss 296,071 - - - 206,071
I nterest recevable 47 - - - 47
Management fee rebate recevable - - - 1.773 1,775
Cash and cash equivdents 715811 - - - 7581
Other receivables and prepayment - - - 25 250
Chue from unitholders - - - 1820 1820
Total assets 371,929 . . 3854 375 783
Liabilities
Amount due 1o Drokers . . . 2 2
Accrued expanses . . . 5370 5370
Total liabilities - - - 5352 FECH
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
L] Interest rate risk (conlinued)

BRL 2x Bear Fund
As at 3 June 3020 (date of Mon-interest
termination) bearing Total
Uptolyear 1&vyears OverSyears
JEY000 JPY'000 SJPEYO00 JPY000 JPYO00
Assets
Amount dus from brokers - - - 12210 122110
Managemant fee rebale recaivable . . 2389 2339
Cash and cash equivalents T7.147 - . - 77,147
Total assets ST 147 - - 124 494 201 646
Liabilities
Amount due to brokers - - - 62763 62, Te3
D to unithol ders - - - 136,805 136 805
Accrued expanses - - - 2078 2078
Taotal liabilities - - - 201,648 201 546
Az at 30 June 2019 Momn-interest
bearing Total
Upto1year 16years Over5years
JPY 000 JPY000 JPYO00 JPY000 JPY 000

Assets
Financial asseds at far vakue through

prodit or loss 21,082 . - - 21,032
| niterest receivable 4 . - - 4
Managemant foe rebate recaivabla . . . 1,923 1,923
Cash and cash equivaents 10,716 - - - 10, 76
Other receivables and prepayment - - - 258 2ok
Total aszets 31,752 - - 2181 33 113
Liabilities
Finanaal habilties at far valus through

profit o loss 499 - . . 4%
Accrued xpenses - - - 4184 4,189
Total liabilities EES] - - EREE] 4 658
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
L] Interest rate risk (conlinued)

China 2x Bull Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020 Mon-interest
bearing

Total
Uptolyear 15vyears OverSyears
JEY 000 JPY000 JPYO00 JPY000 JPYO00

Agsels
Financial assets at far value through

profit or loss 177,143 - . - 177,143
Interest raceivable az . . . 32
Management fes rebate recanable . B33 633
Cash and cash aquivaents 0947 . 30,947
Other recervables and prepayment . 718 718
Do fromn umitholders . . - 441 441
Total assets 208122 = - 1,792 200 914
Lizkllities
Financia! igbilities at far value through

profit or loss 1112 - 11,112
Accrued expenses - - - 2951 2051
Total liabilities 11,112 . . 25931 14,063
As at 30 June 2015 Mon-interest

Total

Uptel year 15vyears Ower5years
JPYO00 JPY'000 JPYO00 JPY000 JPY000

Assets
Financial asseis at far value through

profit or loss 398428 - - - 258,428
I nterest receivaie 102 - - - 1m
Management fes rebate recevable - 1,538 1928
Cash and cash equivdents 125014 - 125,014
Due from unitholders - - 72774 78774
Total assets 2,04 . . 80,312 603556
Liakilities
Amcunt due 1o brokers . . . 4 356 &,356
Accrued expenses - . - 5511 5511
Total liabilities - - - o 367 9567
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
L] Interest rate risk (conlinued)

China 2x Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020 Mon-interest
bearing Total
Uptolyear 1&vyears OverSyears
JEY000 JPY000 JEYO00 JPY000 JPYO00

Assels
Financia assets at far value through

profit or loss 105,236 - . . 105,226
Interest racevable 17 . . . 17
Amount due from brokers . . . 283 283
Managemant fee rebate recavable . . . 367 1)
Cash and cash equivaents 67,455 . . . BT 455
Other recavables and prapayment . . - 1,343 1,243
Total assets 172 108 - - ] 174,701
Liabilities
Dwe to unithol ders - - - 14,002 14,002
Accrued axpenses - - - 2783 2783
Tatal liabilities - - - 16813 16,815
Asz at 30 June 2019 Non-interest

Total
Upto1 year 15vyears OwerSyears
JPYO00 JPY'000 JPYO00 JPYO00 JPY 00D

Assets
Financial assets st far value through

profit of loss 233,152 - - - 203152
I nterest recelvaie 43 - - - 43
Amicunt due from brokers - - B8 648
Managemant fee rebate receveble - 1,718 1,718
Cash and cash equivdents 194,287 + 154,287
Dz from unitholders - - - 5979 6,979
Total assets Jar 482 - . L] 65,827
Liabilities
Finanaal habilities at Tar valus through

prodit or loss 32938 - 32438
Accruad expenses . - - 4,856 4 556
Total liabilities 32038 Z 5 4 BEE 37,794
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
L] Interest rate risk (conlinued)

Gold 2x Bull Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020 Mon-interest

bearing Total
Uptolyear 15vyears OverSyears
JEY 000 JEY'000 JPYO00 JPY000 JPYO00

Assels
Financial assets at far value through

profit o loss 291,858 - - - 291,858
Interest racervable 43 . d " A8
Amount due rom brokers . . . 1435 1,435
Cash and cash aquivaents 203,940 . . ! 2003, 940
Other recervables and prepayment . . . 1,017 1017
Do fromn umitholders . . - ] 950
Total assets A05 B46 = = 12 356 S8 102
Liabilities
Amount due to brokers - - - N 755
Due to unithaders - - - 19062 19,063
Accrued expenses - - - 3235 3225
Taotal liabilities - - . 23,043 PENCE]
As at 30 June 2019 Mon-interest

Total
Uptel year 15vyears Ower5years
JPYT00 JPY'000 SJPYO00 JPY000 JPY 000

Azzets
Financial asseis at far value through

profit of loss 93,56 - - - 93,568
| riterest receivable kL - - - 30
Management fes rebate receveble - - 1,760 1,760
Cash and cash equivdents 11,387 : 11,287
D from unitholders - - 53,709 53 7019
Total assets 104,950 : . 05,46 160,454
Liabilities
Amount due 1o brokers . . . 4. 757 4787
Accrued expenses - - - 4,332 4,333
Total liabilities - - - 9 59 .05
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
L] Interest rate risk (conlinued)

Gold 2x Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020 Mon-interest

bearing Total
Uptolyear 1&vyears OverSyears
JEY 000 JEY'000 JPYO00 JPYO00 JEYO00

Assels
Financial assets 2t far valee through

prodit of loss 31,326 - - - 31,226
Interest racevable a8 . . . 5
Amount due from brokers . . . A0S 408
Managemant fes rebate recaivable ; : 484 484
Cash and cash equivaents 12Mmsa . 12018
Otier recavables and prapayment . . . 1,194 1,194
Diiges fromn unithalders . . . 4728 4 728
Total agsets 44 243 - - B84 51,063
Liabilities
Financaad liabilities at far value through

profit or loss 4,345 - 4,345
Accrued expenses - - 1,708 1,708
Total liabilities 4 345 - g 1708 6053
As at 30 June 2015 Mon-interest

Uptol year 16years Ower §years
JEYO00 JPY'000 JEYO00D JEY000 JPYO00

Assels
Financial assets at far value through

profit of loss 6,506 - - - 6,506
I nterest recevable 1 - - - 1
Amount due from broksrs - - - 27 27
Management fee rebate receivable - - - 1.815 1815
Cash and cash equivadents 4,300 - - - 4,300
Other recaivables and prapayment « . . 1,116 1,116
Chue from unitholders o - - 20 260
Total assets 10,807 - - 3218 14 (125
Liabilities
Finanaal habilities at far valea through

profit or loss 1,224 - - - 1224
Accrued axpenses - - - 3 3 E60
Total liabilities 1,224 - - 3680 4 884
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 Financial risk management (corfinued)

L] Interest rate risk (conlinued)

Indla 2x Bull Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020 Mon-interest
bearing Total
Uptolyear 1&vyears OverSyears
JEY000 JPY000 JEYO00 JPY000 JPY 00

Assels
Financial assets 2t far valee through

prodit of loss 81127 . . . 281,127
Interest racevable Fju] . . - 0
Amount due from brokers . . . ] T3
Managemant fes rebate recaivable - Ly 231
Cash and cash equivaents 112902 - 112 202
Otier recavables and prapayment . 6ES £G5S
Diiges fromn unithalders . . . 18.816 18,816
Total assets 354 093 - - 19785 413 524
Liabilities
Amount due o brokers - - - GT6 LT
D to unithol ders - - - 4120 4,120
Accrued expenses - - - 4. 780 4, TED
Total liabilities Z - - 9 556 550
As at 30 June 2015 Mon-interest

Uptol year 16years Ower §years
JEYO00 JPY'000 JEYO00D JEY000 JPYO00

Assels
Financial assets at far value through

profit of loss 643,904 - 643 994
I nterest recevable 124 - 124
Amount due from broksrs - 478 473
Management fee rebate receivable - 1.259 1.259
Cash and cash equivdents 390,704 - 390,704
Dy from unitholders - - - 22 203 22 2493
Total assets 1,034 522 = = 24, 130 1,058 850
Liabilities
Finanaal habilities at far valua through

profit of loss 32610 - 32610
Accrued expenses - - - 5 550 5,550
Total liabilities IZE10 . = 5 550 39 160
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
L] Interest rate risk (conlinued)

Indla 2x Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020 Mon-interest
bearing Total
Uptolyear 1&vyears OverSyears
JEY000 JPY000 JEYO00 JPY000 JPYO00

Assels
Financia assets at far value through

prodit of loss 26,922 - - - 6,922
Interest racevable a8 . . - 5
Amount due from brokers . . . 118 1149
Managemant fee rebate recavable . . . 918 918
Cash and cash equivaents 4487 . . . 9,827
Otier recavables and prapayment . . . 11477 1177
Diiges fromn unithalders . . . 3.3 3339
Total agsets 236,514 - - 5535 42 450
Liabilities
Financaad liabilities at far value through

profit or loss 1,356 - - - 1,356
Accrued expenses - - - 2022 2022
Total liabilities 1,356 - g 7022 ]
As at 30 June 2019 Mon-interest

Lotal
Uptol year 16years Ower §years
JEY000 JPY000 JPYO00 JPY000 JPY000

Assels
Financial assets at far value through

profit of loss 132973 - - - 1324973
Interest recevable 40 - - - 40
Managemant fee rebate recavable - - 1,763 1,768
Cash and cash equivdents 41378 - = - 41,278
Total assets 174,291 - . 1,768 176, 029
Liabilities
Accruad expenses . . - 4,033 4,024
Tatal liabllities - - - EEE 4 (B0
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 Financial risk management (corfinued)

L] Interest rate risk (conlinued)

Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund
As at 11 May 2020 (date of Mon-interest
termination) bearing Total
Uptolyear 15vyears OverSyears
JEY000 JEY'000 SJPEYO00 JPY000 JPYO00
Agsels
Management fee rebate recaivable - - - BET7 GET
Cash and cash equivdents 61,334 - - . 51,334
Total assets 61,334 - - [EeH] B2 02T
Liabilities
D to unitholders - . - 98,185 58,185
Accrued expanses - - - 3,836 3536
Total liabilities - - - 652021 G2 021
Ag at 30 June 2019 Men-interest
bearing Total
Upto1year 15vyears Owver5years
JPYO00 JPY'000 JPYO00 JPY000 JPY 000

Azsets
Financial assets at far value through

profit or loss 727076 . . . T27 006
Cash and cach equivaents 105,068 . . . 105,068
Other recelvables and prepayment - - - 114 114
Total assets 832 144 « - 114 532258
Liakilities
Management fee payabls - - - BEE B85
Accrued expenses - - - 5722 5722
Taotal liabilities ] : . B 08 15,408
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (corfinued)

() Interest rate risk (conlinued)

Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund
Az at 11 May 2020 (date of Mon-interest
termination) bearing Total
Uptolyear 15vyears OverSyears
JEY000 JPY'000 JPEYO00 JPY000 JPYI00
Agsels
Management fee rebate recavable . - - BET 687
Cash and cash equivaents 31,496 - - . 31,496
Total assets 31,406 - - [ 37183
Liabilities
D tor unithol ders - . - 28703 28,704
Accrusd expanses - - - 3474 3474
Total liabilities - - - 32163 32183
Ag at 30 June 2019 Men-interest
bearing Total
Upto1year 15vyears Owver5years
JPY 000 JPY000 JPYO00 JPYT000 LJPD00

Azsets
Financial assets at far value through

profit o loss 235517 . . . 235517
Cash and cach equivaents 19,414 . . . 19414
Other recelvables and prepayment - - - 114 114
Total assets 254931 < - 114 255 (45
Liakilities
Management fee payabls - - - 199 194
Accrued expenses - - - 4 709 4, 700
Taotal liabilities ] : . < S & =08

187/329



PassIM Trust

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
)

Financial risk management (corfinued)

Interest rate risk (conlinued)

Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund
As at 11 May 2020 (date of Mon-interest
termination) bearing Total
Uptolyear 15vyears OverSyears
JEY000 JEY'000 JPYO00 JPY000 JPYO00
Agsels
Management fee rebats receivable - 68T GET
Cash and cash equivdents 142119 - - . 142 119
Total assets [EFNEE] - - [EeH] 142 E06
Liabilities
D to unitholders 1384972 138,473
Accrued expanses 3833 3E33
Total liabilities 142806 142 206
Ag at 30 June 2019 Men-interest
bearing Total
Upto1year 15vyears Owver5years
JPYO00 JPY'000 JPYO00 JPY000 JPY 000

Azsets
Financial assets at far value through

profit or loss 833,140 833,140
Cash and cach equivaents 146,752 . 146,752
Other recelvables and prepayment - - - 114 114
Total assets 979 692 - 2 114 S50, 006
Liakilities
Financad iabilities at far value through

profit or loss 42 167 s = = 42,167
Management fee payabis - . 807 s07
Accrued expenses - - 5400 5,403
Total liabilities 42 167 - - 6210 48 377

69

188/329



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
() Interest rate risk (conlinued)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund

201809
Ag at 30 June 2020 Mon-interest
bearing Total
Uptolyear 15vyears OverSyears
ALD AUD AUD ALID AUD
Assels
Financia assets at far value through
profit or loss = 1188515840 . - 118851840
| nterest receivable (566) . . : (S66)
Arnount dus from beokers . 19,450 19,430
Cash and cash equivaents a6o8 . 220 648
Otier recavables and prapayment . . - 2618710 2618 710
Total assets 223132 118851840 - 2EIZH0 1N 719172
Lizkdlities
Due to unithol ders - - - 1944 149,444
Accrued expenses = - - 1971850 1971850
Total liabilities - . - 1,501 754 1.887,254
As at 30 June 2015 Mon-interest
Total
Uptolyear 16vyears Ower5years
ALD ALD AUD AUD ALD
Assets
Financial assets st far value through
profit of loss - 122 200,853 - - 122 200,853
I nterest recelvaie 230,300 - - - 230,200
Amncunt due from brokers - 35767 35 Ter
Cash and cash equivdents 75,143 - 75,143
Other receivables and prepayment - - - 26514914 2651414
Total assets 305443 122 290 553 . 2687 181 125283 477
Liakilities
Management fee payable ‘ . . 216,722 216,723
D to umitholders . . . 35 686 35,686
Accrued expenses - - - 1436876 1,436 876
Total liabilities - = = 1 BEO JES 1,689 285
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
)

Financial risk management (corfinued)

Interest rate risk (conlinued)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund
201612

Ag at 30 June 2020 Mon-interest
bearing Total
Uptolyear 15vyears OverSyears
ALD AUD AUD ALID ALD
Assels
Financia assets at far value through
profit or loss 35,752 1868 35,752 166
| nterest receivable (8a7) (887)
Cash and cash equivalents 55,533 . 55,533
Other receivables and prepayment . - . 719688 714 658
Total agsets 54636 35752 136 E TI19658 36526 510
Liabilities
Accrued axpenses 502 Ba7 502 ea7
Total liabilities 502 6497 a2 537
Az at 30 June 2019 Mon-interast
bearing Total
Upto1year 1&years Over5years
ALUD ALD AUD ALUD ALD
Assets
Financial assets at far value through
profit of loss 37 281105 - - 37281105
| nterest racalvable 58,236 . . - 58,236
Cash and cash equivaents 5142 - 5,742
Cither receivables and prepayment - - - 132424 732434
Total assets BI0ZE A7 281105 - 732424 /07T 557
Liakilities
Management fee payable 40,036 40,026
Actrusd axpenses 360 313 360,213
Tatal liabilities El[EEY] 00,349
71
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
L] Interest rate risk (conlinued)

US Technolegy 2x Bull Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020 Mon-interest
bearing

Total
Uptolyear 15vyears OverSyears
JEY 000 JEY'000 JPYO00 JPY000 JPYO00

Assels
Financial assets at far value through

profit or loss 556,341 . . . 556,341
Interest racervable 1065 . . : 106
Amount due from beokers : . : 6577 6577
Managemant fee rebate recavable . B85 685
Cash and cash equivadents 224621 . 224 621
Do fron unitholders . . 314,320 314 320
Total assets TE1.067 - = 321587 1,102 E40
Lizbllities
Amiount due o brokers - - - 170371 170,271
Accrued axpenses - - - 5480 5460
Total liabilities . . - 175831 175,84
UE Technology 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2020 Mon-interest

bearing Total
Upto1year 1&years Over5years
SPY000 JPYC000 SPYO00 JPY000 SO0

Assets
Financial assets ot far value through

profit o loss 1200620 . . . 130,620
| nterest racelvable 18 . . . 19
Amount due from brokers - - - 32027 a2y
Management fee rebate recaivable - - 790 790
Cash and cash equivdents 103,175 - 103,175
Cther receivables and prapayment . . . 6 563 6,563
Total assets 213814 - - 39 380 273 154
Liakilities
Financaal habilities at far value through

profit o loss 8353 . £359
Amount due to brokers - - - 1.618 1618
D to unithol ders - - - 12372 123722
Accrued expenses - - 1,673 1672
Total liabilities 8,359 . . 127012 135,371

e} Currency risk

Cumency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will Auciuate due to changes in foreign
eichange rales.

The sub-funds may invest in financial instrumenis and enler into transactions denominated in cumencles
olher than its functional currency. Consequenily, the sub-funds are exposed to risks that the exchange
rate of iis functional currency relative o other foreign cumencies may change in @ manner that has an
adverse impact on the value of that porfion of the sub-funds' assels or liabillies denominated in
currencies other than the sub-funds functional currency.,

As al 11 May 2020 (date of termination), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources
Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund had no exposire to foreign currency risk
as the sub-funds no longer held financial imvestments,

Asat 3 June 2020 (date of terminalion). the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund had no
exposure to foreign currency risk as the sub-funds no longer held financial investments.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
() Currency risk (conlinued)

As al 30 June 2019, the sub-funds, BERL 2x Bull Fund, ERL 2x Bear Fund, Resowces Twin Alpha BRL
Fund. Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund held monetary assels
denominated in curencies cther than the Japanese Yen, the funclional currency. Currency risk, as
defined in IFRS 7, aroze as the value of future transactions, recognized monetary assels and monetary
liabilities denominated in ofher currencies fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Under
IFRS 7, Ihae forelgn exchange exposure relating o non-monatary assels and liablities iz considerad to
be a component of market price risk instead of foreign exchange risk,

The sub-funds, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India
2% Bull Fund., India 2x Bear Fund, LS Technology 2¢ Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund hold
monetary assets denominated in currencies other than the Japanese Yen. the functional currency. The
sub-funds, ALUD Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, hoid
monetary assets denominated in currencies ofher than the Austrafian Dollar, the functional currency.
Cumency risk. as defined in IFRS 7. arises as the value of fulure fransactions, recognized monetary
assets and monetary liabiliies denominaled in ofher currencies fluciuale due to changes in foreign
exchange rates, Uinder IFRS 7, the foreign exchange exposure relating lo non-monetary assets and
liabilities is considered to be a component of market price risk instead of foreign exchange risk.

During the year ended 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019 for China 2% Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund,
Gold 2 Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, AUD Targel Maturity
Bond Fund 201609, ALD Target Malurity Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and LS
Technology 2« Bear Fund there has been no exposure to forelgn currency risk as the sub-funds imest
in financial investments and swaps denominated in the functional currency.

As al 11 May 2020 (date of termination), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources
Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund had no exposure to forelgn currency risk
as the sub-funds no longer held financial imvestments,

As at 30 June 2019, the sub-funds Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund
and Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund may imvest In financial investments and enler inte lransactions
denominated in currencies other than its funclional currency. Consequently, the sub-funds may be
exposed lo risks that the exchange rate of its funclional currency relative to olher foreign currencies may
change in a manner thal has an adverse effecl on the value of that portion of the sub-funds” assets or
liabilities denominated in cumencies olher than the functional currency.

The tables below summarise the sub-funds’ financial assels and liabilities which are exposed to the risk
associated with the effects of fluclualions inthe prevailing levels of currency risk on its financial position
and cash flows, which are as follows:

BRL 2x Bull Fund
Ag st 3 Jure 2020 (date of termination)

EUR uso Total
JEYD00  JPYDOD  JPY'D00

Liabilities

Adrrunistration fes payables . 1.0:35 1.045
Audt fes payatls . 254 554
Cither payablas - 124 ]
Total liabilities . :-‘_E._J|3 2623
et currency exposure - {2 B23) 12 523)
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 Financial risk management (confinued)
() Currency risk (confinued)

Az at 30 June 2019

EUR Total

JEY000  JRYOD0D  JPY'000
Assets
Financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss i L
Other recervables and pre-payment i) 258
Total assets L] 258
Liabilities
Administration fee payable 3170 3.170
Audit fee payabla 581 SH
Cther payables 1619 1619
Total liabilities 5370 5370
Met currency exposure 15.111) 15111}
BRL 2x Bear Fund
As at 3 June 2020 (date of termination)

EUR Total

JPY 000 JPY000 LJPY 000
Liakilities
Administranon fee payable 1.045 1.045
Audt fee payable 184 154
Other payables - B37 537
Total liabilities 7076 T076
Net currency exposure 12 076 {2 076}
Az at 30 June 2019

EUR Total

JEYO00  JPYODD  JPY'DOD
Asgets
Cther recenabies and pra-payment 258 258
Total assets 258 258
Liabilities
Adrrunistration fes payable : 3170 370
Audt fes payabla a2 - a2
Cither payablas 427 a7
Total liabilities 92 4 097 4 189
et currency exposure [EH {3 539) 13831}
China Zx Bull Fund
Asg at 30 June 2020

EUR Total

JEYO00  JRYDO0D  JPY'D0O
Assets
Cther recesvaties and prepayment 718 718
Total assets 15 718
Liakilities
Administration fee payable 1.083 1.083
Audt fee payable 1.287 1.287
Cther payables 581 581
Total liabilties 2 951 2 951
IMet currency exposure {2233 {2,233
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (corfinued)

() Currency risk (confinued)

As at 30 June 2019
EUR usD Total
JPY000  JPYO00  JPY'0OD
Liabilities
Administration fee payable - 2. 76T 2. T6T
HAudt fee payable - 13 213
Trustee fes payvabla . 363 363
Cther payables . 1,568 1,568
Total liabilities - 5511 5511
Met currency exposure - 15511) 15.511)

China 2x Bear Fund

As at 30 June 2020
EUR usD Total
JEYD00  JPYDO0D  JPY'DOO
Assets
Cther recessables and pre-payment - 1343 1,343
Total assets ] 1,343 1,343
Liakilities
Administranon fee payable . 1,083 1.083
Audt fes payable ; 724 M
Other payables - a76 a6
Teatal liabilities - 2783 2 183
Net currency exposure - {14307 {1,440}
Ag at 30 June 2019
EUR ush Total
JEYO00  JPYODD  JPY'DOD
Liabilities
Administration fee payable - 2.767 .18}
Audi fee payable - 373 a7
Trustes fee payable - 363 363
Other payables - 1,353 1353
Tetal liabllities B 4 556 4 £56
Met currency exposure - {4 556 {4 856}

Gold 2x Bull Fund

As at 30 June 2020

EUR uso Tatal

JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Other recessabies and prapayrment - 1,017 1,017
Total assets - 1047 1017
Liabilities
Administration les payable . 1.082 1082
Auddt fes payabls J 517 517
Cither payables - 247 47
Total liabilities . 2 446 ]‘_&E
Met currency exposure T4 1429
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 Financial risk management (confinued)
() Currency risk (confinued)

As at 30 June 2019

Liabilities

Administration fee payable
Audt fee payable

Trustee fes payvabla
Cher payables

Total liabilities

Met currency exposure

Godd 2% Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2020

Assets
Other recessables and pre-payment
Total assets

Liakilities

Administranon fee payable
Audt fee payable

Other payables

Taotal liabilities

Net currency exposure

As at 30 June 2019

Asgets
Other recersabies and pre-payrnent
Total agsets

Liabilities

Adrrunistration fes payable
Audl fes payable

Trustee fee payable
Cther payabiles

Total liabilities

Met currency exposure

India 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2020

Aszets
Other recerdaties and pre-payment
Total assets

Liabilities

Administration fee payable
Audt fee payabile

Other payables

Total liabilities

Met currency exposure

EUR uso Total
JEYD00  JPY'DO0D  JPY000
2,767 2767
210 210
363 363
392 Q52
4337 433]
{4 337 {4,2337)
EUR uso Taotal
JEYDOO  JPY'DOD  JPY'000
1194
1154
1,082 1.082
- 40 40
- 586 S
- 108 T
[514] [514]
EUR uso Total
JPYD00  JPY'DOD  JPY'O00
1,116 1,116
1.116 1.116
2,767 2,767
(48] (3]
i a3
574 574
2 BE 3 66D
{2 544 12 544)
EUR usD Total
JRYDOO  JPY'DO0D  JPY'000
GBS BES
GhS (e
1.083 1.083
2498 2499
1.179 1.1749
4 T 4 760
{2 (15 {4 0105)
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 Financial risk management (confinued)
() Currency risk (confinued)
As at 30 June 2019

Liabilities

Administration fee payable
Audt fee payable

Trustee fes payvabla
Cher payables

Total liabilities

Met currency exposure

India 2% Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2020

Assets
Other recessables and pre-payment
Total assets

Liakilities

Administranon fee payable
Audt fee payable

Other payables

Taotal liabilities

Net currency exposure

As at 30 June 2019

Liabilities

Administrazion fes payable
Audt feo payable

Trustes fes payable
Other payables

Total liabilities

et eurrency exposure

Rezources Twin Alpha BRL Fund
Az at 11 May 2020 (date of termination)

Liabilities

Adrministration les payables
Ayt fes payabls

Ciher payablas

Total liabilities

Met currency exposure

EUR usD Total
JPYD00  JPYDOO  JPYDOD
2,767 2767
1.5% 1.5%
122 17
1565 1865
£ 550 6550
T
EUR UsD Total
JFYD0O  JPYDOD  JPYDOO
1477 1
1977 1377
1,063 1083
: 238 235
: 701 701
7002 Y]
{5435] {545]
EUR uso Total
JFYO00  JPYDOO  JPYTDOD
2767 2767
132 132
313 13
827 827
4039 4034
(4.039)  {4.039)
EUR usD Total
JPYDOO  JPYDOO  JPY'DOO
876 #76
1,042 1042
1870 1870
3705 3758
R N

77

196/329



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (confinued)
() Currency risk (confinued)
As at 30 June 2019
EUR usD Total
JPY000  JPYO00  JPY'0OD
Assets
Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss T3T0O76 T2T 076
Other recerables and pre-payment 114 114
Cash and cash equivalents 102 291 102,29
Total assets - S2adB]  Bra4B]
Liabilities
Administraton fee payable 3.087 3087
Audt fee payable 595 - 505
hanagement feo payable GEG GEG
Other payabiles . 20630 2040
Total liabilties 505 5813 408
Met currency exposure [505) 523 668 BI30T3
Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund
As at 11 May 2020 (date of termination)
EUR usD Tetal
JEYDOD  JPYO0D  JPY'DOD
Liabilities
Administration fes payable 876 876
Audt fes payable 910 910
Cither payables 1 6654 1,664
Total liabilities 2450 3450
MNet currency exposure 123.450] {3 450)
As at 30 June 2019
EUR uso Tatal
JPYO00  JPYO000  JPY'D0D
Aszets
Financial assets af fair vaue through profit or loss 25017 235517
Cther recessabies and pre-payment 114 114
Cash and cash equivalents 18434 18434
Total assets 254 065 254 065
Liabilities
Adminigtragion fes payablo - 3105 3105
Audt fes payable - 544 544
blanagenvent fee payable - 198 198
Other payables 1,060 1 0E0
Total liabilities 4 308 EELS
Met currency exposure 249 157 2449 157
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund
Az at 11 May 2020 (date of termination)
EUR uspD Total
JPYD00 JPY D00 JPYD00
Liabilities
Adrrunistration fes payable BT 87
Audi fee payable 1053 1053
Cther payabilas 1,812 1812
Total liabilities 3,742 3 142
et currency exposure q;!-_.i'-'l'ﬁ 13_-"1?]
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
(e}

Financial risk management (corfinued)

Currency risk (conlinued)
Ag at 30 June 2019
EUR usD Tatal
JPY000  JPY'O00D  JPY'00D
Assets
Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss - 333,140 833140
Cher recerables and pre-payment - 114 114
Cash and cash equivalents . 142 850 142 850
Total assets - BT 976 104
Liabilities
Financial liatilives fair value through prof or loss - 42 167 42 167
Administration fes payable - 3,03 3103
Audt fes payable - 599 Bt
Ktanagement fee payable . BOT 807
Cher payvables - 1,71 1.7
Total liabilities - CERET 48377
Met currency exposure . 927 7ar Q37T T

US Technolagy 2x Bull Fund

Asg at 30 June 2020
EUR usp Total
JEYDO0D  JPYDO0D  JPYD00
Liabilities
Administration fee payable - 470 470
Audt fee payable - 189 1859
Trustes fee payable - 127 127
Cther payablas = 4 674 4 674
Total liabilities - 5 AR 5 460
Met eurrency exposure - [EREE] [EE T

S Technol ogy 2x Bear Fund

As at 30 June 2020
EUR usp Total
JEYD00  JPYO000  JPY'00D
Liabllities
Administration fes payable - 470 470
Audt fee payable . 5T 159
Trustes fee payvable - 127 127
Other payables - 1.018 10138
Total liabilities . 1672 1672
Met currency exposure - {1672 {1672

As at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, the sub-funds, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD
Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201612 financial assels and liabilities are denominaled in the functional
currency and there has been no exposure 1o foreign curency risk,

As of 30 June 2019 the Resources Twin Alpha BRL, Resources Twin Alpha TRY and Resources Twin
Alpha LISD had investments in LIS Treasury Bills and LUSD cash deposits which are subject lo currency
fluctuation risk when converded into the denominated currency, JPY.

78

198/329



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
() Currency risk (confinued)

At 30 June 2019, 2 1% increase inthe USD/UIPY rate would have resulled in a JPY 1,066 592 increases
inthe Met Asset Value of Resources Twin Alpha ERL fund converted in JPY base curency. A decrease
of 1% would result In equal bul opposite effect.

At 30 June 2019, a 1% increase In the USDAPY rate would have resulted in a JPY 337,250 increases
inthe Met Asset Value of Resources Twin Alpha TRY fund converted in JPY base currency. A decrease
of 1% would result in equal bul opposile effect.

At 30 June 2019, a 1% increase In the USD/APY rate would have resulted in a JPY 859,670 increases
in the Met Asset Value of Resources Twin Alpha USD fund converted in JPY base currency. A decrease
of 1% would result in equal but opposite effect.

d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk counlerparty to a financial instrument fails to discharge its obligations and causes
the sub-funds to incur a financialless, The sub-funds seek lo minimise lhe risk of loss by careful choosing
the counterparties and by minimising the reliance placed on individual counterparties.

Investors should be aware that the sub-funds use dervalives such as swap Iransactions. When a swap
fransactions approaches maturity they may increase in value to reflect the amounts payable to the sub-
funds and consequently could represent an increased portion of the Met Asset Value of a sub-fund. Mo
guarantee is given, express or implied, that Unitholders will receive back the amount of their investment
in the Linis.

As al 11 May 2020 (date of lerminafion), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL, Resources Twin
Alpha TRY and Resources Twin Alpha USD, had no investiment holdings. Accordingly, no analysis by
credit raling was presented.

As al 3 June 2020 (date of termination), the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bul Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, had
no investment holdings. Accardingly, no analysis by credit rating was presented.

BRL 2x Bull Fund

30 June 2019 Credit rating Source of credit rating S of NAY
Dbt seciwitios A SEP Global 7864
BRL 2x Bear Fund

30 June 2019 Credit rating Source of credit rating o of NAY
Dbt securitios A1 S2P Global ™82

China Zx Bull Fund

30 June 2020

Credit rating Source of credit rating Yo of NAV
Dbt securities A1 SER Global o045
30 June 2019
Dbt secwrities Bl SEF Global B0 25
China 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2020

Credit rating Source of credit rating %o of NAY
Dwbs secwitios A1 SEP Global £3.34
30 June 2019
Dabt secEities A1 SEP Global 6174
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
(d}) Credit risk (continued)

Gold 2x Bull Fund

30 June 2020

Credit rating Source of credit rating %% of NAV
Debd seaxities A S8R Global S1E0
30 June 2019
Debs secwrities A1 SEP Global 2028
Gold 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2020

Credit rating Source of credit rating % of MAY
Dwbt secwitios Al SEP Glabal £ Bl
30 June 2019
Dbt secuitios A SEP Global Hnar
India 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2020

Credit rating Source of credit rating Soof NAY
Dbt securities Al SEP Global &7 &0
30 June 2019
[wbt securities At SEP Global B3 16

India 2x Bear Fund

30 June 2020

Credit rating Source of credit rating o of NAY
Dbt secwities A1 S8P Global &5 a0
30 June 2019
Dbt secrties Al SEF Global T4 62
Regources Twin Alpha BRL Fund
30 June 2019 Credit rating Source of credit rating %o of NAV
Dbt secarities A1 SEF Global 203

Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund

30 June 2019 Cradit rating Source of credit rating Yo of NAY
Dbt secwities A1 S2P Global G008
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund

30 June 2019 Credit rating Source of credit rating o of NAY
Dabt secEities A SEP Global 43
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (corfinued)
fd) Credit risk (continued)

AUD Tar get Maturity Bond Fund 201809

30 June 2020

Credit rating Source of credit rating %% of NAY
Performance linked note Mot Rated - 92T
30 June 2019
Performance linked note Mot Rated - o ah

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612

30 June 2020

Credit rating Source of credit rating Yo of NAY
Ferdormance inked note Mot R aed 9325
30 June 2019
Performance inked nots Mot Rated - 4895
US Technology 2% Bull Fund
30 June 2020

Credit rating Source of credit rating Yo of NAY
Dwabt securities A SEP Global o599

US Technology 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2020

Credit rating Source of credit rating o of NAY
Dbt secieitions Al SEP Global 7T

The sub-funds measure credit risk and expected credit losses wsing probability of defaull, exposure of
default and loss given defaull. The Manager considers both historical analysis and forward looking
information in determining any expected credit loss.

As al 11 May 2020 (date of terminalion), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL, Resources Twin
Alpha TRY and Rescurces Twin Alpha USD, had had all its individual counterparty risk with BMP Paribas
Securities Services acting through its Singapore Branch. BRNF Parbas's credit rating was Aa3 on
Moody's and equivalent ratings with Standard and Poor's and Fitch,

As al 3 June 2020 (dale of termination), the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, had
all its individual counterparty risk with BMP Paribas Securities Services acling through its Singapore
Branch. BMP Paribas's credit rating was Aa3 on Moody s and equivalent ratings with Standard and Poor's
and Fitch.

As at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, the sub-funds had all its individual counterparty risk with JP.
Korgan Chase Bank NA. and BMP Paribas Securities Services operating through its Singapore Branch,
J.P. Morgan Chase Bank N.A has a credil rating of A2 (30 June 2019 A2) on Moody's and equivalent
ratings with S&F Global and Fitch. BMP Paribas's credit raling was Aa3 (30 June 2019: Aa3) on Moody's
and equivalent ratings with S&P Global and Filch. The counterparies are expected lo sellle the
oulstanding within 1 week,

The Manager considers the probability of default to be closed to zero as the counterpariies have a strong

capacity to meel their contractual obligations in the near term. As a resull, no loss allowance has been
recognised based on a 12-month expected credi losses as anmy such impaiment would be insignificant

o the sub-funds,
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 Financial risk management (confinued)
(e) Counterparty risk

In order lo monitor the exposwre to the counterparty, sub-funds have o limit ther exposure 1o a
counterparty at a certain percentage of their MAV. This iz done through the delivery by the counterparty
of the sub-funds of securities as collateral.

As al 11 May 2020 (date of terminalion), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL, Resources Twin
Alpha TRY and Resources Twin Alpha USD had no collateral securities held with J.P. Morgan Chase
Bank M.A.

As al 3 June 2020 (dale of termination), the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, had
no collateral securities held with JP. Morgan Chase Bank M.A.

As al 30 June 2019, collaleral securilies relative to Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin
Alpha TRY Fund, Resources Twin Alpha WSD Fund. BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund are
Marked to Market basis on a daily basis.

Collateral securities relative to China 2% Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2 Bull Fund, Gold 2x Eear
Fund, India 2x Bull Fund. India 2x Bear Fund, US Technology 2¢ Bear Fund and US Technology 2x Bear
Fund are Marked to Market basis on a daily basis.

Asat 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, the sub-funds valuation of the collateral securities held with J.P.
Morgan Chase Bank M.A. are set oul below:

Dherivative
valuation Coltateral held et exposure
JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY000

As at 30 June 2020
China 2x Bull Fund (11,112} 11.112 -
China 2x Bear Fund 5.152 - 5452
Gold 2« Bull Fund 40 600 - 40,500
Gold 2x Baar Fund [4,245) 3553 (792
India 2% Bull Fund T804 - 7804
India 2x Baar Fund {1,356) 130 (55)
US Technology 2 Bull Fund 3T 400 {11,483) 25017
LIS Technology 2¢ Bear Fund 18.359) To58 (1,300

Deerivative

valuation Collateral held Met exposure

JPY 000 JPY000 LJPYO00
As at 30 June 2019
ERL 2« Bull Fund 4814 250 7315
BRL 2« Bear Fund (459) 41 (=)
China 2x Bull Fund 36227 - 36,227
China 2x Bear Fund [32,928) 32917 (21)
Gold 2x Bull Fund 16,548 - 16,548
Gold 2x Bear Fund 11.224) 1,101 (123)
Incka 2x Bull Fund [32,610) 42076 9466
Inda 2x Baar Fund 4512 . 4,612
Resources Twin Alpha ERL Fund 55 11484 11,53
Resaurces Twin Alpha TRY Fund 10324 . 10,324
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund [42,167) 54,214 12,052

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk thal the sub-funds may not be able o generate sufficient cash resources to setfle
their obligations in full as they fall due or can anly do 50 on terms that are materally disadvantageous.

In the case of subscriplions or redemptions. the Manager will respectively purchase or sell the equivalen
amount of the Financial Derivative Instrument.

To thal extent, each sub-fund benefits from daily liquidity on each Financial Derivative Instrument. The
swap Counterparty Is engaged in providing each sub-fund with daily llquidity. in case of subscripfions or

redemptions, the Manager will imvest the equivalent amount in cash or in accordance with its imeestment
objective.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
i) Liquidity risk (continued)
The table below anatyses the sub-funds’ financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the

remaining period from the year end date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the lable are
the confraciual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances,

as the impact of dizcounting Is not significant.

BRL 2x Bull Fund
3 June 2020 (date
of termination) 2Mm3
Less than & Less than 6
months months
SJPYI000 JPY000
Administration fee payable 1045 3170
Audit fes payabis 54 531
Managament fesa payabls 417 -
Amaunt dus to brokers - 22
Due o unghalders 126,199 .
Cther peyables 724 1619
Total liabilities 129,239 5397
BRL 2x Bear Fund
3 Jure 2020 (date
of termination) 2ms
Less than & Less than 6
months months
JPY000 JPY000
Financid liabilines 2 fair value through profit or loss - 489
Administration fee payable 1,045 3170
Audit fee payable 194 a2
Management fee payable 2 -
Amiount dua to brokers B2, T63
Dua o untholders 136 205 -
Cther peyables 237 927
Tatal liabilities 201 BdE 4 552
China 2x% Bull Fund
2020 2018
Less than 6 Less than &
months months
SPYO00 SJPYO00
Financid labiliies a fair value through profit or loss 11,142 -
Adrministration fea payable 1083 2. T67T
Audit fes payabds 1,287 213
Amount dus o brokears . 4 356
Trustes fee payable . 363
Other payables 531 1568
Total liabilities 14,063 Q85T
China Zx Bear Fund
2020 2019
Less than & Less than &
monkhs manths
JPY 000 JPY000
Financid liabilites & fair valua through profit o loss - 32938
Administration fee payable 1082 2767
Audtt fee payable T4 73
Due tounkholders 14,082 -
Trustes fee payable - 363
Other payables 976 1,353
Tatal liabilities 16815 A7 734
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 Financial risk management (confinued)
i) Liquidity risk (continued)
Gold 2x Bull Fund
2020 2018
Lessthan 6 Lessthan 6
months montis
JEY000 JPYO00
Administration fea payable 1082 2767
Audit fes payabie 517 210
Managament lea payabla 774 .
Amaunt dus to brokers 755 4 757
Cus to unzhalders 19,063 -
Trustes {ee payable . g3
Cther payables B47 Q92
Total liabilities 23,043 Q083
Gold 2% Bear Fund
2020 2018
Lezs than 6 Less than &
months months
JPY000 JPY000
Financid labilibes & far value through profit or loss 4,345 1,224
Administration fea payvable 1.082 2,767
Audit fee payable 40 (49)
Trustes fee payable - 363
Other peyaies 586 579
Total liabilities: 053 4 554
India 2% Bull Fund
2020 218
Less than 6 Less than 5
manths manths
JPY000 JPY000
Financid liabilibes & fair value through prafit o loss - 2810
Adrministration fea payable 1,083 2,767
Audit fee payable 2498 1.596
Amount dus to brokers 676 -
Cue to unkholders 4120 <
Trustee fee payable - 32
Other payabies 1,179 1865
Total llabilities: 1 555 349 160
India 2% Bear Fund
2020 2018
Less than B Less than &
months months
JPYO00 JPY 000
Financial labiliies & fair value through profit or loss 1,356 -
Administration fes payable 1,083 2,767
Audit fee payabls 238 13z
Trustes fee payatie . 313
Cther penyrables 01 827
Total liabilities 3378 4029
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (confinued)
i) Liquidity risk (continued)
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund
11 May 2020 (date
of termi nati on) 2019
Less than & Less than &
months maonths
JPYO00 JPY 000
Administration fes payvable ETE A0ET
Aurdit fes peayable 1,042 505
Managament fes payabis a8 86
Cus to unhalders 58,185 .
ther payables 1,870 2 040
Total liabilities 52021 6 A0S
Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund
11 May 2030 (date
of termination) 2019
Less than & Less than &
months months
JEY'000 JPY000
Adminisiration fee payable T 3105
Audit fee payable 910 5ld
Management fee payabés 24 120
Due to ungholders 28,709 .
Cther payabies 1,664 1,080
Taotal liabilities 22183 < Q0G
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund
11 May 2020 (date
of termination) 2M9
Less than & Less than &
months months
JPYO00 JEY'000
Financia liabilities o fair value through profit of loss - 42 167
Administration fee payatle 877 3103
Audit fee payabie 1. 599
Managemient fea payable ¢ 807
Dus to uniholders 138,973 -
Other payables 1,812 1,701
Total liabllities 142 506 43377
AUD Target Maturity Bend Fund 201603
2020 2ms
Less than & Less than &
menths manths
AUD AUD
Management fee payabla 146778 216,723
[Cue to unkholders 19444 25 686
Other payables 1825072 1426 876
Total liabilities 1,991 1683 J8S
ALD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
2020 29
Less than & Less thanG
months months
AUD AUD
Managament fee payable 32160 40,036
Qther payables 470537 380,313
Total liabilities: 502 607 400 340
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
i

Financial risk management (confinued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

S Technology 2x Bull Fund

Adminsstration fee payable
Audt fes payable

Amount due to brokers
Trustes e payable

Other payables

Total labilities

UE Technology 2x Bear Fund

Financid labdiies a fair value through profi or loss
Adminictration fes payable

Audi fee payable

Amount due to brokers

Cue to unitholders

Trustes fee payable

Other payables

Total liabilities

2020

Less than &

menths
JEO00

470
189
170,371
127

4 674

D ¥ 5

2020

Less than &

months
JEY000

359
470

57
1618
123,722
127
1018
135,371

The sub-funds manage their liquidity risk by investing predominantly in securilies that they expect to be
able to liquidate within 1 month or less. The following table iliustrates the expected liquidity of assels

held:

BRL 2x Bull Fund
3 June 2020 {date of termination)

Tota Aszals

30 June 2019

Tolal Assels

BRL 2x Bear Fund
3 June 2020 {date of termination)

Tota Assets

30 June 2013

Totd Assets

a7
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Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
JE00 JEYO00 JEYO00
123,239 128 339
Less than 1 1- 12 Manths Total
month JPY000 SJPY 000
P00
275,783 375 743
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
JED00 JEYO00 JFYD00
201 646 201 646
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
P00 JEYO00 JEYO00
328933 33933
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
i

Financial risk management (confinued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
China 2x Bull Fund

30 June 2020

Tota Assals

30 June 2019

Total Assats

China 2x Bear Fund

30 June 2020

Total Assats

30 June 2013

Total Assets

Gold 2x Bull Fund

30 June 2020

Tota Assets

30 June 2019

Total Acgats

Gold 2x Bear Fund

30 June 2020

Total Assets

30 June 2019

Tota Assels

Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
JPY000 JFY000 JPY000
200,914 208 814
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
JP00 JPY 000 JPYD00
GG 856 B3 855
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
SEY000 JPY'000 SJPYD00
174 701 174,701
Less than 1
marth 1-12 Months Total
JEY000 JEY000 JPYD00
366 327 66 827
Less than 1
msnth 1- 12 Months Total
JPY000 JPY 000 JPY000
502 102 508102
Less than 1
month 1= 12 Months Total
JPY000 JPY 000 JPYTO00
160,454 160,454
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
JEY00 JPY000 JPYO00
51,063 51.063
Less than 1
month 1= 12 Months Total
P00 JPY 000 JPY000
14,025 14,025
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
i

Financial risk management (confinued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
inciia 2 Bull Fund

30 June 2020

Tota Assals

30 June 2019

Tatal Aszals

India 2% Bear Fund

30 June 2020

Tota Assels

30 June 2013

Total Assets

Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund
11 May 2020 (date of termination)

Tota Assets

30 June 2019

Tota Acgats

Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund
11 May 2020 (date of termination)

Total Assets

30 June 2019

Tota Assels

Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
JPY'000 JFY000 JPY000
413 584 413,584
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
JP00 JPY 000 JPYTO00
1,055, 852 1,068 852
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
SO 000 JPY'000 SJPYD00
42 450 42 450
Less than 1
marth 1-12 Months Total
JEYO00 JEY000 JPY000
176 059 iTE 0584
Less than 1
msnth 1- 12 Months Total
JPY000 JPY000 JPY000
B2 021 G201
Less than 1
month 1= 12 Months Total
JPY000 JPY 000 JPYTO00
832 258 832 258
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
JEY00 JPY000 JPYO00
32183 32153
Less than 1
month 1= 12 Months Total
P00 JPY 000 JPY000
255 045 255045
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
i

Financial risk management (corfinued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund
11 May 2020 (date of termination)

Tota Assals

30 June 2019

Total Assats

ALD Target Maturity Bend Fund 201605
30 June 2020

Tota Assets

30 June 2013

Tatal Assets

ALD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
30 June 2020

Tota Assets

30 June 2019

Tota Acgats

US Technology 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2020

Total Assets

US Technology 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2020

Totd Assats

Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
JPY000 JFY000 JPY000
142 206 1.2 806
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
JP00 JPY 000 JPYD00
GED,D0E 230 005
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
ALD ALID ALD
121 719172 121.718,172
Less than 1
marth 1-12 Months Total
AUD ALID ALID
125 353 477 125 283 477
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
ALD ALID ALD
36526 510 36.526 510
Less than 1
month 1= 12 Months Total
AUD ALID ALD
A8 077 557 38077 557
Less than 1
month 1- 12 Months Total
JEY00 JPY000 JPYO00
11002 B49 1102 640
Less than 1
misnth 1- 12 Months Total
JPY000 JPY 000 JPY000
273,194 273104
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
3 Financial risk management (confinued)
1] Capital risk management

The sub-funds’ capilal is represented by the units in the sub-funds and shown as net assels attributable
fo unitholders on the statement of financial pesilien. In order to achieve the investment objectives, the
sub-funds endeavour to imvest their capital in accordance with the investment policies as outlined in Mote
1, whilst maintaining sufficlent liquidily to meet redemplion requests. Such liquidity iz augmented by the
holding of liquid investments.

4. Fair value measurement

The sub-funds classify fair value measuremenis using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inpuls used in making the measuremenis. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflects unadjusted guoted prices in aclive markels for identical assets or labilities
that the sub-funds have lhe ability to access al measurement date;

Investments whose values are based on quoled markel prices in aclive markels, and are therefore
classified wilthin lewvel 1.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or
indiractly, including inputs in markels that are not considerad to be active;

Investments that irade in markets that are not considered lo be active, but are valued based on quoted
markel prices, dealer quotalions or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are
classified within level 2. As level 2 imvesiments include posilions that are not traded in active markets
andfor are subject lo fransfer restrictions, valualions may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity andfor
non-iransferability, which are generally based on avalable markel Information,

Level 3 - Inpuls that are unobservable.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input thal is significant lo the fair value measurement in ils
entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in
its entirely. If a fair value measuremenl uses obsensable inputs that require significanl adjustment based
on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a
padicular input to the fair value measurement in iis enfirely requires judgmeni, considering factors
specific to the assel or liability.

The determination of whal constitutes "observable” requires significant judgment by the Managers. The
Managers consider observable data to be that markel data thal is readly available, regulary distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable. nol proprietary. and provided by independent sources thal are actively
imvolved inthe relevant market.

As al 11 May 2020 (date of terminalion), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL. Resources Twin
Alpha TRY and Resources Twin Alpha USD had no financial assels at fair value through profit or loss,

Az al 3 June 2020 (dale of termination), the sub-funds, BRL 2% Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, had
no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the sub-funds' financial assels and liabilities
measured at fair value al year end date;

BRL 2x Bull Fund

As at 30 June 2019
Lewvel 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
LJPYD00 JPYD0D JPYD00 SJPY000
Financial Assets
Financial assets & fair value
through profit o loss
Debt securities 291257 . - 291,257
Dearnvatives
- Index swiap transachon . 4814 - 4814
Tatal 291 257 4 814 - 206071
L
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4

Fair value measurement (continued)

BRL Zx Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2019

Financial Assets

Financial assals A far value
through profit of loss

Dt sacunties

Tota

Financial Liabilities
Finencia latalities & fair value
thraugh profit of loss
Dhafrvalives
- Index Swap transachon
Tatal

China Zx Bull Fund
Asg at 30 June 2020

Fimancial Assets

Financial essets & fair value
through profit or loss

Debt securties

Tota

Financial Liabilities
Financid liateliies o fair value
through profit or loss
Denvatives
- Indhe Sweap transachon
Tota

Ag at 30 June 2019

Financial Assets
Financial assats A far valus
throwgh profit of loss
Dbl sacurties
Derrvatives
- [ Swap Iransachon
Taota

China 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2020

Financial Assets
Financial assets & fair value
throwgh profit of less
Debt sacurities
Dearvatives
= Indax sweap transachon
Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 JEYO00
21032 21,032
21032 21,082
4599 493
EEE 499
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPD00 JPY000
177,143 177.143
177 143 177.143
11,1142 11,112
11112 11,112
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JEY 000 JPY000 JEY000
H22M 362201
- 26227 36227
36220 36 22T 348 428
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Taotal
JPY000 JPY'000 JPY000 JPY000
100 (e 100 084
- 5.152 3,152
100 (B4 L 152 105 26
a9z
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 Fair value measurement (continued}
China 2x Bear Fund {conbinued)
Ag at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 00D JPY000 JPY000
Fimancial Assets
Financial assals A far value
through profit o loss
Dabit socunties 23152 - . 203 152
Total 203,152 . . 203 152
Fimnancial Liabilities
Financia lakliies & fair value
thraugh profit of loss
Derrvatives
- Indax swiap transachon - 32938 - 32938
Tetal 32 938 ? 32035
Gold 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Lewval 2 Level 3 Total
JPY000 JPY 000 JEY 000 JPYT000
Financial Assets
Financial assets A far value
through profit o loss
Dabit cacunties %1258 . . 251,258
Datrvatives
- [ swap transaction - 40 600 - 40,8600
Tatal 51258 40 B0 - 291 B58
Ag at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY000 JPYO00 JPY000 JEYO00
Financial Assets
Financial assets & fair value
throwgh prodit o loss
Dkt securities TT.020 - - T7.020
Denvatives
- Index swap transachion . 16,548 . 16548
Totd T 020 16,548 . 03, 500
Gold 2x Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY000
Financial Assets
Financial assats & fair value
through profit of loss
Dbt secunties 3326 - - 31326
Total 31,326 - - 31,326
Financial Liabilities
Financia liatlibes af fair vaiue
through profit of loss
Datrvatives
- | sweap transaction - 4 345 - 4 345
Total - 4,345 - 4,345
a3
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 Fair value measurement (continued)

Gold 2x Bear Fund [ continued)

Ag at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 JEYO00

Fimancial Assats
Financial assals A lar value
through profit or loss
Dabit cocunties 6 506 . . 6,506
Total 6,508 = = 5,506

Fimancial Liabilities
Finencial latalities & fair value
through profit of loss
Dafrvalives
- Imdie Swap transachon - 1234 - | X2
Tatal 1,224 . 1,224

India 2x Bull Fund

As at 30 June 2020
Lewvel 1 Lewval 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JPYO00

Financial Assets
Financial assets A far value

through profit o loss
Dabit cacunties 273323 . . 273353
Datrvatives

- [ swap transaction - 7804 - T B0
Tatal 273323 T B04 a 281,927

Ag at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 JEYO00

Financial Assets
Financial assets & fair value
throwgh profit of loss
Dabit securities 643 004 - - 43 00
Tota [EEEED] . - fe.3, S04

Financial Liabilities
Financia listilities ot fair value
through profit or loss
Denvatives
- Indax swap fransachon - 32610 - 32610
Total - 32 610 . 2610

India 2% Bear Fund

Ag at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Tatal
JPY 1000 JPY000 JPYD00 JPY000

Financial Assets
Financial assats a fair value
through profit of loss
Drabit securties 26 522 - - 26 802
Total 26 922 - - 26 922

Fimancial Liabilities
Financia liatalties & fair valua
through profit or loss
Danrvalives
- Index swiap transaction . 1,356 - 1,356
Total = 1,356 - 1,356
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 Fair value measurement (continued)
Inclia 2 Bear Fund [continued)
Ag at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 JEYO00
Fimancial Assets
Financial assals A far value
through profit or loss
Dabit cocunties 128361 . . 128,361
Darvatives
- Indax swap transachion - 4612 - 4612
Tata 128 361 4512 2 132973
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund
As at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JEY 000 JEY000
Financial Assets
Financial sssats & far value
through profit or loss
Dabit secunties T2T .01 - - 72701
Dafivatives
- | swap transachon - o2 - 59
Total 727 01 £ - TIT.076
Rezources Twin Alpha TRY Fund
As at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JEY 000 JEY000 JEY000

Fimanclial Assets
Financial assets a fair value
through profit o loss

Dbt sacurties 225,193 . . 225193
- Index swap transacion . 10,324 . 10,324
Total 2_25.1 (%] 10,32‘1 - 35 517
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund
Ag at 30 June 2019
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 LJPY 000 JPY000 JPYI000
Financial Assets
Financial assats & fair value
thraugh profit of loss
Dbt sacurties £33 140 . - 333140
Tata 533,140 . . 333,140
Financial Liabilities
Financial liatalities & fair value
through profit of loss
Defvalives
- | ke Swap ransaction . 42167 . 42 167
Total . A2 16T - 42167
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201603
As at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Lewval 2 Level 3 Total
ALD AUD AUD AUD
Financial assets a fair value
through profit o loss
Ferformance linkad note . 118 851 340 . 118,851 840
Total - 118,851 840 - 118 251 840
As at 30 June 2019
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ALID ALD ALD ALD
Financial assats A far value
through profit of loss
Perormance linkad note - 122 280 853 - 12220 853
Totd = 1@9@,353 E 122200 853
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 Fair value measurement (continued)
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
Ag at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Tatal
ALID AUD AUD ALID
Financial assels o far value
through profit of less
Performanca hnked note 35,752 186 35,752,186
Tata 35 752 186 A5 752 186
Asg at 30 June 2019
Lewvel 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
ALUD AUD ALUD AUD
Financia assats & fair value
throwgh profit of loss
Parformanca inked note A7 281 105 37281 105
Total 37,281,105 37,281,105
US Technology 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY000 P00 JPY000
Financial Assets
Financial assets & fair value
through profit or loss
Dbl sacuritiss 58541 218341
Danvatives
- Imdex swap ransachon - 3T 400 AT 400
Taotal 512 941 37400 556 341
US Technology 2x Bear Fund
Az at 30 June 2020
Leval 1 Lewval 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JPY000
Financial Assets
Financial assets & fair value
through profit of loss
Dabt securities 130 520 130 &20
Total 130,620 130,620
Financial Liabilities
Financid liatilibes & fair value
throwgh prodit of loss
Danrvatives
- Inidax Swiap transachon £354 5259
Total 8359 B350

Imvestments that are valued based on qualed markel prices in active markels, such as active listed
equities and listed futures contracts, are classified within level 1. The sub-funds do not adjust the quoted
prices for these investiments.

Invesiments that trade in markets that are not considerad to be active but are valued based on quoted
markel prices, dealer quolations or allernative pricing sources supporded by observable inputs, such as
unlisted debl securities and over-lhe-counter derivatives, are classified within level 2.

There were no movements bebween Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year ended 30 June 2020 and 20 June
2018,
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4 Fair value measurement (continued}

The following table analyses, within the fair value hierarchy, the sub-funds' assels and liabilities not
measured at fair value al 3 June 2020 (date of termination) and 20 June 2019 bui for which fair value is

disclosed.
BRL 2x Bull Fund
Ag at 3 June 2020 (date of termination)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY000 JPY000 JPY000 JFY 000
Assets
Amcunt dus from brobkers . 124,736 . 124, 796
Managerment fes rebae recavable . 2135 - 213
Cash and cach aquivaants 2318 - - 2318
Total 2318 126921 . 120,239
Liabilities
Due to unitholders - 126,198 - 126,198
Accruad expenses - 3040 - 3040
Total - 128 234 - 129,739
As at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPYO00 JEYOOD JEY000 JEY000
Assets
Interest recarvable . 47 . 47
Management fee rebale recanvable 1,775 - 1,775

Cash and cash aequivalants 7581 . - 75,811
Caher recanables and prepaymeant . 259 - 4
Due from unitholders . 1,520 - 1,530
Tatal 75811 3501 2 749712
Liabilities
Amount dus to brakers - 22 - 22
Accrued eapensas . 5370 - 5,370
Tatal 5 5397 2 EREH
BRL 2x Bear Fund
Ag at 3 June 2020 (date of termination)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY000 JPY000 JPY'000 JPY 000
Assets
Amount dus from brokears . 122,110 - 122,110
Management fee rebaie recevable - 2389 - 2385
Cash and cash agquivalants 77147 - - 77147
Total 77147 124 455 5 201 646
Liabilities
Amcunt dus o brokers - G2, 763 - 62,763
Due to unkholders - 136,805 - 136,805
Accrued expenses - 2078 - 2072
Total - 201 646 - 01 646
Ag at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 SJPY000 JPY000 JPY 000
Assets
Interest receivable - 4 - 4
Management fes rebas recevable - 1823 - 1.923
Cash and cash equivaants 10,716 E = 10,716
Crher receivables and prepayment - 258 - 228
Total 10,7 16 2185 - 12,5901
Liabilities
Accrued expenses - 4 189 - 4 134
Total . 4,152 - 4, 139

a7
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4 Fair value measurement (continued}

The following table analyses, within the fair value hierarchy, the sub-funds' assels and liabilifies nol
measured at fair value al 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019 but for which fair value is disclosed.

China 2x Bull Fund

Asg at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY000 LJEY000 JEY 000 JFY000
Assets
Infarest racarvable . az | 32
Managerment fes rabate recavable . £33 . 63
Cash and cash equivalents 30847 - - 20,947
Other recavables and prepayment . T8 . T3
Due from unitholders . 441 - 441
Tatal ETETE 1,824 . 22771
Liabilities
Accruad expenses - 2451 - 2051
Total - 28951 - 2951
As at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPYO00 JEYOOD JEY000 JEY000
Assets
Interest recavable - 102 - 102
Management fee rebale recanvable 1533 - 1.538

Cash and cash equivalants 125014 . - 125014
Dua fram untholders . 78,774 . 78774
Tetal 125014 gl 414 - 205478
Liabilities
Amount due to brokers - 4,356 - 4 356
Accrued enpenses - 5511 - 5,511
Total - 9567 - 9 567
China Zx Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPYT000 JPY000 JPY000 JFY000
Assets
Intarest racaivatile . 17 - 17
Amount dus from brokears . 33 - 283
Management fee rebaie recevable - wBT - 387
Cash and cash agquivalants BT 455 - - 67,455
Cther receivables and prepayment - 1,343 - 1,343
Total 67 455 2010 - [l
Liabilities
Due to unkholders - 14,032 - 14,032
Accrued expenses - 2.783 - 2783
Total Z 16815 = 16,815
Ag at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPYO00 SJPY000 JPY000 SJPY000
Assets
Interest receivable - 43 - 43
Amount dus from brokers - 648 - B45
Management fee rebate recervable - 1,718 - 1.718
Cash and cash equivaients 154,287 - - 154,287
Due from unitholders - B979 - 6979
Total 154 287 G388 - 162 675
Liabilities
Accrued Spenses - 4 856 - 4 556
Tatal . 4 556 - 4,856
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 Fair value measurement (continued)
Gold 2x Bull Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY000 JEYU000 JPEYO00 JFY 000
Assets
Intarest racalvable C 48 a 45
Amaunt dus from brokers 1435 - 1435

Cash and cach aquivaiants 203 840 - . 203,940
Cther recevables and prepayment - 10147 - 1.017
Due from unitholders - 9 g - 9 804
Tatal 203,840 12 304 : 216,244
Liabillities
Amount dus o brokers - 1595 - 5
Due to uniholders - 19,063 - 19063
Accrued expenses - 3225 - 322
Total - 23043 - 23043
Asg at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
JPY000 JPY000 JPY000 JEY000
Assets
Inmberest racaivable . a0 . 30
Management fea rebale receavable - 1.760 - 1.760
Cash and cash equivalents 11,387 - - 11.387
Due from unitholders . 53,709 - 53,7040
Total 11 387 55499 " G S50
Liabilities
Amount duse to brokers - 4,757 - 4757
Accrued sxpenses . 4,332 - 332
Total i 9,059 - 9,05
Gold 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2020
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPYTO00 JPY000 SJPY000 JPY 000
Agsets
Interest racavable . 5 . L
Amount dua from brikers . 408 . a0
Management fes rabale recavable . g . =]
Cash and cash aquivalants 12818 . . 12913
(ther recervables and prepayrment . 1,184 . 1,154
Due from unitholder s - 4,728 . 4. 735
Tatal 12818 6814 . 19,737
Liabilities
Accrued expensas - 1,708 . 1,705
Total - 1.708 - 1,708
As at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPYO00 LJPY000 JPY000
Agsets
Interest receivable - i - 1
Amount dua from brokers - 27 - 27
Management fes rabale recévable . 1815 - 1.215
Cash and cash equivalants 4 300 - . 4 300
Jther recenables and prepayment . 1.116 . 1116
Cue from unitholders 260 260
Total ERIN] 2219 - 7519
Liabilities
Accrued sapensas - 1 E60 - 3680
Total . X - 3 B

g9
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 Fair value measurement (continued)
Irnclia 2 Bull Furd
Ag at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY000 JEYU000 JPEYO00 JFY 000
Assets
Interest racalvatis . 70 . 0
Amaunt dus from brokers . 73 - 73
Managaement feo robale recenvable

731 . 234

Cash and cash equivalents 112 802 - 112802
Other recavables and prepayment - 665 - GES
Due from unitholders - 18,816 - 18816
Tatal 112 802 19 855 . 132 151
Liabilities
Amount dua o brokers - 676 - 676
Due to unitholders - 41240 - 4,130
Accrued expenses - 4. 7ED - 4 TED
Tatal - 0 556 - 0 556
Ag at 30 June 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

JPYO00 JPY000 JPY000 JPY000
Assets
Interest recaivakble - 124 - 124
Amcunt due from brokers - 473 - 478
Management fee rabale recervable E 12549 - 1.254
Cash and cash equivaients 30,704 - - 290,704
Due from unitholders - 22,493 - 222503
Total 290,704 24,154 = 414 85
Liabilities
Accrued expenses . 5,550 . 5,550
Tatal : 6 550 - 15,550
India 2% Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2020

Leveal 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Tatal

JPY000 JEY000 JPY000 JFY 000
Agsets
Inberest racaivable . 5 . 5
Amount dus from brokers ! 189 . 119
Managerment fed rebale recavable - a18 . 913
Cash and cash equivalants a3t - - 9,887
Cther recenables and prepayment - 1,197 . 1177
Due from unitholdees . 337 . 3373
Tatal 9987 5.5 . 12,528
Liabilities
Accrued expenses . 2022 . 2022
Total - 2022 . 2.022
Asg at 30 June 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

JPY 000 JEY000 JEYI000 JEY000
Agsets
Interest recaivable - 40 - 40
Management fes rabale recévable - 1,768 - 1.768
Cash and cash equivalants 41,278 - - 41,278
Total 41275 1,808 : 43 (86
Liabilities
Accrued expenses - 4,039 - 4 (139
Total . 4 0349 . 4,039
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4 Fair value measurement (continued}

The following table analyses, within the fair value hierarchy, the sub-funds' assels and liabilifies nol
measured at fair value at 11 May 2020 (dale of termination) and 30 June 2019 but for which fair vaiue is

disclosed.
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund
Az at 11 May 2020 (date of termination)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal

JPY000 P00 JPY000 JPYO00
Azsets
Management fee rabate recenvable . 5T . GaT
Cash and cash equivalants 51,334 - . 61,334
Tatal 61,334 [ - Egnm
Liabilities
Due to untholders . 58,185 . 58,185
Accrued expenses - 3836 - 3835
Taotal - 62021 - 62021
As at 30 June 2018

Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal

P00 JPYO00 JPY000 JPY000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 105,063 - - 105,068
Crher receivables and prepayment : 114 < 114
Total 105 (62 114 - 105 132
Liabiliti es
Accrued expeses - 5408 - 6,408
Total - G408 - [
Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund
Az at 11 May 2020 (date of termination)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal

JPY000 LPY000 SPY000 JPY000
Assets
Managerent lee rabale recenvable . BaT - 657
Cash and cash equivakents 31,495 - - 31,456
Total 31,455 EET . 221683
Liabilities
Due to untholders . 28,709 . 28,703
Accrued expenses 3474 3474
Tatal = 32,183 = 32183
Asg at 30 June 2019

Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

JPYO00 SPY000 JPY000 JEY000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalants 1944 . . 19,414
Caher recanables and prepaymeant . 114 . 114
Tatal 19414 174 - EE
Liabilities
Accrued expenses - 4208 - 4,900
Total ; 4,508 F 4 908
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 Fair value measurement (continued}
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund
As at 11 May 2020 (date of termination)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPYO00 JPY000 JPYO00 JEY 000
Assets
Managarment fes rabae . 637 . 687
Cash and cash equivaants 142,118 - - 142119
Tatal 142,119 (=5 . 142 806
Liabilities
Cue to uniholders - 138473 - 138973
Accrued expenses 3833 3833
Total - 142 BOG A 142 B0G
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund {contbinuad)
Asg at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JEYO00 JEY000 JEY'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalants 146,752 - - 148,752
Ogher recarables and prepayment - 114 - 114
Total 146 753 114 - 146,506
Liabiiities
Accrued expenses - 5210 - B0
Total . 6,210 . 6,210

The following table analyses. within the fair value hierarchy, the sub-funds' assels and liabilities not
measured at fair value al 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019 but for which fair value is disclosed.

ALD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609

Asg at 30 June 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AUD AUD ALID ALID

Assets
Inberest racaivable . [5656) . [SEE)
Amaunt dus from brokers . 19,420 . 19,490
Cash and cach aquivalants X698 - - 229698
Other recevables and prepayment - 2618 110 - 2618710
Tatal 229 598 2637 634 ] 2 BE7 332
Liabilities
DO bo unikholders - 19444 i 10,444
Accrued expenses - 1,871,850 - 1971850
Total - 1,961 794 7 19491 294
Asg at 30 June 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal

AUD AUD AUD AUD

Aggets
Interest recaivable . 230,300 - 230,300
Amount dus from brokers . 35,767 . 5, 76T
Cash and cash equivalents 75143 . - 75,143
Other recavables and prepayment - 251414 - 2651414
Total ?514_3 20T 481 . ?QQ?E&
Liabilities
Due 1o uniholders . 35 GG . 35 635
Accrued spenses - 1,653 5959 - 1653 5540
Tatal - | RO FRE - IGEERE

102

221/329



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 Fair value measurement (continued)
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
As at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
AUD AUD AUD ALUD
Assets
Interest racalvati . {BAT) . (847}
Cash and cash equivalants 55532 - - 55,533
Other recarvables and prepayment . 719688 - 719658
Total 55533 715,791 : 774 34
Liabilities
Accrued expenses - 202637 - S02 697
Tatal . S02 697 . 5026497

ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612 [continued)

As at 30 June 2019

Level 1 Leval 2 Leval 3 Total

AUD AUD ALD ALID

Agsets
Interest recalvatle . 58,230 . 58,236
Cash and cash equivalants 5742 . . 5,792
Othear recavables and prepayment . 732424 - 732434
Total 5782 790,560 - 796 452
Liabilities
Accrued expensas . A00 349 . 400 349
Tatal - A00 349 z 400,349
US Technology 2x Bull Fund
Az at 30 June 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

JPYO00 JPY000 JPYO00 JPY 000
Assets
Interest recaivatlha . 105 - 105
Amaount dus from brokers - 6,577 - 6,577
Management fea rebde

£25 - BES

Cash and cash equivalants 2461 - 2464
DCue from unitholdees - 314 330 - 314 320
Total Toa g1 S01 58T : 546,908
Liabilities
Amaunt dus o brokers . 170,371 - 170,371
Accrued sxpenses - 5 4610 - 5460
Total = 175831 - 175,841
US Technology 2x Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

JPY000 JEY000 JPY'000 JFY 000
Assets
Initarest racalvatile . 19 . 19
Amaunt dus from brokers . 32,027 . 32027
Managarment fea rebae . T30 . T90
Cash and cash equivalents 103,175 - - 103,175
Other recaivablas and prepayment - 6 o632 - 6,563
Total R EE] EEREH . 142,574
Liabilities
Amcunt dus o brokers - 1618 - 1,618
Due to uniholdars - 123,722 - 123722
Accrued expenses - 1672 - 1672
Total = 127012 i 127012
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4 Fair value measurement (continued}

The assets and liabilities included in the above lable are carried at amorised cost; their camying values
are a reasonable approximalion of fair value.

Amounis due from brokers and other receivables include the contractual amounis for settlement of irades
and olher obligations due to the sub-funds. Amounts due to brokers and accruals represeni the
confraciual amounis and obligations due by the sub-funds for setlement of trades and expenses.

5 Financial instruments by category
Financial assels

Apart from investments disclosed in the statement of financial position which are classified as al fair
value throwgh profit or loss, all other financial assels as disclosed in the statement of financial position,
inciuding other recelvables, amounts due from brokers, cash and cash equivalenls and due from
unitholders. are calegorised as “olher financial receivables”,

Az al 11 May 2020 (date of terminalion), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL, Resources Twin
Alpha TRY and Resources Twin Alpha USD had no financial assels at fair value through profit or loss.

As al 3 June 2020 (dale of termination), the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, had
no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Fimnancial liabilities

Apart from investments disclosed in the stalement of financial position which are classified as fair value
through profit or loss, all financial liabilities as disciosed in the statement of financial position, including
adminisiration fee payable, management fee payable, irustee fee payable, audit fee payable, amounts
due to brokers, other payables and due to unitholders are categorised as “other financial liabilities”,

As al 11 May 2020 (date of termination), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL, Resources Twin
Alpha TRY and Resources Twin Alpha USD had no financial liabiities at fair value through profit or loss.

As al 3 June 2020 (dafe of termination), the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, had
no financial liabilities at fair value through profil or loss.

6. Derivative Financial instruments by category

The sub-funds hold over-the-counter ("OTC") financial derivalive instrumenis. Each sub-fund records its
derivalive acliviies on @ mark-te-market basi. For OTC contracts, the sub-funds enter into master
netting agreements with its counterparties. Therefore, assets represent the sub-funds’ unrealised gain
less unrealised losses for OTC contracts in which the sub-funds have a master nefling agreemeni.
Similarty liabilities represent nel amounis owned to counterpariies on OTC confracts.

Vihile the prudent use of such derivatives can be beneficial, derivatives also involve risks different from,
and in cedain cases, greater than, the risks presented by more traditional investmants. Retums which
are derived from a swap transaction may be more vaolalile than returns which are derived from the assel
undertying the swap transaclion.

As al 11 May 2020 (dale of lermination), the sub-funds. Resources Twin Alpha BRL, Resources Twin
Alpha TRY and Resources Twin Alpha LISD had no financial dervatives instruments,

As al 3 June 2020 (dafe of termination), the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, had
no financial derivatives instruments.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
6. Derivative Financial instruments by category (continued)

As of 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, the sub-funds statermeni of financial position included the
following financial dervative instruments:

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Hotional value  Falr value Motional value  Fair value
JPY'000 JEYO00
BRL 2 Bull Fund - - 558,740,000 45814
EBRL 2« Bear Fund . = 46,490,000 (439)
China 2x Bull Fund 423,560,000 {11,112} 936,120,600 36,227
China 2x Bear Fund A5 790 000 5152 038, 490 600 {32,938
Zobd 2 Bull Fund 374 G50 000 40,600 163,590,000 16,548
Gold 2x Bear Fund 107 350,000 (4,345) 13,260,000 (1,224)
Inda 2x Bull Fund T8 250 000 7804 1,208, 420,000 {32.610)
India Zx Bear Fund 73260000 [1,356) 362,220,000 4612
Resourcas Twin Alpha BRL Fund . . A0 334 55
Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund . 292 0ag 10,324
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund . . 713,839 (42 167)
S Technology 2 Bull Fund 5B T90 000 37 400 : :
S Technology 2x Bear Fund 210,310,000 (8.355)

The sub-funds have credit risk from OTC coniracts when bwo conditions are present
(i the OTC confracts have unrealised gains, net of any collateral and
(i) the counterparty lo the conract defaulis.

The disclosures sel oul in the tables below include financdal assels and financial liabliities that are subject
fo an enforceable master nelting agreement.

The ISDA and similar master netting agreements enlered by the sub-funds with its counterparties do nat
meel the criteria for offsetting in the statement of financial postion, This is because they create a right
of offset of recognised amounts that Is enforceabla only following an event of defaull, insolvency or
bankrupley or the sub-funds or counterparties do not intend to settle on a net basis or lo realise the
assets and sellle the liabilities simultanecushy,

As al 11 May 2020 (dale of lerminalion), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL, Resources Twin
Alpha TRY and Resources Twin Alpha USD had no invesiments in swap transaction which were subject
o enforceable master netting agreements or similar agreemenis.

As at 3 June 2020 (dale of termination), the sub-funds, ERL 2x Bull Fund and BERL 2x Bear Fund, had

no investmenis in swap transaclion which were subject to enforceable master netling agreements or
similar agreemenis.
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B. Derivative Financial instruments by category (continued)

Financial assets which are subject to enforceable master netting agreements or similar agreements for
the year ended 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019 are detailed in the following table:

ERL Zx Bull Fund
30 June 2019
Gross amounts of
Grozs recognised et amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of get-off in the statement of
assets financial position financial position financial position Met amount
Financial Security
Instruments  collateral
SJPY D00 P00 P 000 SJPY D00 SJPY D00 JPY000
Index swap
transaction 4814 4814 4,314
Tatal 4 814 4 514 4814
EBRL 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2019
Gross amounts of Met amounts of
Gross recognised firarcial
amounts of  financial assets liabilities
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of  set-off in the statemert of
liakilities  financial position fnancial position financlal pasition Met st
Firmanclal Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY'000 JPYO00 JPYO00 JPYO00 JPY'000 JPYO00
Index swap
transaction 1499) (49a) 4 {93}
Tutal [423) (4593 40 {D3)
China 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2020
Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
Gross recognised finarcial
amounts of  financial assets liabilities
recognised set-off Inthe presented In the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of  set-off in the statement of
liskilities  financial position financlal position financial position Met amount
Fimancial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY000 JPYTO00 JPY'O00 JPY000 JPY'000 JPYO00
Index swap
transaction (11,112) {11,112) 11,112
Tetal (11,117) {11.112) 11,112
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Derivative Financial instruments by category (continued)
China 2x Bull Fund {continued)
30 June 2019
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised Met amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of get-off in the statement of
assets financial position financial position fimancial position Met amount
Financial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY D00 JPTOD0 LJPYO00 LJPYD00 JPYD00 JPYO00
Index swap
transaction 36227 - 36 227 . . 36,227
Taotal 36 227 = 36,237 L < 2627
China 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2020
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised Met amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of set-off in the statement of
assets financial position financial position financial position Met amount
Firancial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY000 JPYT000 SJPY'O00 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000
Index swap
transaction 2.152 - 3152 - - 5152
Tiotal 5,152 d 5,152 - 5 152
30 June 2019
Gross amounts of Net amounts of
Gross recognised finarcial
amounts ef  financlal assets liabilities
recognised set-off In the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of set-off in the statement of
liskilities  financial position financial position fimancial position Met amount
Financial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY D00 JPYO00 JPYO00 JPY 000 JPYD00 JPYTO00
Index swap
transaction {32,938) ; (32 938) : 32017 {21}
Tatal [32238] - (32 a8 - 328917 {21}
Gold 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2020
Grogs amounts of
Gross recognised Met amounts of
amounts of financial liabllities financial assets
recogniged get-off In the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of set-off in the statement of
assets financial position financial position fimancial position Met amount
Finaneial Secuirity
Instruments  collateral
JPY000 JPY000 JPY'000 JPY000 JPY000 JPY000
Index swap
transaction 40 500 - 40 600 - . 40 600
Tatal 40 &L - ] - - LTI
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Derivative Financial instruments by category (continued)
Gold 2x Bull Fund (continued)
30 June 2019
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised Met amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of get-off in the statement of
assets financial position financial position fimancial position Met amount
Financial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY 000 JPYO00 JPYO00 LJPY 000 JPY000 JPYO00
Index swap
transaction 16,248 : 16548 . - 16,548
Taotal i6 548 = 16 542 L = 16 548
Gold 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2020
Gross amounts of Net amounts of
Gross recognised finarcial
amounts of  financial assets liabilities
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of set-off in the statement of
liakilities  financial position financial position financial position Met amount
Firancial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY000 JPYT000 SJPY'O00 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000
Index swap
transaction 14 245] - {4,345 - 3553 (792}
Tatal 14,345) . {4 345 3553 [ 782)
30 June 2019
Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
Gross recognised firarcial
amounts of  financial assets liabilites
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of set-off in the statement of
liakilities  financial position financial position financial position Met amount
Financial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY 000 JPYO00 JPYO00 LJPY 000 JPY000 JPYO00
Index swap
transaction {1,224) : {1,224) 1,101 {123)
Total {1224} - {1.72) - 1,101 {123
India 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2020
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised et amounts of
amounts of  financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of set-off in the statement of
assets financial position financial pesition financial position Met amournt
Financial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY000 JPYE000 JPY'000 JPY000 JPY000 JPY000
Index swap
transact an 7804 - 7.804 7804
Tutal i 50 - P 7,
108

2271329



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Derivative Financial instruments by category (continued)
Indla 2x Bull Fund {continued)
F0 June 2019
Gross amounts of Net amounts of
Gross recognised finarcial
amounts of  financial assets liabilities
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of get-off in the statement of
liakilities financial position financial position financial position et amount
Financial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY 000 JPYO00 JPYO00 LJPY 000 JPY000 JPYO00
Index swap
transaction {32.610) - (32 6109 . 32610
Tatal [32610) - (32,6103 L 32610
India 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2020
Gross amounts of Net amounts of
Gross recognised finarcial
amounts of  financial assets liabilities
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of set-off in the statement of
liakilities  financial position financial position fimancial position Met amount
Firmancial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY000 JPY000 SJPY'O00 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000
Index swap
transaction 11,356) - {1,356} - 1,301 {55)
Taital 11,356) - (1.356) : T30 {55)
30 June 2019
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised et amounts of
amounts af financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set-off In the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of set-off in the statement of
assets financial position financial position fimancial position Met amount
Financial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPYD00 JPY000 JPYO00 JPY 000 JPY000 JPYTO00
Index swap
transaction a 612 : 4 612 . . 4612
Tutal 4612 - 4612 - - 4 612
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund
30 June 2019
Grogs amounts of
Gross recognised Met amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recogniged get-off In the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of set-off in the statement of
assets financial position financial position fimancial position Met amount
Finaneial Secuirity
Instruments  collateral
JPY000 JPY000 JPY'000 JPY000 JPY000 JPY000
Index swap
transaction 55 o5 55
Tatal 55 a5 -
108
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B. Derivative Financial instruments by category (continued)

Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund
F0 June 2019
Grogss amounts of
Gross recognised Met amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statement of set-off in the statement of
azgets financial position financial position financial position et amount
Financial Security
Instruments  collateral

JPY000 JPYO00 JPYO00 LJPY 000 JPY000 JPYO00
Index swap
transaction 10,329 - 10,324 : - 10,324
Total 0,324 = 10,32 L = 10324
Re=zources Twin Alpha USD Fund
30 June 20N9
Gross amounts of Net amounts of
Gross recognised finarncial
amounts of  financial assets liabilities
recognised set-off inthe presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of statermnent of set-off in the statemert of
liakilities  financial position financial position financial position Met amount
Firancial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY'000 JPYO00 JPY'O00 JPY'000 JPY'000 JPYO00
Index swap
transaction {42 167T] - 142 167) - 42 167
Taital (a2, 167 : (42 167) : 42,167
US Technology 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2020
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised et amounts of
amounts of financial liabllities financial assets
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
financial statement of staternent of  set-off in the statement of
asgsels financial position financial position financial position Met amount
Financial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPY 000 P00 JPYO00 LJPY 000 JPY 000 JPYT000
Index swap
transaction A7 400 . 37 A00 {11,483) 25017
Tatal AT 400 - 37 400 (11,483} 25M7
UE Technology 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2020
Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
Gross recognised firarcial
amounts of  financial assets liabilities
recognised set-off in the presented in the Related amounts not
firancial statement of statemert of  set-off in the statement of
liakilities  financial position financial position financial position Met amount
Firancial Security
Instruments  collateral
JPYD00 JPYTO00 JPY'O00 JPY'000 JPY'000 JPYO00
Index swap
transaction {4,2549) - (&, 355) - 1053 i 1,200)
Total {5, 3549) - (i 353} - 7053 {1, 3000
110
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7.

Met gainsi/{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

BRL 2x Bull Furnd

Net gaingl{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:

Reshsed gain on inveastimants

Raahsed loss on inancid darmvabives

Linreal sed gain on investrments

Unrealisad gain on financal derivatrvies

BRL 2x Bear Fund

Met gaing(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:

Reaizad loss on investmeants

Reafised gain on financial desivatives

Linrealised gain on investments

Uinrealised loss on financid dervatives

China 2x Bull Furnd

Met gaing{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at falr value
through profit or loss:

Freaised loss on investments

Reaiced lose on financial darvatves

Uinrealised gainfloss) on investments

Linrealised (lossygain on financial derivatives

China 2x Bear Fund

Met gaingd{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:

Rrealized loss on investments

Resisad gain on financial dervalives

Linrealised gain on investrments

Uinrealised gainf{loss) on finandal derivatives

Gold 2x Bull Fund

Met gainsl{losses) on financial assets and liabllities at falr value
through profit or loss:

Reaised loss on investments

Realised gainf{loss) on financial denvatives

Unrealised (loss)'gan on investments

Linrealised gain on financial dervatives

111
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1Juy 2019103 Year ended 30
June 2020 (date June 2019
of termination)
JEY 000 JPY 000
147 30
[189.516) (13,332
A 4071
- 52,263
[ 120 360} 30 358
1Juy2019ta3F  Year ended 30
June 2020 (date June 2019
af termination)
JEY 000 JPY000
(14 (2]
48 855 10,008
- 103
- (6.672)
43 536 3437
Year ended 30 Year ended 30
Jure 2020 June 2M9
JEY 000 JEY000
(41 (19)
(11, 20) (256006}
0 {3
{46 65T} 1494 638
(117857} {56 307
Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2019
JPY000 JPY000
{2} {5)
38332 84,229
g8 H2
38050 {103 B8}
16,456 (19,452
Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2019
JEY 000 JEY000
[23) [14)
81,003 {9, 534)
(74} 114
23671- 31.729
15T 21,4955
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Met gainsi{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (conlinued)
Gold 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30  Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2019
JFY 000 JPY000

Met gaing(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:

Feaised loss on imvesiments [4) -
Feaised (lossiigan on finanaal denvatives (23.529) w7
Unrealised (losslgan on investmeants [23) g
Unrealised lgss on financial deredalives (3,121} {2,167
126 677} (1313)
India 2x Bull Fund
ear ended 30 ‘Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2019
JPY 000 JPY000
MNet gainsl{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:
Reaksed loss on iInvestments {20y {38}
Feaised {lossiigan on finanoal denvatives (206,070} 114,563
Iinrealised gain on investmeants 46 1,967
Uinrealised gain on financial dervatives 40414 1,264
[265 640} 118 058
India 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2019
JPY 000 JEY000
Met gaingd(logses) on firancial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:
Feaised logs on invesiments (15 ]
Feaised gain on financial derivatives 79805 3,037
Unrealised gain on investments 56 62
Unrealised (lossl gain on fmancial derivatives (5.968) 2632
13878 LR
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund
1July 20181011 Year ended 30
Way 2020 (date June 2015
of termination)
JPY 000 JPY000
Met gainsl{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:
Resised (lossiiaan on mvestments {7123 15,537
Faaised st on inancid dermvaines (522.323) (45 292
Unrealised loss on investmeants . (7.111)
Unrealised gain on hinancal depivatives . 303 528
(523 025 152 3381
Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund
1July2019t0 11 Year ended 30
May 2020 (date Jure 2019
of termination)
JPY1000 JPY'000
Met gainsg{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:
Rreafized gain on inmestmeants 290 8,284
Reaised loss on financid dervatives (127,393} {148,103k
Uinrealised loss on investments - (8.749)
Unrealised gain on financeal dervatives - 53 843
[ 137, 103) (84,722
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

113

232/329

7. Met gainsi{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (conlinued)
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund
1July 2019 t0 11 Year ended 30
Way 2020 (date June 2019
of termination]
JPY 000 JEY000
Met gainsl/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair valus
through profit orloss:
Reaised gain on iInvestments 1,540 116,650
Realsed loss on financid déervabves (331 460} {274 854)
Unrealised loss on investments . {104, 853)
Unrealised gain on inancal derwatves . 41,937
(220 920} 21 1340
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 20r 809
ear ended 30 Year ended 30
Jure 2020 June 2019
AUD ALD
Met gaingl{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:
Reaised gain on iInvestments 204,736 6,236
Unrealised gain an investmeants 62537 4389 307
267 363 4,305 BO5
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2%
ALID ALID
Met gaing{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at falr value
thraugh profit or loss:
Feealised gain on invesiments 193,150 135,045
Unrealised (loss)gain on investments (235319} 068 397
42 169) 1,101,442
S Technology 2x Bull Fund
Year ended 30 June 2020
JPY000
Met gaing(logses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss:
Realised loss on investments {128}
Reahsed gain on financial dervaives 208 420
Unrealised loss an investmants {148}
Unrealised gain on financal dervathyas arA00
245,54
U3 Technology 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 June 2020
JPY 000
Met gains/({losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss:
Raahised loss on iInvastments {48}
Reahsed loss on inancid dermvatives (42 E06)
Unrealized loss on investmeants 125}
Unrealisad lass on linancid decedalivas (8.359)
151.238)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
8. Redeermable participating units in issue

Redeemable pardicipating units are classified as equity and liabilties when there is only one class and
more ihan one classes of units respectively. Redeemabile participating units are carried al the redemption
amount thal is payable al the date of the slalement of financial position if the holders exercise their rights
to put the units back te the sub-funds for cash al the relevani dealing day.

Redeemable paricipaling units are issued and redeemed al the option of the holders al prices based on
the sub-funds’ net asset value per unit at the time of issue or redemption.

The sub-funds’ net asset value per unit is calculated by dividing the net assets alfributable to holders of
each class of redeemable padicipating unils with the total number of oulstanding redeemable
parlicipating units for each respeclive class, In accordance with the provisions of the sub-fund's
regulations. invesiment posflions are valued based on the gquoled markel prices for the purpose of
defermining the net assel value per unit for subscriptions and redemplions. Unitholders may redeem
their units on any dealing day which is daily in whole or in pari,

In addifion, in accordance with the explanatory memorandum, the preliminary expenses incurred in the
formation of the Trust and the sub-funds are bormne by the sub-fund. Such expenses will be paid out of
the assetls of the sub-funds and ameorised over 3 years or & years or as delermined by the Manager.
However, as stated in Mote 2(1), the accounting policy of the sub-funds for the purpose of compliance
with IFRS and for reporting purpose is lo expense the expenses incurred in the formation of the sub-
funds in the period in which they arose.

Each sub-fund net asseis value represents an equity or liabilifies in the siatement of financial position,
carried al the redemption amount that would be payable at the stalement of financial position date if the
unitholders exercised the right to redeem the units.

As al 11 May 2020 (date of lerminafion), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL, Resources Twin
Alpha TRY and Resources Twin Alpha UISD had no difference by the sub-fund in arving at net assets
atfributable fo unitholders in the statement of financial position.

As at 3 June 2020 (dale of termination), the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, had
no diference by the sub-fund in arriving at nel assets aliributable to unitholders in the statement of
financial position.

For the purpose of these financial stalements, the following are required to be recognised in the
calculation of the sub-funds' net assets value:

As al 30 June 2020 the sub-funds, China 2x Bear Fund have a redemption of index swap which is nol
included in the nel asset value for subscriptions and redemplions. For the purpose of these financial
stalements, they are required to be recognised in the calculation of the sub-funds’ net essels value.

As al 30 June 2020 the sub-funds, Gold 2x Bull Fund, have a subscription of index swap which is nol
included in the nel asset value for subsecriplions and redemplions. For the purpose of these financial
stalements. they are required to be recognised in the calculation of the sub-funds’ net assels value.

As at 30 June 2019 lhe sub-fund, China 2x Bull Fund has a subscripion of index swap which is not
included in the nel asset value for subscriptions and redemplions. For the purpose of thase financial
stalements, they are required to be recognised in the calculation of the sub-funds’ net assels valua.

A reconcilialion of the equity per the financial statements and the trading nel assel value for
issuing/redeeming units at the financial year end/period is prepared below,

3 June 2020 2019
{date of
termination)
BRL 2% Bull Fund SPY 000 JPYTO0D
Equity as par statemant of lnancia position . 370 301
Tradng nat asset value (for subscriptions and redemplions pUrposes) - 370391
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

g Redeemable participating units in issue {continued)
3 June 2020 2019
(date of
termiration)
BRL 2x Bear Fund JPY000 JPYO00
Equity as per statement of fmancia position Z 20 245
Tradng net assel value (for subscrpions and redemplions purposes) . 29,295
2020 2019
China 2x Bull Fund JPYO00 JPYT00
Equity a5 per statement of fmancid position 195,851 593,989
Tradng net assel value (for subscrpions and redamplions purposes) 195 851 593 039
2030 2018
China 2x Bear Fund JPY 000 LJPYTO0D
Equity as per statemant of linancia position 157 BE5 329083
Realised gainfoss diue to backdated rade (45} =
Tradng net asset value (for subscriptions and redempiions pUrposes) 157 931 329032
2030 218
Gold 2x Bull Fund JPY 000 JPYTO00
Equity as per statemant of fmancia position 485058 151,365
Tradng net asset value (for subscriptions and redemplions purposes) 455 059 151,365
2020 2019
Gold 2x Bear Fund JPY000 JPYTO00
Equity as per statemeant of fmancia position 45 010 3141
Tradng net assed value (for subscrpbons and redempiions purposes) 45,010 9,141
2020 2019
Il 2 Bull Fund JPY000 JPYT00
Equity as per statement of fmancial position 404 328 1.019.692
Tradng net asset value (for subscriphons and redamplions purposes) 404 325 1,013,692
2020 2019
India 2x Bear Fund JPYTD00 JPYT00
Equity as per statement of financid position 2072 172 020
Tradng nat assel value (for subscnpbons and redamplions purpdses) J.072 172020
11 May 2020 2019
(date of
termination])
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund JPY 000 SJPYTO00
Equity as per statemeant of fmancid position - 25,850
Tradng net asset value (for subscriptions and redemplions puUrposes) - 25850
11 May 2020 2018
{date of
termination)
Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund JPY 000 LJPYTO0D
Equity as per statemant of imancia position - 250137
Tradng net asset value (for subscriptions and redemplions purposes) = 250137
115
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 Redeemable participating units in issue {continued)
11 May 2020 2019
{date of
termiration)
Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund JPY 000 JPYO0D
Equity as per statement of fmancid position - 931,629
Tradng nat assel value (for subsciplions and redemplions purposes) - 521,629
2020 2019
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 AUD AUD
Equity as per statement of fmancial position 119,727 878 123 594192
Tradng net asset value (for subscriptions and redamplions purposes) 119,727 BT= 123 504 192
2020 218
ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612 AUD AUD
Ecuity as par ctatemaent of financial position 36,023 813 AT ETT X8
Trading net asset value {for subsanptions and redemplions purposas) 36023813 37 ETT, 208
2000
US Technology 2x Bull Fund JPYO00
Equity a5 per statement of financial position QX518
Establishment cost expensed off 3551
Trading met asest value (for subscaptions and redemplions purpooss) 030,369
2020
US Technology 2x Bear Fund SJPYOO0
Euity as per statement of financeal position 137,823
Establishment cost expensed off 514
Trading met asoet vaue for subscaplions and redermplions purpossc) 138 347

As al 11 May 2020 (dale of lerminalion), the sub-funds, Resources Twin Alpha BRL, Resources Twin
Alpha TRY and Resources Twin Alpha USD had no units in issue.

Az al 3 June 2020 (dale of terminalion), the sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund. had
no units in issue,

The sub-funds, BRL 2x Bull Fund, BRL 2x Bear Fund, Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources
Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund, issue one class of units as at 30 June
2019,

The sub-funds, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India
2x¢ Bull Fund, India Zx Bear Fund, AUD Targei Maturity BEond Fund 201609, AUD Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201612, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund have one class of units
as at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019 respectively,

Duwring the year 30 June 2020, the sub-funds. China 2x Bul Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull
Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund and India 2x Bear Fund have dosed Class B and launched
Class Cin issue,
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 Redeemable participating units in issue {continued)
BRL 2x Bull Furnd BRL 2x Bear Fund
3 June 2020 3 June 2020
(date of {ctate of
termination) a0ia terrination) ]
Class B
Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of
year 38,650 25,950 3,260 BRI
Linits issued 63,200 57,030 24370 0320
Lnits redesmed {102.450) {44.3304 (27 630) [20,120)
Mumber of units in iBsue & the end of year a A8 650 - 3 360
Equity - JFY 000 370,301 28,245
Met asset valus per uni - JFY'0O0 9583 5971
BRL 2x Bull Fund BRL 2x Bear Fund
3 June 2020 3 June 2020
(date of {date of
termination) 2019 termination) 2019
Class A
Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of
ear 58,800 11.700
Lnits issuad - -
Units redeamed {58 2000 {11,700}
Mumber of URILS in issue & the and of year - -
Equity - JFY 000
Met asset value per uni - JPY'000
China 2x Bull Fund China Zx Bear Fund
2020 g 2020 19
Class B
Mumber of units in 15508 at the bagnning of
year 83,720 54170 33,220 13,210
Lrits pssuad 188,630 3NE0 53,090 3 900
Units redearmed {272 350} {287 2600 {121 310} (74, 280)
Mumber of units in Bsue & the end of year - &2 720 - 332X
Equity - Py 000 503 9Bg 339033
Met asset value perung - JFY'000 7045 9905
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
2020 b i) 2020 A9
Class A
Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of
ear 27,500 47 360
Units issued - -
Lnits redesmed (27 00 (47 260)
Mumber of units in Bsue A the and of year . -
Equity - JPY 000
Mat asset value per und - JPY'000
China 2% Bull Fund China 2 Bear Fund
2020 g 2020 19
Class C
Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of
year - -
nits issued 29,330 18,300
Units redesamed {7.120) (1,760)
Mumber of units in issue & the end of year 220 E.Sqlil
Equity - JPY 000 195,851 157 886
Met asset value peruni - JFY'000 5818 3.546
117
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3 Redeemable participating units in issue {continued)
Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2¢ Bear Fund
2020 a9 2020 219
Class B
Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of
year 14,350 5520 1,020 1
Linits issued 85,830 3560 18,120 5.130
Linits redesmed (100, 150) (22,730) {19, 200) {4.140]
Mumber of units in issue & the and of year . 14,250 . 1,005
Equity - JPY 000 - 151,265 - ERER
Met asset value per uni - JEY'000 - 10 548 - 5464
Gold Zx Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
2020 ama 2020 2018
Class A
Mumbrer of units in 155sue at the bagnning of
ear . 18,030 . 1,170
Lnits sssuead - - . .
Units redaarmed . {18 030 . {1,170)
Mumber of units in msue & the end of year - - - -
Equity - JFY 000
Met asset value perung - JFY'000
Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
2020 g 2020 2019
Class C
Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of
e . . .
Units issued 54 150 - 7,380
Linits redesmed {9.450) : (1.914)
Mumber of units in ssuae & the end of year 44,700 - 5470
Equity - Py 000 a05,00 : 25010
Met asset value per un - JEY'0O0 10.851 - 8.229
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
bl 2020 2019
Class B
Mumber of unts in issue at the beginning of
Wear 105,520 140,250 20,830 5 080
Units issuad 155,740 255 300 60,290 TE.060
Linits redearmed (261 560) {163,730 (&1, 240) (63, 250)
Mumber of units in issue & the end of year - 105 520 - 20 250
Equity - JFY 000 - 1019692 - 172020
Met asset valus per ung - JFY'000 . 9 536 - B.250
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
2020 b ] 2020 2019
Class A
Mumbes of units in issue at the begnning of
year - 157,070 . 16,140
lnits issued - - - -
Units redesmed - {157 070) - (16, 140]
Mumbier of unis in issue o the end of year - . - -
Equity - JPY 000
Met asset value per uni - JPY000
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
2020 209 2020 218
Class C
Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of
yEar 2 . .
Units issued 78,940 - 8,290
Units redeamed (31, 720) - (3.8630)
Mumber of units in Bsua & the and of year 4735 - 4 A6
Equity - JPY 000 404,328 - 072
Met asset value perunit - JEY'000 8 563 - 5761
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Class C

Mumber of units in issue at the béginning of
year

Units issuad

Units radearmed

MNumber of units in issue & the end of year

Equity - JY" 000

Met esset value perung - JPY'000

3 Redeemable participating units in issue {continued)
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Resources Twin Alpha TRY
Fund Fund
11 May 2020 11 May 2020
(date of {ctate of
termination) 209 termination) a9
Class 1412
Mumber of units in issue af the beginning of
year 1,096,230 2152031 378,569 54529
Lnits issued 31,872 5 053 - .
Linits redesrmed (1,128202) (1,001,759 {378 560) {166,722
Mumber of units in issue & the end of year - 1 (EIE 330 - 378 Sk
Equity - JFY 000 F25550 25901357
Met asset value per uni - JBY'000 0753 (661
Resources Twin Alpha USD
Fund
11 May 2020
(date of
termination) i o]
Class 1412
Mumbes of units in issue at the baginning of
year 875,065 1626002
nits issued . 5
Lnits redesmed 1875, 054) (?51_&[!55
Mumber of units in ssua A the end of year - 87
Equity - JFY 000 931,629
Met esset value peruni - JPY'II0 1,065
AUD Target Maturity Bond AUD Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201609 Fund 201612
2020 a9 2020 2018
Class B
Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of
yesr 1,194,130 1,270,730 337 630 53 060
Lnits issued - - - -
LInits recearmed (35.730) {76 £00) {13 200 {15430
Mumber of units in issuse A the end of year 1.158 400 1,194 130 324430 337630
Equity - AUD 119,727 878 123,504 192 36023813 ArEIr208
Met aseet valus parund - ALD 103,35 103 50 111.04 111.54

us us
Technology 2x Technology 2x

Bull Fund Bear Fund
2020 2020
135,210 87,330
(74, 730) 155, 8400
G0.4.X0 21490
926,818 137 523
15340 5413
118
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9 Management fee

The Manager is entitled to receive management fee for each sub-fund as disclosed in the Prospectus or

a Supplement from time to time.

The Manager may voluntarily undertake to reduce or waive iis management fee to reduce expenses of
a sub-fund to the extent that such expenses exceed such lower expense limitation as the Manager may
voluntarily declare to be effective. The Manager may terminate or modify this voluntary undertaking at
any lime at its scle discretion upon notice in writing to the frustes and unitholders.

The Manager has agreed to reimburse expenses if the total expenses induding administration fee,
custody fee, Irustee fee, registrar fee, financial reporting fee and CIMA registration annual fee excead
1.5% of MAV for BRL 2x Bull Fund, BRL 2x Bear Fund, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold
2% Bull Fund, Gold 2% Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, US Technology 2x Bull Fund

and LIS Technology 2 Bear Fund.

The Manager is charging a managemen! fee of 0.46% of NAV for Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund.
Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund, Resouwrces Twin Alpha LISD Fund.

The Manager is charging a management fee of 0.51% of the imwestment of (i) the initial issue price and
{iiy the number of cutstanding units in issue as of relevant Valuation Day. The Manager will pay. oul of
this fee, the fees and expenses of the Trustee, Custodian, Administrator, Transfer Agent and Audilor for
ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and the ALID Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201612,

Please see below for the amounis incurred during the period and amounts payable at ihe year ended 30

June 2020:
BRL Zx Bull Fund BRL Zx Bear Fund
For the period For the period
1 July 2019 to 1 July 2019 to
3 June 2020 3 June 2020
(date of  ‘ear ended 30 {date of  Year ended 30
termination) June 2013 termination)  June 2019
JFY000 JPY000 JPY000 JPY'000
Management fee (rebate) / incurmed {3 196) {2 5500 (3325} {3 295)
Management fee rebae (recervable) / peyable { 1. 706) (1,775 (238T) {1.923]
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2018 Jure 2020 Jurne 2015
JPY000 JEY000 JPY000 JPY'000
Mamagement fee {rebate) f incumed {2.653) {3,047 (2413 {3.381)
Management fee rebale (receivable) § payable {B33) {1538 (367} {1.718)
Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2¢ Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
Jure 2020 June 2013 SJure 2020 June 2015
JPY000 JPY000 JPY000 JPY000
Managermant fea (rebata) fincurad {2 853) {3518 (3187} {3 616]
Managament fes rebaa (recanvabla) § payale 779 {1,760 {484} {1,815}
120
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9.

Management fee (corfinued)

India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 Jure 2019 Jure 2020 June 2019
JFY 000 SPYO00 JEYDO0 JPY000
Management fea (rebate) Fincurmad {2,065) {2,383 [3,144) {3,541)
Managament fes rabale (récevabla) / payable [Z31) {1,259 (918} {1, 768)
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Resources Twin Alpha TRY
Fund Fund
For the period For the period
1 July2019 to 1 July 2019 to
11 May 2020 11 May 2020
(date of Year ended 30 {date of Year ended 30
termination) June 2018 termination) June 2019
JPY 000 SJPY000 JPY000 JPY000
Managament les (rebate) [ incurmad 1,608 3814 576 G35
Management lee rebae (recenvable) | payabie {B34) B85 {653 144
Resources Twin Alpha USD  AUD Target Maturity Bend
Fund Fund 201609
For the period
1 July 2019 to
11 May 2020
(date of  Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
termination)  June 2019 Jure 2020 June 2019
JFY 000 SEY000 AUD AUD
Management fee (rebate) / incumed 1,874 4 2350 296175 615,545
Management fee rebate (receivable) / paysabie {585 207 146 778 216723
us us
ALID Target Maturity Bond  Technology 2% Technology 2x
Fund 201612 Bull Fund Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2019 Jurse 2020 June 2020
AUD AUD JPY000 JPY000
Management fes (rebate) [ incurmed 141 668 145 369 {E&5) (790
Management fee rebale (recevable) § payabie 32160 40036 (E35) (ra0)

Trustee fee

The sub-funds pays truslee fees at rales agreed from fime to lime. The Trusiee is also be entitled to

recover out-of-pocket expenses in performing its services.

As of 26 April 2016, the trustee fee has been changed lo a fixed annual fee of LIS$2 500 per sub-fund.

The Manager will pay the frustee fes for the sub-funds, AUD Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and

ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612,
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Trustee fee (confinued)

Pleaze see below for the amounts incurred during the year and amounts payable al the year ended 30
June 2020 and 30 June 2019:

BRL 2% Bull Fund

BRL Zx Bear Fund

For the peried 1 Year ended For the peried “ear ended
July 2019t0 3 30 June 2019 1Jduly20M9tad 30 June 2019
Jure 2020 (date Juirs 2020
of termination) {date of
termination)
SJEYEO00 JEY000 SJPYO00 JPY'000
Trustes fes ncurrad 3se 361 388 361
Trustes fes prepayment {253) [258)
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Year endad Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2020 30 Jurne 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 219
JPY000 JPY000 JPYO00 JPY'000
Trustes fes moumad 310 332 210 322
Trustes fes prepayment {623} 383 {1.026) 363
Gald 2x Bull Fund Gold 2% Bear Fund
Year ended Year ended Year ended 30 Year ended 30
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 June 2020 June 2019
SJEYH000 JEY000 SJPYO00 JPY'000
Trustes fes ncumed 30 3 310 N
Trustes fes prepenymant {524} 363 {G24) 63
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Year endad Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
JPY000 JPY000 JPYO00 JPY'000
Trushes fes moumad 30 321 10 an
Trustes fes prepayrment {655} 33 {ET4] 313

Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund

Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund

For the periad 1 Year ended Far the pericd Year ended
July 2019 to 11 30 June 2019 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019
May 2020 {date of 11 May 2020
termiration) (date of
terminatior)
JPYO00 JEY000 JPYO00 JPY000
Trustes fes ncumed 265 268 265 264
Trustes fes prepaymeant {114} [114]
Resources Twin Alpha LUSD Fund US Technology us
2x Bull Fund Technology 2x
Bear Fund
For the period 1 Year ended Year ended Year ended
July 2019 to 11 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 Jure 2020
May 2020 (date of
termiration)
JPY000 JP000 JPYO00 JPY'O00
Trustes fea mcurrad 265 e 127 127
Trustes fes prepayment {114} 127 127
122
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

.

Administrators fee

The administrators, BMP Paribas Securities Services, operating though its Singapore Eranch and BENP
Paribas Fund Services Dublin Limited, are paid a service fee as may be agreed betwsen the directors
and the Administrater from time to time. In addition, the Administrators are enfitled to receive out of the
assets of lhe Fund other service fees. transaclion fees and out-of-pockel expenses as sel oul in the

administration agreemen.

The Manager will pay the administralor fee for the sub-funds, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
and ALD Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201612,

Please see below for the amounts incurred durng the year and amounts payable at the year ended 30

June 2020 and 30 June 2019

Adrministration fee incurmed

Adrministrat on fee payable

Administration fes incurmed

Administration fea payable

Administration fea incurmed

Administration fee payable

Adrministration fee incurred

Administration fee payable

Adrmnistrabon fee incurmed

Adrmnistrabon fee parvable

BRL Zx Bull Fund
For the period
1 July 2018 to
3 June 2020
(date of  Year ended 30
termination) June 2019

BRL 2x Bear Fund
For the period
1 July 2018 to
3 June 2020
{date of  Year ended 30
termination)  June 2019

JE 000 JEY000 JFYD00 JEY000
2.2d7 2542 2247 2542
1,045 2170 1045 2170
Chira 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund

Year ended 30 Year ended 30

Year ended 30 Year ended 30

Jurne 2020 Jupe 2018 Surve 2020 June 2019
JEY 000 SJEY000 JEYD00 JEY000
2251 2223 2,249 220
1083 2 767 1083 2. T6T
Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2% Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
Jurne 2020 June 2019 Sure 2020 June 2019
JEY000 JPY000 JEYO00 JPY000
2232 2223 2234 2.2
1,082 2767 1032 2767
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
SJurve 2020 June 2018 SJure 2020 Jurne 2019
JEY 000 JPY000 JPYO00 JPYI000
2190 2223 2,255 2223
1,063 2.T67 1,083 2. 5T
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Resources Twin Alpha TRY
Fund Fund
For the pariod For the period
1 July 2018 to 1 July 208 to
11 May 2020 11 May 2020

(date of ‘fear ended 30
termination) June 2018

{date of Year ended 30
termination) June 2019

JPY000 JPY000 JPYTO00 JPY'000
1,861 2A81 2046 2481
276 3 087 876 3,105
123
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

.

12.

Administrators fee (confinued)

Resources Twin Alpha USD us us
Fund Technology Technelogy
2% Bull Fund 2% Bear Fund
Fer the Year endad ear ended Year ended 30
period 1 July 30 Jurne 2013 30 June 2020 Juree 2020

2019t0 11
May 2020
(date of
termination)
JPY000 JPY000 JPY000 JPYTO00
wmmnistration fee incurned 1,832 2431 470 470
dAmnisirabon fes payable 817 3 103 470 470

Custodian fee

The cuslodian, BNP Paribas Securities Services, operating through its Singapore Branch, s paid a
sepvice fee as may be agreed between the directors and the custodian fram lime to time. In addition, the
custodian is entitled 1o receive out of the assels of the sub-funds other service fees, transaction fees and
out-of-pocket expenses as sel oul In the custodian agreement.

The Manager will pay the custodian fee for the sub-funds, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and
ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612,

Flease see below for the amounts incurmed during the year and amounts payable at the year ended 20
June 2020 and 30 June 2019

BRL 2x Baull Fund BRL 2x Bear Fund
For the period For the period
1 July2019 to 1 July 2019 to
3 June 2020 3 June 2020

(date of  Year ended 30 {date of  Yearended 30
termination June 2018 termination June 2019

JFY000 JPY000 JEYT000 JPY000
Custody fee incurrad 247 282 218 225
Custody fee payable 112 6T 104 280
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund

Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2018 Jurne 2020 June 2019

JPY000 JPY000 JPYTO00 JPY000
Custody fee incurmad {135} 203 {5448) 252
Custody fea payshle 06 535 311 S0
Gold Zx Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund

‘Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
Jurne 2020 June 2019 SJure 2020 Jure 2019

JEY 000 JEY000 JEYDO0 JPY000
Custody fee ncurred {145) 235 (1&80) 215
Custody fee payable 310 475 272 428
124
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12.

13.

Custodian fee (continued)

India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2020 June 2019 Jure 2020 June 2019

JEY 000 JEY000 JFY000 JPY000
Custody fee incurmad [91] 77 {176) 230
Custody fee payable 404 TS50 281 453
Resources Twin Alpha BRL Resources Twin Alpha TRY
Fund Fund
For the period For the period
1 July 2019 to 1 July 20119 to
11 May 2020 11 May 2020

(date of Year ended 30 (date of Year ended 30
termination) June 2018 termination) June 2019

JPY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JPY000
Custody fee incumed {252) 916 182 416
Custody fee payaible 122 1.636 177 853
us us
Resocurces Twin Alpha USD  Technology 2x Technology 2x
Fund Bull Fund Bear Fund
For the pariod
1 July2013 to
11 May 2020

(date of  Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
termination)  June 2019 uree 2020 June 2020
JFY 000 JEY000 JFYO00 JEY000

Custody fes incurmad (100 735 a3 71

Custody fee payable 258 1317 (&2) 713

Transfer Agency and Registrar

The transfer agency and registrar, BNP Paribas Trust Services Singapore Limited, is paid a service fee
as may be agreed between the directors and the transfer agency and registrar from time to time. In
addilion, the fransfer agency and registrar is entilled to receive out of the assets of the sub-funds ofher
senvice fees, transaclion fees and out-of-pocket expenses as sel oud in the transfer agency and regisirar
senvices agreement,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
14, Distribution

Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund 2020 2019
JPY00 JPY000

Juby 2019 Dividend Distnibubion at JFY 7 per unit for the vear ended

June 2020 TET4
August 2019 Dyndend Distribution at JPY 7 per unit for the year

ended June 2020 TET
Saptember 2019 Dwvidend Distnbaution at JPY 6 par unit for the year

ended June 2000 G474
Octobar 2019 Dyvvidend Distribution af &Y 8 par umit for the year

ended June 2000 2449
Movemiber 2019 Drvidend Distribution & &Y 4 per unit for the year

ended June 2050 4138 -
December 2019 Dovidend Castribubon & S 4 per unit for the year

ended June 2020 383 -
Jenuary 2020 Dwvidend Distribution at JFY 4 per unit for the year

ended June 2000 3694 -
February 2020 Cyadend Distnbution at J&Y 4 per unit for the wear

ended June 2020 3,694
March 2020 Diwvedend Drstnbation at JPY 1 per unit for the year

ended June 2020 40 -
Apnl 2020 Dividend Destnbation & JFY 2 per unit for the year ended

Jung 2020 1,745
Juby 2018 Drvidend Distribution af JFY 10 per unit for the year ended

Juna 2014 : 21,150
August 2018 Dedend Crstribubon at P77 10 per uni for the year

ended June 2019 . 16,654
September 2018 Cwidend Distnbatsan at &Y 10 per unit for the year

ended June 2019 - 15,364
October 2018 Dwvidend Distribubon at JPY 10 per unit for the year

endad June 2019 - 14,647
Movember 2018 Divicend Dystibubon & &Y 10 per unit for the yesr

ended June 2019 - 14455
December 2018 Dyvidend Distribution & JPY 5 per unit for the year

ended June 2019 g 1202
Jenuary 2019 Dividend Distribution at JFY S per unit for the year

ended June 2019 - nm
February 2019 Dradend Distribution 2t JEY § par unit for the year

ended June 2019 - 5881
March 2019 Dyvidend Distnbution at JPY 5 par unit for the year

ended June 2019 a 6 T68
Apnil 2019 Dradend Cestribution 2t JPY 5 per unit for the year ended

June 2019 - 638
Wary 2019 Dividend Distrioution at JEY 10 per unit for the year endead

Juna 2019 . 10,963
June 2019 Dwidend Distribution at JPY 8 per unit for the yesr endad

Juna 2014 . 8772

W14 T At
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NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
14. Distribution (continued)

Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund 2020 2019
JPYTO00 SPYO00

Juby 2019 Dividend Distribution et JFY 3 per unit for the year ended

June 2020 1,136 -
August 2019 Dividend Distribution at JPY 3 per unit for the year

ended Jung 2000 1,136
September 2019 Dridend Distribageon at JP'Y 3 per unit for the year

ended Juné 2020 1.136
October 2019 Dridend Distribution at JFY 3 per unit for the year

ended June 2000 1.114
Movember 2019 Dradend Cistribution & J&Y 3 per unif for the year

ended June 2050 1,096
Decamber 2019 Drvidend Cretribution & BPY 3 per unit for the year

ended June 2020 1,071 -
Jenuary 2020 Dvidend Distnbution at JEY 3 par unit for the year

ended June 2020 1097
February 2020 Diadend Distnbution at J&Y 3 per unit for the year

ended June 2020 203
March 2020 Divedend Destabution at JFY 1 per unit for the year

ended June 2000 k]|
April 2020 Drvadand Destribition A JPY 2 per unit for the year ended

June 2020 G662
Juby 2018 Drvidend Distribubon at JPY 5 par unit for the year endad

June 209 - 27X
Auguast 2018 Dividend Distribution at &Y 5 per unit for the year

ended June 20149 - 2306
September 2018 Dvwidend Distibution at JPY 5 per unit for the year

ended June 2019 - 2235
October 2018 Dwidend Distribution at JBY 5 per unit for the year

ended June 2019 - 260
Movember 2018 Dyvidend Distibution & J&Y 5 per unit for the year

ended June 2019 : 2.180
December 2018 Dividend Dhstribution & J&Y 5 per uni for the year

endad June 2019 = 2,145
Jenuary 2019 Deadend Distnbution at JFY S per unit for the year

ended June 2019 . 2056
February 2012 Dvadend Distribution at JFY 5 per uni for the year

ended June 2019 . 2056
March 2019 Divedend Drstnbution at JPY 5 per unit for the year

ended June 2019 . 187
April 30149 Divadend Dystribution & 7Y 5 per unit for the year ended

Juna 2019 - 18
Mary 2019 Dovidend Diatribution 2t JPY 5 per unit for the year ended

June 2019 - 1593
June 2019 Dwvidend Distribution at JEY 2 per unit for the year ended

June 2019 - 137

9592 4,507
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NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cortinued)
14. Distribution (continued)

Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund 2020 2019
JPYTO00 SPYO00

Juby 2019 Dividend Cistribution et JFY 10 per unit for the year ended

Jung 2020 8560 -
August 2019 Dividend Distribation at JPY 13 per unit for the year

ended Jung 2000 10,743
September 2019 Dridend Distnibateon at B 12 per unit for the year

ended Juné 2020 9,758
October 2019 Dridend Distribution at JFY 12 per unit for the year

ended June 2020 9585
Movember 2019 Dradend Distribution o J&Y 12 per unit for the year

ended June 2030 9,193
Decamber 20119 Dividand Distrbution a1 JPY 12 par unit fior the year

ended June 2020 8880 -
Jenuary 2020 Drvidend Distnbution at JFY 13 per unit for the year

ended June 2020 Q206
February 2020 Cividend Distribution at JFY 14 perunit for the year

ended June 2020 2550
March 2020 Divedend Destabution at JFY 1 per unit for the year

ended June 2000 GrE
April 2020 Drvadand Destribition & JPY 2 per unil for the year ended

June 2020 1311
Juby 2018 Drvidend Distribubon at JPY 10 per unit for the year ended

Juna 2009 . 16,261
August 2018 Dividend Drstribubon at JPY 10 per unit for the year

ended June 20149 - 14,202
September 2018 Dwidend Distibution at JPY 10 per uni for the year

ended June 2019 - 13,642
October 2018 Dividend Distrioution at JFY 10 per unit for the year

ended June 2019 - 11,438
Movember 2018 Dvidend Dustibuton & J&Y 10 per unit for the year

ended June 2019 - 11,280
December 2018 Dividend Dustribution & J&Y 10 per unit for the year

endad June 2019 a 10,565
Jenuary 2019 Dradend Distnbution at JFY 10 per unit for the year

ended June 2019 . 10481
February 2013 Dividend Distribution at JEY 10 pear unit for the year

ended June 2019 . 10,051
March 2019 Divedend Drstnbution at JPY 10 per und for the year

ended June 2019 . a,702
April 70149 Divadend Dustribution & JPY 10 per unit for the year ended

June 2018 - 9,540
Mary 2019 Devidend Distribution 2t JPY 10 per wnit for the year ended

Juna 2019 - 9,130
June 2019 Dwvidend Distribution at JPY 10 per unit for the year ended

June 2019 - £ 752

77650 1303
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
15. Taxation

There is, at present, no direct taxation in the Cayman Islands and inferest, dividends and gains payable
to the sub-funds in respect of the Trusl will be received free of all Cayman |slands taxes. Each sub-fund
is regislered as an "exempted trust” pursuant to the Trusts Law (as amended). The Trustee has applied
for, and expects to receive, an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman |slands to the
effect that, for a period of 50 years from the creation of each sub-fund, no law that lhereafter iz enacted
in lhe Cayman Islands imposing any tax or duty to be lesed on income or on capital assets, gains or
appreciation or any & in the nature of eslate duty or inheritance tax will apply lo any property comprised
in or any income arising under each sub-fund, or to the Unitholders thereof, in respect of any such
property or income.

The Cayman Islands are not party lo any double taxation Ireaties. Under current Cayman |slands law no
fax will be charged in the Cayman Islands on profits or gains of a sub-fund and dividends of a sub-fund
will be payable to unitholders reside in or outside the Cayman Islands wilhou deduction oftax. MNo stamp
duly is levied in the Cayman Islands on the transfer or redemplion of unils in a sub-fund, The sub-funds
imsest in securities issued by entities which are domiciled in countries other than the Cayman Islands.
Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes are required to be
determined on a seif-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the sub-
fund's broker on a “withholding” basis.

16. Transactions with related parties/associates
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to controd the other parly o exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decision disclosed in notes 9,
10,11, 12 and 13.

All related party Iransactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms.

17. Post Balance Sheet events

There are no significant events after the year end date that would have an impact to the financial
statements.

18. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustee and the Manager on 18
December 2020.

129
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2020 10
35,881,847.86 2,640,186,366
571,154.13 42,025,521
35,310,693.73 2,598,160,845
316,560
111.55 8,208
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BNP
049319 #01 01 20

50

39

29.2
33.6

14

50
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2020 10
2,500 26 1,500
25,000,001 25,000,000

2007 11
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AIFM AIFMD FCA
FCA J.P.
AIFM
AIFMD
2020 10
2020 10

21 1,711
1 357
17 2,722
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J.P.

2019 12 31
2019 2018
13 13,661,742 1,429,018 15,039,799 1,573,163
14 6,637,394 694,271 1,366,872 142,975

20,299,136 2,123,290 16,406,671 1,716,138

15 (6,041,154) (631,905)  (2,531,571) (264,802)
14,257,982 1,491,385 13,875,100 1,451,335
14,257,982 1,491,385 13,875,100 1,451,335

16 25,000,002 2,615,000 25,000,002 2,615,000

34,864 3,647 34,864 3,647

(10,776,884)  (1,127,262) (11,159,766)  (1,167,312)

14,257,982 1,491,385 13,875,100 1,451,335

2020 22

2020 22
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2019 12 31
2019 2018

6 9,460,856 989,606 2,298,136 240,385

6 (5.281,301) (552,424)  (1,829,170) (191,331)

(3,807, 165) (398,229)  (3,471,754) (363,145)

7 2,193 229 33,904 3,546

374,583 39,181  (2,968,884) (310,545)

8 103,410 10,817 117,398 12,280

9 (8,500) (889) (18,674) (1,953)

10 469,493 49,109  (2,870,160) (300,219)
11 (86,611) (9,060)

382,882 40,049  (2,870,160) (300,219)

2018

2018
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J.P.

2019 12 31

2018
25,000,002 2,615,000 34,864 3,647 (8,289,606)  (867,093) 16,745,260 1,751,554
(2,870,160)  (300,219) (2,870,160)  (300,219)

2018 12 31
25,000,002 2,615,000 34,864 3,647 (11,159,766) (1,167,312) 13,875,100 1,451,335
382,882 40,049 382,882 40,049

2019 12 31

25,000,002 2,615,000 34,864 3,647 (10,776,884) (1,127,262) 14,257,982 1,491,385
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J.P.
JP
JP
E14 5JP 25
FCA
FCA
101 FRS 101
FRS 101 EU
IFRS
2006
FRS 101 EU IFRS
IFRS 45(b)
46 52
1AS 38 1AS
1AS 79(a)
IFRS 1AS 16
1AS
1AS 30 31
IAS 24 17 IAS 24

IAS 24
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4.8

4.9

4.9.1

SPPI SPPI

261/329



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.9.2

FVOCI FVTPL
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ECL
12
ECL
( ) ECL
SICR
JP
PD
EAD IFRS
ECL
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IFRS
2019 2018
3,227,052
6,233,804 2,298,136
9,460,856 2,298,136
(5,281,301) (1,829,170)
4,179,555 468,966
JpP
2019 2018
2,193 33,904
2019 2018
103,410 117,398
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2019 2018
8,500 18,674
2019 2018
98,509 83,430
23,263 28,680
1,538,626 1,625,099
267,990 262,064
149,485 154,951
299,742 278,572
2018
833,906 2018 540,332 595,644
2019 2018
86,611

86,611
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2019 2018
469,493 (2,870, 160)
19

89,204 (545, 330)
623 14,582

(3,216)
530,748

86,611

2019 2018
28,080 34,318
381 742
LTIP

4,355
3 3
3 3
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2019 200,000 2006
13
JP
14
2019 2018
6,637,394 1,366,872
JP 3,227,052 (018 : )
15
2019 2018
4,836,731 1,455,104
1,092,063 1,076,467
22,840
89,520
6,041,154 2,531,571
JP 1,017,347 2018
543,543
16
2019 2018
2018 2 2
25,000,000
2018 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000

25,000,002 25,000,002
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17
2019 101,409 2018 104,923
18
JP 2015
19 2018 15
LTIP LTIP 2019 12
31 75 2018 86 2022 LTIP
LTIP
LTI
RSU RSU
50 50
RSU
RSU
RSU
RSU SAR

2018 2019
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113.7 2018 110.72

299,742 2018 278,572
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Balance sheet

31 December 2019 2018
Mote $ ]

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 13 13,861,742 15,038,759

Deblors 14 6,637,304 1,366,872

20,209,136 16,406,671

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falfing due within one year 15 (8,041,154) (2,531,571)

Met current assets 14,257,882 13,875,100

MNet assets 14,257,982 13,875,100

Equity

Cabed-up share capital 16 25,000,002 25 000,002

Other reserves 34,864 34,854

Accumulated losses (10,776 884) {11.159,766)

Total equity 14,257 982 13,B75,100

The notes on pages 20 - 27 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Thie financ I-QI statements on pages 17 - 27 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 April 2020 and signed on its behalf
by:

Matthew Melling
Director

Date: 22 April 2020

-18 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Income statement

‘Year ended 31 December 209 2018
Mote $ $
Oparating income [ 9,460 856 2298138
Oparating expense ;] (5,281,301) {1.829,170)
Adminisirative expanses [3,B07,185) {3.471,754)
Other incomea 7 2,183 33,904
Operating profitiloss) 374,583 (2,968,884)
Inkerest and samilar meome B 103.410 117 398
Interast expanse and similar charges ' 8 (8.500) (18.674)
Profitiloss) before income tax 10 469,493 {2,B70,160)
Inmme; fax expanse 11 (BE.611) -

Profit/{loss) for the financial year 3ezBe2 (2.B70,160)

Statement of comprehensive income

There were no other items of comprehensive income or expense other than the profit(loss) for the financial year shown above (20158:
&nil), As a result, profit (2018: loss) for the financial year represents total comprehensive income (2018: expense) for the year.

The notes on pages 20 - 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity

Called-up Other Accumulated
share capital reserves losses Total equity
$ $ % $
Balance as at 1 January 2018 25,000,002 34,864 (8, 289,608) 16,745,260

Loss for the financial year - — {2,870,160) {2,870,160)

Balance as at 31 December 2018 25,000,002 34,884  {11,159,768) 13,875,100

Prafil for the financial year — _ 382 682 342 682

Balance as at 31 December 2019 25,000,002 34,864  (10,776,884) 14,257 982

Other reserves relate lo share based payment awards granted to employees by the Company.

The notes on pages 20 - 27 form an integral part of these financial statements,

18-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

MNotes to the financial statements

1. General information

The Company is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales. The Company's immediate parent
undertaking is The Bear Stearns Companies LLC, incorporated in the slate of Delaware in the United States of America ("U.5.") The
Company's ullimate parent undertaking, and the parent undertaking of the only group in which the resulls of the Company are
consolidated, is JPMorgan Chase & Co. (the “Firm" or "JPMorgan Chase™), which is incorporated in the state of Delaware in the
U.E. The consolidated financial statements of the Firm can be eblained from the Company’s registerad office at 25 Bank Street,
Canary Wharf, London, E14 5JP, England,

Principal activities

The Company iz an asset management company which provides risk management and stratlegic asset management services to
clients. The Company promotes, launches and manages funds, investments and other invesiment selutions in line with its regulatory
permissions as set by the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA”). The Company is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority ("FCA").

2. Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101, "Reduced Disclosure
Framework” (FRS 1017). FRS 101 applies the recognition and measurement requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU”) with reduced disclosures.

The financial staternents have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006,

The following exemptions from the reguirements of IFRS as adopted by the EU have been applied in the preparation of these financial
statements, in accordance with FRS 101;

»  Certain share based payment disclosures in respect of Group equity inslruments (IFRS 2, "Share-based payment”
paragraphs 45(b) and 46 to 52);

+  Comparative information disclosures (paragraph 38 of IAS 1, 'Presentation of financial statements' ("IAS 17) for
reconciliation of share capital (paragraph 79(a)(iv) of 1A5 1);

+  Statement of compliance to IFRS (paragraph 16, 1AS 1);
Cash flow statement and related notes (IAS 7 Cash flow statements);

+  Disclosures in relation to new or revised standards issued but not yet effective (paragraph 30 and 31, 1AS 8 "Accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors');

+  Key management compensation disclosures (paragraph 17, 1AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures’ ("|AS 24"));
+  Relaled party transactions with whelly owned group underiakings (IAS 24).

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements generally requires management o make judgements, estimates and assumplions that affect
the amounts recognised in the financial statements. Due to the nature of Company’s business and balances, no significant accounting
estimates or judgements were required in preparation of these financial statements.

4. Significant accounting policles

The following are the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have
been applied congistently in each of the years presented, unless atherwise stated,

4.1 Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and moneltary liabilities in foreign cumencies are translated inlo United States ("U.5.") dollars at rates of exchange
ruling on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Any gains or losses arising on franslalion are taken directly to the income
statement,

Mon-monetary items denominated inforeign currencies that are staled at historical cost are translated into U, S, dollars atthe exchange
rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

4.2 Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment

inwhich the enfity operates (the “functional currency™). U.S. dollars 15 considered as the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

=20 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.3 Income and expense recognition

Asset management fees

This revenue category includes fees from investment management and related services,

Investment management fees are typically based on the value of assets under management and are collected and recognised at
the end of sach perod over which the management services are provided and the value of the managed assets is known, The
Company has confractual arrangements with third parties for providing distribution and other services in connection with its asset
management activities.

Amounts paid to third-party service providers are recorded in operaling expenses under fund related expense. Operaling expenses
include, but not limited to custody costs, settlement and exchange fees, regulatory fees, administrative, audit or legal fees, Expenses
are recognised when the underlying contract becomes legally binding or at the agreed due date if later.

Income from Access agreement;

The Company has contraciual arrangements with another Group entity for providing services in the form of principal manager and
of investment manager for certain investmant struclure and to assist with the initial preparations of such products. Income fram this
agreement is arrived by Group enlity recouping cerain fixed costs as defined in the agreement and expenses incurred towards
establishing the Fund subject to the limits prescribed therain.

4.4 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, il is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
ean be made.

4.5 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits
The Company operales a defined contribution scheme for its employees.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan wnder which the Company pays a defined level of contributions, Qbligations for
contributions fo defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense and charged fo the income statement on an accrual
basis.

4.6 Share-based payment awards

Share-based payment awards may be made to employees of the Company under the Firm's incentive awards schemes, The fair

_value of any such shares, rights to shares or share options is measured whan the conditional award is made. This value is recognised
as the compensation expense to the Company over the period to which the performance critenia relate together with employer's
gocial security expenses or other payroll taxes. All of the awards granted are equity settled. The Company estimates the level of
forfeitures and applies this forfeiture rate at the grant date.

Additionally, the conditions that must be satisfied before an employee becomes entilled to equity instruments under the Firm's
incantive programs is taken info consideration. The Firm's Retirement Eligibility rules for restricted stock awarded as part of incentive
pregrams require the acceleration of the amaortisation of the award such that the award is fully expensed at the fime the retirement
eligibility comes into force.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenls include cash and balances at banks and leans and advances lo banks with maturities of three months
or less.

4.8 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax payable on taxable profits (current tax) is recognised as an expense in the period in which the profits arise. Income tax
recoverable on tax allowable losses is recognised as a current lax asset only 1o the extent that it is regarded as recoverable by offset
agains! taxable profits arising in the current or prior period. Current tax is measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacled or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arnsing from the diferences between the lax
bases of assels and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and
legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, which are expected lo apply when the deferred lax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset when there is both a legal right and
an intention to settle on a net basis.

=21-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.9 Financial instruments

4.9.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities

i. Recognition of financial assets and financial liabiliies

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrumnent. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date, which is the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell an asset,

ii. Classification and measuremeant of financial assets and financial liabilibes

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified and measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
or fair value through profit or loss. The classification is based on both the business medel for managing the financial assets and
their contractual cash flow characteristics. Factors considered by the Company in determining the business model for a group of
assets include past experience cn how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the assels’ performance is evaluated
and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed, and how managers are compensated.

On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified as measured at either amerised cost or fair value through profit or loss,
a) Financial assets and financial Fabilities measured al amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if they are held under a business model with the chjective to collect contractual
cash flows ("Hold to Collect’) and they have contractual terms under which cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
{"SPPI"). In making the SPP| assessment, the Company considers whather the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement (i.e., interest includes only consideration for the ime value of money, credit risk, other basic lending nsks and
a profit margin that is congistenl with a basic lending arrangement). Where the contractual terms intreduce exposune 1o risk or valatility
that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial agsets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest, As a result of the application of these criteria, only debt financial assets are eligible to
be measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets measured al amortised cost include cash and cash equivalents and debtors.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost unless they are held for trading or a designated as measured at fair value through
profit or loss, Most of the Company's financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.  Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost include trade creditars and accruals,

Financial assets and financial liabiities measured al amortized cost are initially recognized al fair value including transaction costs.
The initial amount recognised is subsequently reduced for principal repayments and for accrued interest using the effective interest
method. In addition, the carrying amaunt of financial assets is adjusted by recognising an expected credit loss allowance through
the profit or loss,

The effective interest method 5 used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period, The effective interest
rate i5 the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipls through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liakility or a shoner penod when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The effective interest
rate is established on initial recognition of the inancial asset or inancial Rability. The calculation of the effective interest rate includes
all fees and commissions paid or received, transaction costs, and discounts or premiums that are an integral part of the effective
interast rate. Transacton costs are incremental costs that are directly atributable o the acquisition, issuance or disposal of a financial
assel or financial liability.

Gains and losses arising on the disposal of financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised in “trading profit’ or other
non interest revenue as relevant.

4.9.2 Interast income and interest expense

Unless a financial asset is credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest method to the carrying
amount of a financial aszet before adjusting for any allowance for expected credit losses. If a financial asset is credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the carrying amount of the financlal asset including any
allowance for expected credit losses.

Interest expense on financial liabilities is recognised by applying the effective interest method to the amortised cost of financial
liabilities,

Interest income and expense on financial assets and financial liabilties measured at amornized cost and FVYOCI are presented
separately from financial instruments measured at amortised cost and FVTPL respectively.

-27.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (continued)

4.9.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises ECL for financial assets that are measured at amortised cost.

Provisions for ECL are recognised on initial recognition of the financial instrument based on expectations of credit losses at that
time, The credit loss allowance includes ECLs for financial instruments that may default in the next 12-month period for financial
instruments that have not observed a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition ("stage 17) or over a Iifetima period
for financial instruments that have observed a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition ("stage 2). The allowance
also includes lifetime ECLs for financial instruments where there is cbjective evidence of credit-impairment at the reparting date
{"stage 2°). In determining the appropriate stage for a financial instrument, the Company applies the definition of default consistent
with the Basel definition of default to maintain uniformity of the definition across the Firm.

The determination of the stage for credit losses under the ECL model is dependent on the measuremeant of a significant increase in
creditrisk ('SICR'). Indetermining SICR, the Company has conducted quantitative tests, which considers, but is not limited to, existing
risk management indicators, credit rating changes and reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. Forward-looking
information reflects a range of scenarios that incorporate macro-economic: factars that are composed and monitored by JPMorgan
Chase's firm-wide specialised economic forecasting team.

The key input components for the quantification of expected credit loss through the ECL model includes the probability of default
("PD"), loss given default "LGD") and exposure at default "EAD). The Company seeks to efficiently and effectively leverage as
much as possible existing regulatory and capital frameworks where overlap is present for IFRS 9, Differences observed between
content in existing framewarks and requirements under IFRS 9 have been identified and are adjusted accordingly. The inputs o the
ECL model capture historical datasets and a reasonable and supportable forecasting horizon to estimate expacted credit losses.
4,10 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or has been transferred
with either of the following conditions met:

a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset; or

b) the Company has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks énd rewards; but has relinquished control of the
assel,

Financial liabilities are derecegnised when they are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires,
4.11 Share Capital

The share capital of the Company uonaists; of ordinary shares, classified as equity.

5. Segmental analysis

The Company is not in scope of IFRS 8 "Operating segments’, as its debt or equity instruments are not traded on a public market,
therefore segmental analysis of the Company's revenue and assets is not necessary.

6. Operating income and expense

2019 2018

% 5

Access Agresment fees 3,227,052 —
Assel management fees

Irvesiment management fees 6,233,804 2,298 138

9,460,856 2,298,136

Fund costs (5.281,301) {1,828,170)

4,179,555 468,966

-93.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements (continued)

6.  Operating income and expense (continued)

Investment management fees represents fees for risk management and strategic asset management services, via its fund solutions
business. Current year income includes fees of $3,227,052 (2018; $nil) from other JPMorgan Chase underiakings pertaining to the
Access Agreement. Fund costs includes operating costs paid by the Company on behalf of the funds. This arrangement may include
payment of all the expenses or those expenses exceeding specific limit which has been agreed upon. The Company has disclosed
aperating income instead of turnover as this reflects more accurately the results and nature of the Company's activities.

7. Other income

2018 2018
§ $
Foreign exchange translation gain 2,183 33,904
8. Interest and similar Income
2018 2018
% $
Interest and similar income:
Financial instrumenis al amorlised cost 103,410 117,388
9. Interest expenses and similar charges
2018 2018
3 5
Imerest expense and similar charges:
Financial instrumenis al amonised cost 8,500 18,674
10. Profiti{loss) before income tax
2019 2018
$ $
Profitf{loss) bafore ncome tax is stated after charging:
Audifors’ remuneration for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements 4B 500 83,430
Audit-relaled assurance services 23,263 28,680
\Wages and salarias . 1,538 626 1,625,089
Social security costs 26T S0 262 D64
Other pension and benefit costs 148 485 154 851
Share based payments 299,742 278,572

The average manthly number of persons providing services to the Company during the year was & (2018: 6).
Administrative expenses include professional fees of 5833906 (2018 $540,332). other expenses of $585 644 (2018: 5498 626).

11. Income tax expense

2019 2018
5 5
(a) Analysis of tax charge for the year
Current taxation
UK Corporalion tax on profitiloss) for the year 88,611 _—
Total tax expense for the year 85,611 —_

-24 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

11.  Income tax expense (continued)
(b} Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year

The tax charge for the year is same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 19% (2018 19%). The differences are
explained below:

018 s
§ §
Profitiloss) before income tax 458,483 (2.870,180)
Profitiloss) before income tax multiplied by siandard rate of UK corporation tax 19% (2018; 19%) 89,204 (545,330)
Effects of.
Mon deductible expenses 623 14,582
Income nol taxable {3.216) -
Leoss surrenderad for nil consideration ) - 530,748
Taotal lax expense for the year 86,611 —
12. Directors’ emoluments and staff costs
2019 2018
3 $
Emoluments® 28,080 34,318
Total contributions o a defined contribution plan 181 747
Tatal value of long term incentive plans (LTIPs) (ncluding deferred cash) for all directors - 4 355
Mumber of directors with shares received or receivable under LTIPs 3 3
Mumber of dinectors to whom defined contribution pension rights accrued 3 3

*The amounts shown above in respect of emoluments paid to directors exclede amounts paid or due to directors under long term
incentive plans, the value of share opfions granted or exercised and benefits to which directors are entitled under any pension
schemes. .

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the directors’ emoluments above represent the proporlion paid or payable in
respect of qualifying services only. Directors also received emoluments for non-gualifying services, which are not required to
be disclosed.

Highest paid director

For 2019, the emaluments of the highest paid directer s under £200,000 which is not required to be disclosed under the requirements
af the Companies Act 2008,

13. Cash and cash equivalents

All bank balances are held with JPMorgan Chase undertakings,

14. Debtors
2019 2018
% §
Trade deblors G637.394 1,566,872

Trade deblors includes balance owed by JPMorgan Chase undertaking of $3,227,052 (2018: $nil).

=25 .
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

15. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2018 2018

1 $

Trade credidors 4 835,731 1,455 104
Aceruals 1,002,063 1,076 467
Bank overdrafl : 22,840 —
Tax kabilities 89,520 —
6,041,154 2,631,571

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year includes balances owed to JPMorgan Chase underiakings of $1,017,347 (2018
$543,543).

16. Called-up share capital

2013 2018
H] §

Issued and fully pald share capital
1{2018: 1) Ordinary share of £1 2 2
25,000,000 (2018: 25,000,000) Ordinary shares of $1 each 25,000,000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002

17. Pension costs

The Company participates in a defined contribution pensien scheme in the United Kingdom.

The Company recorded a total pension expense of $101,409 for the year 2019 (2018: $104,923),
18. Share based payments

Employee stock-based awards

The ultimate parent of the Company, JPMorgan Chase & Co. (the "Firm™) has granted long-term stock-based awards to certain key
employees under its LTIP (Long Term Incentive Plan), as amended and restated effective May 19,2015 and further amended and
restated affective May 15, 2018. Under the terms of the LTIP, as of 31 December 2019, 75 million shares of common stock were
available for issuance through bMay 2022 (2018: 85 million shares), The LTIP is the only aclive plan under which the Firm is currently
granting stock-based incentive awards. In the following discussion, the LTIP, plus prior Firm plans and plans assumed as the result
of acquisitions, are referred to collectively as the "LTI Plans® and such plans constitute the Firms's siock-based incentive plans.

The Firm separately recognises compensation expense for each tranche of each award as if it were a separate award with ils own
vesting date, For each tranche granted, compensalion expense is recognised in line with how awards vest from the grant date until
the wvesling date of the respeclive tranche, provided that the employees will not become full-career eligible during the vesting pericd.
For awards with full-career eligibility provisions and awards granted with no future substantive service requirement, the Firm accrues
the estimated value of awards expected to be awarded to employees as of the grant date without giving consideration to the impact
of post-employment restriclions. For each tranche granted fo employees who will become full-career eligible during the vesting
pericd, compensation expense is recognised in line with how awards vest from the grant date until the earlier of the employee’s full-
career eligibility date or the vesting date of the respective tranche.

Restricted stock units

Restncted stock units ("RSUs") are awarded at no cost te the recipient upen their grant. RSUs are generally granted annually and
generally vest at a rate of 50% after two years, 50% after three years, and convert into shares of common slock at the vesting date.
In addition, RSUs typically include full-career eligibility provisions, which allow employees to continue to vest upon voluntary
termination, subject to post-employment and other restrictions based on age or service-related reguirements. All of these awards
are subject to forfeiture until vested and contain clawback provisions that may result in cancellation pricr to vesting under cerlain
specified circumstances. RSUs enfitle the recipient to receive cash payments equivalent to any dividends paid on the underlying
common stock during the period the RSUs are cutstanding.

-26 -

279/329



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

18. Share based payments (continued)

Restricted stock units (continued)

Compensation expense for REUs is measured based upon the number of shares granted multiplied by the stock price at the grant
date, and for employesa stock options and SARs (stock appreciation rghts), is measured at the grant date using the Black-Scholes
valuation model. Compensation expense for these awards is recognised as described above.

Broad-based employee stock options

Mo broad-based employes stock options were granted in 2018 or in 2019,

The weighted-average share price during the year ended 31 December 2019 was $113.7 (2018: $110.72).

Compensation expense related to stock-based incentives

The total expense for the year relating to share based payments was $200 742 (2018: $278,572), all of which relates lo equity settled
share based payments.

19. Post balance sheet event

Following the cutbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020, the Company and the Firm are monitoring the development of the
pandemic and evaluating its impact on the financial position and operaling results of the Company. As at the date on which this set
of financial statements were authorised for issue, because the situation is ongoing and the eventual cutcome unknown, the Company
cannot quantify the impact on the financial position, operations or capital position as a result of the COVID-18 pandemic. The Company
does not currently anticipate a significant reduction in their capital and hquidity positions over the coming year, For more detail on
Firmwide measures refer to operational risk (page 9).

.27 .
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190
30 3,500

BNP

Securities Services acting through its Singapore branch

BNP
049319 #04-01 20

BNP

Singapore Limited

049319 #01-01 20
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2020 10 17,709
DS Sumitomo Mitsui DS Asset Management Company,
Limited
2020 20
2019

DS
JpP
2020 10 73,272

JP JP
JPMorgan Chase & Co. JP

JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association
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1993
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CIMA

CIMA

https://ww.cima.ky/upimages/commonfiles/1594947199QuarterlyListofal IMutualFundsregisteredandlice
nsedwiththe CaymanlslandsMonetaryAuthority-30June2020 1594947199 ._pdf
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CIMA
CIMA
4.1
CIMA CIMA
REEFS
4,268.29 365.85
CIMA
4.2
4.2
CIMA
CIMA
4,268.29
365.85
CIMA
4.3
100,000
100,000
15
CIMA 4,268.29
365.85

CIMA 3,048.78
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CIMA
4.3 .3 4.3
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
5.1
5.2
5.3
5.4
5.5
CIMA
CIMA
24,390.24
36,585.37 50 30,487.80

42,682.93 50

8,536.59
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEE OF PASSIM TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PassiM Trust(the “Trust”), which comprise the statements of financia
position for Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha USD
Fund as at 11 May 2020, the statements of financial position for BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund as at 3 June
2020, and the statements of financial position for China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x
Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target Maturity
Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund as at 30 June 2020(together the
“sub-funds’), and comprises the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity/net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable units and statements of cash flows for Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund,
Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund and Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund for the period ended 11 May 2020, the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity/net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
units and statements of cash flows for BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund for the period ended 3 June 2020, the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity/net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
units and statements of cash flows for China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund,
India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund
201612 for the year ended 30 June 2020, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity/net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units and statements of cash flows for US Technology 2x Bull
Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund for the period ended 30 June 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of the
sub-funds of the Trust as at 11 May 2020, 3 June 2020, and 30 June 2020 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the period/year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards(* |FRS’).

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Trust's unitholders as a body and for
regulatory filing purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by

our prior consent in writing.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SA”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basisfor our opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter

As described in note 2(a), sub-funds Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund, Resources
Twin Alpha USD Fund, BRL 2x Bull Fund and BRL 2x Bear Fund, have been terminated and as a result, the basis of
accounting for these sub-funds had been changed from the going concern basis to the liquidation basis. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.

Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SA
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
meateria if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust's

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

Grant Thornton
George Town,
Grand Cayman

21 December 2020
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Independent auditors' report to the members of JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited
Report on the audit of the financia statements
Opinion

In our opinion, JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited's financial statements:
give atrue and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of its profit for the year
then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable
law); and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report (the "Annual Report"), which comprise: the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2019; the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following mattersin relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you
where:

the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency
or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of
the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the
UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us
also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Srategic Report and Directors Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair
view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/ auditors responsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' report.
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Use of thisreport

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Sheena Coutinho (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London 22 April 2020
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